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We dedicate this Annual Report for 2008 to 

Algernon Charles Holland, the man who already 

sixty years ago was listening to growing demand 

and was able to give a concrete response in the 

shape of a 

complete 

system of 

services and solutions designed to give people 

back their sense of hearing, laying the foundations 

for the formation and development of Amplifon, 

which today is a world leader in the distribution 

of hearing systems and fitting them to the 

personal needs of the hard of hearing.

Bringing
sound
to life



1950
Charles Holland founds Amplifon, a company 

specialising in the commercialisation  
of hearing aids, in Milan. 1998-2000

These were fundamental years in which 

we developed a clear strategy of 
internationalisation through 

significant acquisitions of the main 

competitors in Switzerland, France, the 

US and The Netherlands.

2007-2008
Today we are a multinational heading 

a Group operating in 13 countries, 

in Europe, North America and the 

Middle East through four brands 

and with staff of over 7,700 people. 

Our distribution network consists 

of 3,000 specialist stores, more 

than 2,000 affiliated stores 3,700 

authorised stockists and  over  3,000 

audioprosthesists.

In 2008 we completely 
revamped our 
communication strategy, 

starting with the brand, to bolster 

further our customer-oriented 

positioning and meet the new 

challenges of the world market and 

the society of the future. 

The 1960s and ‘70s
Growth in the Italian market 
was consolidated with the 

opening of stores in all regions of the 

country. The CRS (Center for Research 

and Studies) was set up as reference 

point for the scientific community 

dedicated to increasing knowledge 

by means of research, development 

and training in the audiological, 

audioprosthetic, phoniatric and 

logopaedic fields. Amplaid, a 

biomedical line providing the ear-

nose-and-throat specialist with 

advanced audiological diagnostic and 

rehabilitation tools, was created.

The 1990s
By developing and renewing management, 

we aimed to be increasingly a service 

company developing and commercialising 

exclusive services to provide custom-

made aids and assistance with the aim 

of maximising customer satisfaction. 

Expansion to other 
countries began, starting with 

the Iberian Peninsula in 1992.

1996
Always in the vanguard of 

technological research, we 

introduced - an absolute 

first for Italy - the 
first completely 
digital hearing aid 

which combined reduced 

size with high-definition 

sound quality.

2001
On 27 June, 2001 

Amplifon was listed  

on the Italian  

Stock Exchange.

We also entered into  

Africa and Middle East  

by establishing a business 

channel in Egypt.

1950 - 2008

2002-2006
We continued our international 
expansion by strengthening our position in key 

markets like the US and The Netherlands and entering 

Germany and the UK.

Our
milestones
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better lives”
people to live

“Every day we help

A message from our Chairman

I am proud to chair a Company which had its origins in the 
fi rst half of the last century and today has become one 
of Italy’s few truly multinational companies. Amplifon has 
shown its ability to change with the times and has thus 
become world leader in its sector of the market.  

This success is of course due to all the Amplifon People and 
I would like to thank them here: they all, each in her or his 
role, contribute every day to the fulfi lment of our business 
mission, which is to help those in need of hearing help 
to live better lives.
 
For the fi rst time our Annual Report 2008 supplements the 
analysis of the results of a year of work with a description 
of the various features that make our business distinctive, 
with the aim of communicating the Group’s value and 
values to all our stakeholders.

With the same spirit with which A. Charles Holland, in 
1950, founded Amplifon we move forward together to 
meet the technological, scientifi c and social challenges of 
the present and the future.

Anna Maria Formiggini Holland

Amplifon
Annual Report 200854



Bringing
sound

tolife

Mission

The Company’s Mission is to give back to people with 

hearing loss full activity and joie de vivre by achieving total 

satisfaction in auditory communication in all the various 

situations of daily life. 
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The Chief Executive Offi cer’s letter

Dear Shareholders,

The international macro-economic scenario, having started to deteriorate in the second half of 
2007, moved into deep recession in the latter part of 2008: developed countries’ GDP is forecasted 
to contract by 2% to 4%, most markedly in North America and UK, but signifi cantly in continental 
Europe. Following the collapse of the fi nancial markets in October 2008, Governments and the major 
international institutions took a series of measures with the aim of making the banking system safe 
and reduce the squeeze on credit to companies. In the initial months of 2009 specifi c plans to support 
industry and consumption were announced. However, the effects of these measures have not yet been 
seen and the recessive scenario has worsened further in early 2009.

The negative economic scenario I have just described has had a limited impact on the hearing-aid 
sector as well. Our market provides goods and services that are only in part deferrable, since they greatly 
condition the quality of life of the user; government support and insurance pay-outs are a further 
stabilising factor. For these reasons in most of our markets there have been relatively modest reductions 
in consumption. 

In early 2008, to deal with these anyway adverse conditions, which had already affected the results of 
the second half of 2007, the Amplifon Group began restructuring and reorganising in order to manage 
the Group’s main areas of business (Continental Europe, UK and North America) in a more dedicated 

(continued)
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“We listen to the future... 
...to make the world

           hear about it“

Franco Moscetti
CEO
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Since 10 September 2008 Amplifon has had the status of STAR from Borsa Italiana and its shares have 
been listed in this segment of the board. 

However, the diffi culties encountered in the early part of the year and above all the severe crisis 
that hit the fi nancial markets from October 2008, adversely affected the Amplifon share, which in 
2008 has fell by 77.1% from the closing price of 28 December 2007. At 30 December 2008 market 
capitalisation was €158.6 million. 

In 2009 the Group will continue to implement its plan which focuses on reaching operational 
excellence in all its markets with the aim of (i) increasing organic growth in Continental Europe; (ii) 
continuing the restructuring process in the UK on the basis of the already completed reorganisation 
and (iii) optimising the commercial strategy in the US with the aim of increasing margins. 
However, given the current recession, the results of these actions are inevitably uncertain. 
For this reason the Group constantly monitors its performance in each market and is following a 
policy of vigilant day-to-day management.

Despite the recession, the hearing aid market is still an extremely interesting one: even the most 
pessimistic analysts foresee no marked contraction, in particular in Continental Europe, where the 
Group does most of his business and where new players are entering the competitive situation.

Thanks to substantial cash generated by operations, Amplifon is investing signifi cant resources in 
projects aiming to support and develop its business: (i) in marketing, through the development and 
diffusion of a new image and market positioning, which places the customer at the centre of its 
business; (ii) in IT, through the development of new projects to enhance sales support and control 
of the business; (iii) in human resources, through the hiring of new market directors in Switzerland, 
Germany and The Netherlands and (iv) in training, to achieve a prime position and be able to act 
rather than react, anticipate rather than follow, with the constant aim of maintaining its leadership in 
cost control and the ability to innovate.  

These objectives will be pursued successfully thanks to all our people in every part of the Group, 
serious professionals motivated to make a positive contribution to the accomplishment of the Group’s 
ambitious projects. 

Milan, 11 March 2009

for the Board of Directors 

the Chief Executive Offi cer

Franco Moscetti

and differentiated way organisational responsibilities were redefi ned and attention was focused on 
operational effi ciency and organic growth, slowing the pace of growth by acquisition.

Throughout the Continental Europe area, after the early months of 2008 saw a contraction of 
business from 2007, in the second half there was organic growth and this continued in the closing 
months of the year despite the sharp deterioration of the general economic scenario.

In the UK, where there is strong competition from the public sector, the Group reacted to falling 
revenues by carrying out a thorough reorganisation in the fi rst half of 2008. This made it possible to 
contain operating losses at the 2007 level despite a drop in turnover of 28% (in sterling terms). 

In the US the effects of the adverse economic situation were more marked and your Company 
suffered more, recording a sharp fall in sales, above all towards the end of the year; this, together with 
the weakness of the US dollar and high fi xed costs, caused a further signifi cant reduction of 
our margins.

Group EBITDA reached €74 million, a fall of €18 million from 2007 mainly due to the mentioned 
diffi culties in the North American market.

In this negative general economic scenario, Group net result from recurring operations reached €17.8 
million. However the deterioration of UK market described above, caused a €29 million impairment 
of the goodwill paid on acquisition of the UltraVox Group. Due to this operation, that also determined 
a write off of deferred tax assets from carryforward losses for €2.9 million, for the fi rst time in recent 
years Amplifon Group’s income statement shows a loss of €14.5 million, as against the €15.5 million 
profi t of 2007.

Net fi nancial indebtedness fell by €50 million to €191 million (from €241 million at 31 December 
2007), thanks to substantial cash fl ow from operations and careful management of working capital. 
This was achieved after capital expenditure of €23 million, acquisitions of €7 million and dividends 
paid in the amount of €8 million.
 
In addition, thanks to punctual refi nancing of maturing debt, the short-term component was €27 
million positive, as against medium/long-term indebtedness of €218 million.

Again with reference to fi nance, in order to equip Amplifon Deutschland with suffi cient own funds 
to complete integration of the acquisitions made in 2007, on 15 July 2008 we fi nalised the transfer 
to Amplifon USA of the US$38 million tranche of the private placement issued in 2006 held by our 
German company: in this way the whole amount of the placement, US$180 million, was lodged with 
our US company, which already held US$142 million. At the same time Amplifon S.p.A. issued a new 
bond of US$ 38 million entirely subscribed by Amplifon USA Inc.

This transaction did not change the terms of the loan and had not material impact on the valuation 
of the Group’s assets, liabilities, costs or income or on the fi nancial statements.

At the end of 2008 the ratio of net debt to net equity was 103.4%, as against 108.3% 
at 31 December 2007. Net debt at the and of 2008 was 2.56 times EBITDA as compared 
to 2.61 times at 31 December 2007.

The CEO’s letter
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UK. Due to this, that also determined an impairment of deferred tax assets on carry forward 
losses for an amount of €2,934 thousands, Amplifon Group’s income statement shows a loss of 
€14,536 thousand, as against the €15,540 thousand profi t of 2007.

Net fi nancial indebtedness fell by €50 million to €191 million (from €241 million at 31 
December 2007), thanks to substantial cash fl ow from operations and careful management of 
working capital. This was achieved after capital expenditure of €23 million, acquisitions of 
€7 million and dividends paid in the amount of €8 million.
 
In addition, thanks to punctual refi nancing of maturing debt, the short-term component was 
€27 million positive, as against medium/long-term indebtedness of €218 million.

Highlights 
2008

The Group’s 2008 profi t performance, 
that as regard to recurring operations 
reported a net result of €17,794 
thousands, was signifi cantly affected 
by a £28 million (€29,396 thousand 
at the 31 December 2008 exchange 
rate) impairment of the goodwill of the 

Ugo Giorcelli
CFO

Growth and profi tability
Revenue CAGR 1999-2008: +16.7%
EBITDA CAGR 1999-2008: +27.7%

CAGR: Compound Annual Growth Rate: the weighted growth rate for the period considered.
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•  EBITDA is the operating result calculated by excluding amortisation, depreciation and 
impairment of tangible and intangible assets.

•  EBITA is the operating result calculated before the amortisation and impairment of 
customer lists, trademarks, non-competition agreements and goodwill arising from business 
combinations.

•  EBIT value represents the operating result before fi nancial income and charges and taxes.

•  Free cash fl ow represents the cash fl ow of operating activities and investment activities 
before the cash fl ows used in acquisitions and payment of dividends.

•   The Net fi nancial indebtedness / Group Net Equity indicator is the ratio of the net fi nancial 
indebtedness to Group’s net equity. 

•  The Net fi nancial indebtedness / Net Equity indicator is the ratio of net debt to total net 
equity.  

•  The Net Debt / EBITDA indicator is the ratio of net debt to EBITDA for the last four quarters.  

Main Economic and Financial Data

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change 

Recurring Non-
 recurring Total % Recurring Non- 

recurring Total % %

Economic data:                       

Revenues from sales 
and services 641,439  641,439 100.0% 667,938  667,938 100.0% -4.0%

Gross operating 
margin (EBITDA) 74,287  74,287 11.6% 92,238  92,238 13.8% -19.5%

Operating result 
before amortisation 
of customer lists and  
goodwill impairment 
(EBITA) 

53,229  53,229 8.3% 68,986  68,986 10.3% -22.8%

Operating income 
(EBIT) 44,980 (29,396) 15,584 2.4% 58,540 (16,904) 41,636 6.2% -62.6%

Profi t (Loss) before 
Income Taxes 27,295 (29,396) (2,101) -0.3% 42,254 (16,904) 25,350 3.8% -108.3%

Group net income 
(loss) 17,794 (32,330) (14,536) -2.3% 29,144 (13,604) 15,540 2.3% -193.5%

FY 2008

Recurring Non-
 recurring Total %

641,439 641,439 100.0%

74,287 74,287 11.6%

53,229 53,229 8.3%

44,980 (29,396) 15,584 2.4%

27,295 (29,396) (2,101) -0.3%

17,794 (32,330) (14,536) -2.3%

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change %

Financial data:

Fixed assets 381,901 426,997 -10.6%

Net invested capital 374,814 463,032 -19.1%

Shareholder’s Net Equity 183,754 221,366 -17.0%

Total Net Equity 184,200 222,250 -17.1%

Net Financial Indebtedness 190,614 240,782 -20.8%

Net Financial Indebtedness / Group Net Equity 1.04 1.09 -0.05%

Net Financial Indebtedness /Net Equity 1.03 1.08 -0.05%

Net Financial Indebtedness /EBITDA 2.56 2.61 -0.05%

31/12/2008

381,901

374,814

183,754

184,200

190,614

1.04

1.03

2.56

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

Free cash fl ow 62,747 47,034

Cash fl ow generated (absorbed) by acquisition activities (6,730)          (32,066)

(Purchase) sale of other investments and securities 2,576 2,159 

Cash fl ow provided by (used in) fi nancing activities (7,937)          (50,408)

Net cash fl ow from the period 50,656          (33,281)

Effect of the disposal of assets and of exchange rate fl uctuations 
on the net fi nancial position (488)            (3,695)

Net cash fl ow from the period with changes for discontinued operations 
and exchange rate fl uctuations 50,168          (36,975)

FY 2008

62,747

(6,730)

2,576

(7,937)

50,656

(488)

50,168

Highlights 2008
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Our business 

can help the world 

to live and 

communicate better. 

It’s exciting.

Since 1950 
we have brought several 

million people 
to rejoin with 

the sounds of life.
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The Socio-Economic Scenario 

Currently, nearly 300 million people in the world* suffer from hearing problems and within this 
target only a small percentage - 10% - use hearing aids.

(*) Source: Word Health Organization

The reasons for this are many: there are psychological factors, those relating to social stigma 
and prejudices as to the simplicity of use of hearing aids. 

Statistically over 80% of hearing loss cases are sensorineural in nature (i.e. related to the 
sensorial components of the nervous system): this fi gure tells us that the use of a hearing 
aid may resolve most of these defi cits, because of the continual technological and diagnostic 
advances that are being made with these products.

The public health authorities in all countries are encouraged to educate the public to a wider 
acceptance of hearing loss problems and the medical solutions available. 

Our business will continue to have high growth potential in the coming years, thanks mainly to 
two fundamental growth drivers: the increase in average age of the population and the increase 
in cases of hearing loss.  

1) The Rise in the Average Age of the Population
Most hearing aids are sold in North America and Western Europe to people aged 65 and above.

There is a direct correlation between age and increasing need for hearing aids.

The Operating 
Environment

In several countries the hearing loss due to noise is the most common 
irreversible professional pathology.

Business Background

The sense of hearing is the fi rst to develop in the fetus: together with sight it is considered the 
most important sense enabling us to live in contact with the world and interact with it. 

Being able to “hear” is essential for verbal communication development, understanding 
of speech, and for entering into relationship with others and feel oneself to be part of a 
community, enjoying the sounds of life experiences that make life more pleasant, more 
secure and which in any case enable the individual to adapt to any necessary communication 
situations.

In Amplifon we operate everywhere there is hypoacusia*, i.e., reduction or loss of the ability to hear. 

(*) Etymology: consists of the diminutive prefi x hypo- and the Greek ‘akousis’, hearing.

Hearing Loss

This is how we defi ne damage to the hair cells of the cochlea, part of the inner ear, which leads 
to a hearing defi cit. 

Hypoacusia may be acquired, caused by accidents, or hereditary disease and external factors. 
The main causes are:

•   age, i.e., the process of human aging;
•   noise, i.e., acustic pollution in its various forms;
•   infections like Scarlet Fever, German Measles and Meningitis;
•   neglected otitis media;
•   otosclerosis, which impairs movement of the stapes in the middle year;
•   heredity, due to the connexina 26 gene;
•   the consumption of substances such as pharmaceuticals, alcohol and cigarette smoke.

Hearing dysfunctions, especially in children, present extremely complex problems which 
have physical and medical implications, but also and above all problems in relating to and 
communicating with others, since these are deeply connected with linguistic development.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, International Data Base. 

Increase in life expectancy
in the world
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Enrico Bortesi
Chief Supply Chain 
& Purchasing Executive

Between 2008 and 2015 the world population over-65 is expected to grow in number by 2.7% 
per year and by 3.5% annually between 2015 and 2020, more rapidly than total population 
(which will grow at 1%). In Western Europe the over-65s – which are currently 17.8% of the 
population – will rise to 20.9% by 2020.

(Source: US Census Bureau)

The increases will be due to:

•   larger number of people born after 1946 (baby boomers) will reach 65 in the near future;   

•   higher life expectancy, in both industrialised and developing countries.

2) The Prevalence of Hearing Loss
The prevalence of hearing loss is another long-term key driver for sales of hearing aids: about 
one-third of all hearing loss cases are caused by prolonged exposure to loud noise. 
In the more developed countries the responsibility for this is divided between social noise 
(factories, traffi c, concerts, discos, etc.) and the use of electronic gadgets like Mp3 players, 
cell-phones, head-phones or similar items; while in less developed countries it is mainly due to 
occupational and environmental noise.

Strategic Outlook

In the next 15 years the macro-business environments will be two:

1) The mature markets, i.e. North America, Western Europe, Australia and Japan (a minority of 
world population, but the markets in which most hearing aids are sold). 

In these markets it will be necessary to focus on active people of post-retirement age, aiming 
to improve and diversify the product offering and spread the awareness of the importance of 
personalised service. 
The introduction of new technology will also increase exponentially the potential for 
penetrating the mature market segment: developments in digital technology and above all the 
increasingly sophisticated miniaturisation of hearing aids will drive the segment to expand at 
considerably faster rates than that of the market as a whole.

2) The emerging markets are an enormous opportunity, considering the constantly rising life 
expectancy.

Increasing economic prosperity will guide penetration of these regions: while up to now – 
given the limited purchasing power and the lack of distribution infrastructure – the high cost of 
good-quality hearing aids has been one of the main barriers to penetration of this market, this 
situation could change radically in the coming decades, for two reasons:

a) a rapid rise in per capita GDP (Gross Domestic Product);

b)  as they grow older, the people that currently has suffi cient purchasing power will be inclined 
to invest their money in hearing aids.

Consequently, as the main barriers disappear, the new markets will quickly become a signifi cant 
growth driver in terms of value.

«The total number of people who suffer 
from hearing loss in Europe is greater 
than the population of France» 

Source: “Evaluation of the Social and Economic Costs of Hearing Impairment”, 
October 2006, Hear-it AISBL.

20

The Operating Environment



22 23
Amplifon

Annual Report 2008

Country Brand Market Share Position Main competitors

Italy Amplifon 43% 1
Maico, 
Gaes, 
Audibel

USA
Amplifon, 
Miracle Ear, 
Sonus

10% 1

Beltone, 
Audibel, 
Costco, 
Avada
Hear USA

Canada Sonus 1% - Island Hearing, 
Forget Group

The Netherlands Beter Horen 36% 1 Schoonenberg, 
HINK

France Amplifon 12% 2 Audika, 
Independents

Spain Amplifon 13% 2 Gaes, 
Opticians

Portugal Amplifon 13% 3 Sonotone, 
Hidden Hearing

Switzerland Amplifon 22% 1
Beltone, 
Kind, 
Neuroth

Hungary Amplifon 13% 1 Geers, 
Demax

Germany Amplifon 5% 3
Kind, 
Geers, 
HAL

UK Amplifon 13%* 2

Hidden Hearing, 
Ormerods, 
NHS,
Specsavers

Markets of 
Operation** 13% 1 -

Global Market ** 8% 1 -

The Group’s competitive positioning in its operating markets

Given this competitive environment Amplifon should be able to consolidate its leadership 
position throughout the world, especially by growing organically and – only if conditions are 
favourable, given the current world economic recession – also through acquisitions.

The market penetration will be based mainly in the know-how and experience acquired in a 
sector in which the quality service and assistance will continue to make a difference.

(*)    Refers solely to the private sector, excluding public sector provision.

(**) Source: National Trade Associations and Insurance Brokers.

Regulatory Environment

Due to the medical nature of our business, we operate in a regulated environment.

Regulations may differ from country to country:

•   the professional qualifi cations of audioprothesists technicians/audiologists 
and hearing aid specialists;

•   whether or not a physician is required to examine the customer and issue a prescription 
for a hearing aid;

•   prevalence of public or private sector;

•   whether or not the national health service provides subsidies.

The Operating Environment
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COUNTRY Sales force 
qualifi cations / 
Years to 
obtain title

Medical 
prescription

Service Providers: 
Public vs. Private

System of 
reimbursement

% of Amplifon 
revenues from 
reimbursement

Portugal: Acoustician / 
0-1 years

Medical 
prescription

Mainly Private 
with 120 stores, 
300 acousticians

Reimboursement 
only from some 
private insurances 
for e 350 on 
average

5% 

UK : Acoustician /  
0-1 year

None Mainly Public 
(NHS) with some 
300 specialized 
stores, 3,500 
acousticians 
employed (1,200 
in private sector). 
NHS covers some 
80% of HA volumes 
applied in UK

Free of charge 
in case of 
national health 
service. Private 
market with no 
reumbursment 0%

Ireland: Acoustician /   
0-1 year

Medical 
prescription

Mainly private 
with around 30 
stores and 70 
ISHAA qualifi ed 
dispensers. 
National Rehab 
Board (Medical 
Card) offers free 
hearing aids 
from 6 hospitals 
(means- tested)

e 850 per hearing 
aid, dependent on 
ratifi cation from 
ISHAA-registered 
acousticians and 
customer having 
paid suffi ciently 
into National 
Health scheme 
and signed by GP. 
Approx. 60% of all 
hearing aids are 
provided with this 
subsidy

50%

USA: Audiologist / 
4 years 
Acoustician  
(hearing aid 
dispensers) / 
0-2 years

None Mainly Private. 
11,000-13,000 
estimated 
locations. 11,000 
estimated 
audiologists.  
10,000 estimated 
hearing aid 
dispensers

Free market 
with no 
reimbursement 
except for a small 
portion of the 
market run by 
the War Veterans 
Association 
and private 
insurances

5% (Miracle-Ear)                  
25% (Sonus)

Canada: Acoustician 
(hearing aid 
dispensers) / 
0-2 years

None Mainly Private. 
1,000 to 2,000 
estimated 
locations

Private Insurance 
for about 5%. 
A few Provinces 
give contributions 
to the purchase of 
hearing aids

5%

NHS- National Health Service

ISHAA  - Irish Society of Hearing Aid Audiologists

COUNTRY Sales force 
qualifi cations / 
Years to 
obtain title

Medical 
prescription

Service Providers: 
Public vs. Private

System of 
reimbursement

% of Amplifon 
revenues from 
reimbursement

Italy: Acoustician / 
3 years

Mandatory 
medical 
prescription 
for all types of 
hearing aids

Private only 
with approx. 
1,480 specialized 
stores, 3,000 
acousticians and 
more than 3,500 
service centers

Full cover by 
the national 
health service 
for standard 
hearing aids, 
which on average 
cost around 
e 600. Partial 
reimbursement 
by the state of 
around e 600 
for any type of 
hearing aid

30%

France: Acoustician /
3 years

Mandatory 
medical 
prescription 
& verifi cation  
that hearing 
aid has actually 
been fi tted 

Mainly 
Private with 
approx. 2,500 
stores, 2,116 
acousticians

Full or partial 
reimbursement 
by private health 
insurance and / or 
government 

30%

The
Netherlands:

Acousticians / 
0-1year

Private, with 800 
stores (including 
optician chains)

50%

Germany: Acoustician / 
3 years

Mainly Private, 
some 4,100 
stores with 9,000 
acousticians

40% 

Switzerland: Acoustician / 
3 years

Private with 400 
stores, approx. 
380 acousticians

65%

Hungary: Acoustician / 
2.5 years  

Private with 
90-100 stores and 
public with 40-50 
hospitals 

70%

Spain: Acoustician / 
2 years

Medical 
prescription 
only below 16 
years

Mainly Private, 
some 650 
specialised stores. 
In some cases, 
hearing aids are 
also distributed 
by opticians. 
1,000 qualifi ed 
Audiologists ca

Full 
reimbursement 
by state for 
certain patients 
up to 16 years 
of age

1%

The Operating Environment



Our Core Business and Business Model

We distribute high-tech hearing aids manufactured by the main producers in the world and 
we customize them to the needs of hearing impaired customers with the help of a range of 
personalised services. 

At our stores we offer hearing tests which give the customer a precise picture of her or his 
hearing ability and, if there is a hearing defi cit, Amplifon specialises in providing “customized” 
hearing aid solutions, which can be tailored according to personalised parameters thanks to digital 
programming technology. 

We also contribute to the fi ne tuning of examination and rehabilitation methods and provide 
ENT’s with the tools, the assistance and the know-how which are indispensable for otologic 
diagnosis and computerised integrated management of audiological systems. 

The following is a brief description of the hearing aid business, its object, the actors involved, 
the procedures followed and the main locations. 

Business
The What?

Who?
How?Where?

We distribute hearing aids: we have 
supply contracts with all the main hearing-
aid manufacturers, in order to ensure that 
we have products of excellent quality and 
the best technology to distribute to our 
customers. 

Above all we provide an exclusive range of 

high value-added services which guarantee 
total personalisation to the customer 
and long-term assistance; these are the 
distinctive features of our offering which is 
unique in our fi eld.

We operate through two distribution 

channels (corporate and non-corporate 

business) located in four Regions: 
Continental Europe, United Kingdom, North 
America and Rest of the World.

In each country the relationship with 

local legislation is fundamental, including 
the management of agreements with 
the national health service and insurance 
companies.

Our stores are the primary point of contact 
with the customer. 

The Group is undertaking a gradual 

complete renovation of the layout of the 

stores over the next three years, including 
their architecture and fi ttings, since these 
are critical factors for success in increasing 
sales, attracting customers and offering even 
higher standards of service.

Our business is based on a varied Group of 

actors, whether direct targets or partners.

•   Potential customers / users, people who 
usually do not perceive their defi cit and 
have diffi culty in admitting that they have 
a hearing loss since the defi cit is seen as a 
handicap.

•  Staff in contact with customers,  in 
particular more than 3,000 acousticians 
and audiologists, who are central fi gures 
in the functioning of the service that 
characterises our business. They are trained 
to use the best  technology at hand and 
to inform, assist and support the customer 
properly.

•   The infl uencers, i.e.:
 -  the potential customer’s family or 

friends, who may help her or him to be 
aware of the problem and do something 
about it;

 -  the general practinioner, who may 
authoritatively direct the patient to 
consult a specialist;

 -  the ENT, since regulations in most 
of our countries of operation require a 
physician’s prescription for a hearing aid. 

Amplifon
Annual Report 20082726
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2008
Worldwide
Business Areas

(€ thousands) 2008 2007  Change  

Italy 192,443 187,819 2.5%

France 90,216 86,812 3.9%

The Netherlands 85,217 80,176 6.3%

Germany 41,945 35,610 17.8%

Iberian peninsula 30,857 27,110 13.8%

Switzerland 27,840 24,154 15.3%

Hungary 3,799 2,572 47.7%

Intercompany 
eliminations (825) (307) 168.7%

Total Continental 
Europe 471,492 443,946 6.2%

United Kingdom 
and Ireland 44,532 71,786 -38.0%

United Kingdom 
and Ireland 44,532 71,786 -38.0%

USA - Canada 124,311 151,458 -17.9%

Total America 124,311 151,458 -17.9%

Egypt 1,142 765 49.3%

Total Africa 1,142 765 49.3%

Intercompany 
eliminations (38) (17) 123.5%

Total 641,439 667,938 -4.0%

Revenues from sales and services

The Business



30

The Structure of the Group

The Group’s operating structure is divided into four Regions:

•   Continental Europe 

•   United Kingdom     

•   North America    

•   Rest of the World

The Regions are responsible for full and correct implementation of the Group’s strategic 
guidelines and coordination of the activity performed at Country level.

The management of each country is in charge to carrying on the Group’s business with a 
specifi c focus on sales and marketing.

A Corporate Management Team within the Group HQ, based in Milan, exercises international 
direction and control, e.g.: global strategy, marketing and institutional communication, investor 
relations, information technology, relations with suppliers and the main partners, promotion of 
research, quality control, funding, currency risk management, coordination of human resources 
management, legal advisory and management and support of acquisitions.

Our Group focuses on a single business sector, 
namely the distribution of hearing aids and 
related products and services, which generate 
most of our turnover.

•   Hearing Aids (86%)

•   Other Products (12%)

- batteries
- consumables
- repairs
- accessories
- spare parts and services
- other

•   Biomedical products (2%)

NORTH
AMERICA

REST of
the WORLD

Canada

USA Egypt

UNITED
KINGDOM

France

Switzerland

The Netherlands

Spain
Portugal

Germany

Great Britain

Ireland

Italy

Hungary

CONTINENTAL
EUROPE
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Gilbert Ferraroli
Market Director Europe

The Business
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This is why in 2008 we introduced a new brand concept, in visual, communication and point of 
purchase (store) terms.

A brand which signifi es innovation and modernity, which is aesthetically pleasing and above 
all able to add a human and emotional touch to the hearing aid business’ usual emphasis on 
functionality and technical performance, thus transforming the customer’s perception of a 
purely medical application.

The new payoff “Bringing Sound to Life” expresses this new approach with great energy, 
communicating empathy, warmth, meaning, positivity, attention and relationship.

This idea refl ects all our experience of the consumer within the Amplifon world, from the 
moment in which she or he enters one of our stores, though contact with our staff to the 
choice of the product and – over time – the discovery and use of the various services we offer. 
A dynamic balance between the rational and emotional dimensions.

In a market where, in our view, the consumer leads, we have decided to adopt a glocal 
(global + local) approach to multinational business, i.e. to mediate between global and local 
business needs and in each operational Region integrate global corporate objectives with the 
characteristic requirements of each individual country or stakeholder: consumers (users and 
infl uencers), professionals, suppliers and offi cial bodies.

This is why in several Regions we operate through three brands other than that of Amplifon, all 
of which follow the philosophy of the Group as a whole.

Our Brands

Our Brand Strategy

Total Customer Satisfaction

Understanding customer needs is the basic 

requirement not only to develop our business, but 
also in strategic communication and the diffusion 
of the Group’s brands.
It’s our wish that our brands should not only be 
a seal of service or product quality, but also the 
expression of a company committed to knowing 

its customer better than anyone else.

Haluk Terzioglu
Chief Marketing 
Executive

32

This is the brand of a chain 
of “clinics” acquired in the 
US. Given the wide diffusion 
and the excellent awareness 
of the brand – focused 
on high-level solutions 
and perceived as strongly 
medical – it has been 
retained. In order to exploit 
this brand to the full, certain 
chains of independent 
distributors in the wholesale 
channel have been permitted 
to use it. 

This is our US brand used by 
a network of franchisees; this 
network, originally acquired 
at the end of the 1990s, was 
subsequently strengthened. 
The brand was retained given 
extensive awareness and 
strong identity. 

This is a historic Dutch 
brand; in consideration of its 
recognition value in the 
market and its wide 
diffusion, it has been 
retained and integrated into 
Amplifon’s new logo.

The Business
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Distribution Channels

The Group operates through two main distribution channels.

1) Corporate business - direct point of sales
This is the direct channel, in which the sales relationship is between Amplifon and its customers. 
Marketing activity of three types is performed through our stores and clinics:

a) sales conducted by Amplifon staff,

b)  sales conducted by self-employed staff, who sell hearing aids on behalf of Amplifon and in 
its name,

c) service locations that are the fi rst contact and they direct customers to the shops.

2) Non-corporate business - indirect point of sales
The indirect channel through which Amplifon sells to independent fi rms, which then distribute 
hearing aids and accessories and complementary services to the end-users. According to the 
degree of predominance of the Amplifon brand in stores, they break down as follows:

a) Franchisees

These operate under a franchise agreement and bear the enterprise risk. They have the 
advantage of special terms and conditions in purchasing from Amplifon and the chance to use 
advanced marketing tools and a brand leader in the market (e.g. Amplifon or Miracle Ear) and 
other value added services as training, accounting and IT services, retirement plans etc. 
They purchase product exclusively from the Amplifon Group and may benefi t from service 

centres as the fi rst contact with customers.

b) Wholesale (mainly US)

Amplifon sells on a non exclusive basis hearing aids to independent fi rms, sometimes also 
providing sales support services and other value added services as training, accounting, IT 
services, retirement plans, etc. 

This is a wholesale model since wholesalers may buy products and services from sources other 
than Amplifon. According to the modus operandi, these break down is as follows:

•  Business owners enjoying special terms and conditions, e.g., members of a buying association 
coordinated by Amplifon, which receives a commission on each sale;

•  Independent fi rms to which the Group supplies hearing aids under a minimum quantity 
agreement;

•  Membership Groups and insurance companies which recommend a hearing-aid store, whether 
direct or indirect, to their clients.

Special Cases

In the US Amplifon has succeeded in accessing preferential locations through special 
agreements with Sears and Wal-Mart to operate in their stores or malls.

December 2008

Direct points of sales Indirect points of sales Total by Country

Direct / Agent Franchisee / Service Center Wholesale

Italy 402 - - 402

Switzerland 71 - - 71

France 326 - - 326

The Netherlands 158 - - 158

Hungary 18 - - 18

Spain 96 24 - 120

Portugal 11 - - 11

Germany 158 - - 158

Total 
Continental Europe 1,240 24 - 1,264

United Kingdom 
and Ireland 141 84 - 225

North America 263 1,402 2,057 3,722    

Egypt 8 - - 8

Total by type 1,652 1,510 2,057 5,219

December 2007

Direct points of sales Indirect points of sales Total by Country

Direct / Agent Franchisee / Service Center Wholesale

Italy 389 - - 389

Switzerland 70 - - 70

France 318 - - 318

The Netherlands 147 - - 147

Hungary 18 - - 18

Spain 85 20 - 105

Portugal 12 - - 12

Germany 159 - - 159

Total 
Continental Europe 1,198 20 - 1,218

United Kingdom 
and Ireland 146 75 - 221

North America 260 1,405 2,057 3,693    

Egypt 8 - - 8

Total by type 1,612 1,500 2,057 5,140

The Business
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Each hearing

defi cit is different.

That’s why our tailored

services make...

the difference.

Amplifi t is a
ground-breaking and 

unique interactive tool 
to make everyone enjoy 
the real soundtrack 

of their life.
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  distinctive
features

Our

Our Key Success Factors

Our objective is to give total satisfaction to the hearing impaired.

To achieve this goal we base our business on fi ve basic KSFs.

•  Professional competence: we recruit highly qualifi ed audioprothesists, audiologists and hearing aid 
specialists, who kept up-to-date through advanced training courses.

•  Excellent area coverage: the need to respond quickly to customer needs, whether technical or 
clinical, requires us to be close to the customer through a broad, structured and effi cient distribution 
network.

•  Service orientation: a quality hearing aid is not enough – constant personalised assistance and the 
use of instruments that will meet the individual’s needs are extremely important.

•  The human touch: the closeness of our staff to the customer is fundamental. A willingness to listen 
is the key to the establishment of on trust, which will enable physiological but above all psychological 
needs to be understood and met and will accompany the customer through each stage of the 
solution of his or her hearing defi cit.

•  Technological excellence: thanks to agreements with global manufacturers, we are able to distribute 
technologically advanced hearing aids.



Our Services

In our stores various services are available. The following is a brief description.

•  Hearing Test, designed to test and measure the customer’s level of hearing loss, performed 
using advanced testing techniques and interpretation. Allowing individual needs of the hearing 
impaired to be identifi ed.

•  Selection, there is a wide range of top-manufacturer hearing aids for the customer to try and 
choose. Our stores also have Amplifi t®, a system created by Amplifon to facilitate the selection, 
fi tting and regulation of the hearing aid. It was developed on the basis of psychoacoustic 
research results and in cooperation with key audiological centers, it marks decisive progress in 
the detection of hearing impairment and the application and fi tting of hearing aids. 

•  Post-Sale Assistance

Amplifon continues to follow its customers closely especially after the fi tting of the hearing 
aid, by offering various services and complete follow-up care. Can include:
- Free phone assistance
- Home care
- Regular free hearing tests
- Free checks of the setting and cleaning the hearing aid

•  Fidelity Card for hearing aid servicing 

A useful way of increasing customer loyalty offering various price formulas for the extension 
of the guarantee.

•  Guarantees and Insurance

A complete range of guarantees and insurance coverages against theft, damage or loss of 
hearing aids and accessories is available to customers.

•  Direct Invoicing of National Health Services

This service relates to the amount the customer is entitled to claim under applicable 
legislation. 

•  Sale of Accessories

- Cleaning material
- Batteries
-  Complementary products (alarm clocks, headphones or telephones, bluetooth, remote 

controls etc.)

40

Hearing impairments are different for 

each individual. There are those who have 

diffi culty in hearing low tones and those who 

cannot hear high tones, those who do not 

hear the phone ringing and those who cannot 

hear a TV fi lm soundtrack. So the solution 

is different for each individual. This is why, 

unlike other audiometric systems, Amplifi t® 

uses real-life situations, with high-quality 

videos of few minutes sequences. The test is 

very involving and interactive, with customers 

and acoustician sitting side by side.

The computer monitor reproduces various 

situations (home life, leisure, work, travel and 

nature) with a total of six sound types: 

1. Speech without background noise 

2. Speech with background noise 

3. Speech with echo effect

4. Soft sound

5. Loud sound

6. Musical sound

For each customer a sequence is chosen to 

best refl ect the environment in which she 

or he lives. At the end of the test the tool 

traces a graph of the results, which is saved 

and is the customers hearing profi le. The tool 

compares his or her results with those that 

would be obtained by normal hearing in the 

same situations.

 

On the basis of the level of hearing loss, 

the customer may decide together with the 

acoustician to apply a hearing aid, choosing 

the model best suited to her or his needs 

according to the hearing profi le traced by 

Amplifi t®.

After fi tting, there is a period of 

acclimatisation which will vary in length from 

individual to individual, at the end of which 

the customer will return to the Amplifon 

centre and take a further Amplifi t® test. The 

customer can her- or himself verify the results 

of the test.

 

If necessary the hearing aid may be regulated 

once more. Second-generation or later 

hearing aids are directly connected to the 

computer which transfers all the information 

in real time.

Amplifon
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Keeping in touch

with the things

we love is the best

accompainment

to have.

For life.

More than 80% of 
hearing defi cits has 

a solution, but just 20% 
of people who need 

them is aware of this.



Our company’s mission expresses purposes 
related to important issues in society, 
integration and equal opportunities.

To give back the joy of a full life to people 
suffering from hearing loss, through their 
achieving maximum satisfaction in daily 
communication, it is our focus to pursue this 
mission by promoting the full development 
and distribution of information and 
supporting scientifi c and academic 
research in the ENT fi eld. 

Amplifon
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Amplifon’s
role in society

Susan Carol Holland
Deputy Chairman
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The Activity of the CRS, our Center for Research and Studies

CRS (Center for Research and Studies) is a highly regarded scientifi c institution; it was 
founded in 1971 and since then has been carrying on numerous initiatives in research, training 
and the dissemination of information in the audiological and otological fi elds. 

To promote research projects, CRS has since its foundation awarded the CRS International 

Prize, to researchers who contribute substantial discoveries to the increase of knowledge 
in audiology.

The CRS organises courses and conferences, within Italy and abroad, in audiological and ENT 
topics, to train and inform the medical community.

In the Milan auditorium CRS hosts scientifi c events included in the annual catalogue, 
organized with the help of the most eminent names in audiology and otology.

The CRS’s support of the academic world also drives change in scientifi c knowledge, by 
funding scholarships in ENT or audiology (or a combination of the two).

Our CRS also opens its Library – which has holdings of over 10,000 scientifi c publications, 
Italian and foreign audiological and ENT journals. Here it is possible to undertake bibliographical 
searches, on-site or on-line to obtain abstracts and articles from the journals held. 
Diffusion of scientifi c culture is achieved through the publication of two specialised journals: 
Index, an on-line selection in English of highly important articles; and Logopaedia, a twice-
yearly journal in Italian.

Our communications mainly use the on-line channel, both through the 
website (www.crsamplifon.com) and through the media. We edit e-mail 
newsletters sent to doctors and opinion-leaders in our fi eld; these contain 
scientifi c information on course, conferences, events, clinical trials and 
publications, as well as products and innovation.

Supporting Academic Teaching

We cooperate with universities throughout Italy by making the knowledge and skill of our 
acousticians available for the Degree in Audioprothesis Techniques.
This is made possible by professional, personal and unpaid help of three kinds:

•  acoustician training, whereby students may accompany our acousticians in their daily work 
and thus have experience in the fi eld right from their fi rst year, gaining knowledge of the 
practical aspects of the profession and giving their theoretical studies a basis in reality; 

•  instruction, whereby Amplifon acousticians with notable teaching ability act as university 
teachers;

•  course coordination by specialised staff with the function of intermediating between 
teachers and taught. 

Contributing the A. Charles Holland Foundation

We have supported the A. Charles Holland Foundation – an 

independent non-profi t entity founded in 2004 – since its inception, 
in the promotion of scientifi c research, training and education in the 
audiological and otological fi eld and in the diffusion of the sector’s 
culture and problems as well as educating public opinion in its attitude 
to hearing defi cits.

The Foundation supports academic research through annually awarded 
international scholarships which enable young graduates in Medicine and 
Surgery or Audiology of any nationality to have two to three months’ 
training at specialised universities other than their original school, which 
contributes to the spread of ideas and methodologies. 

Among the more important projects fostered by the Foundation and 
supported by us in partnership with other entities, “Sentire meglio 

insieme” [“Hearing Better Together”] is noteworthy.

Its aim is to improve the sound quality in public places like cinemas, 
churches, pharmacies and places that are generally inaccessible for those 
with hearing impairments, due to background noise.

This project – which is conducted within the framework of rules 
and regulations issued by the UN and the EU – has so far been 
activated in the cities of Reggio Emilia, Florence, Milan and 
Ravenna.

It entails the installation of appropriate custom-made magnetic-
induction amplifi cation systems (signed with a specifi c logo), 
which channel the important sound in order to put it in the 
foreground as opposed to the background and ensure good 
listening to those who wear a hearing aid.

Prof. Ettore Bocca, (1979)
Vocal instruments for audiometric tests

Prof. Graeme Clark (2005)
Advanced studies on cochlear implants

(CRS logos 1971 - 1983)

Prof. James Jerger (1975) 
Diagnostics techniques and 
audiometric researches

Amplifon’s role in society
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The Group’s people
and governing

bodies
Overview

The basis of all the Group’s activities is our Code of Conduct approved by the Board of 

Directors. We fi rmly believe that the primary actors in corporate governance are our people and 
the way they go about their daily work.
 
All functions must therefore be carried out in compliance with the law, in a framework of fair 
competition and respect for the legitimate interests of our customers, employees, shareholders, 
business partners, lenders and the communities in which we operate.
 
The Code of Conduct lays down the general principles to be followed, the reciprocal responsibilities 
of the employer and the employees, diligence in relations with stakeholders, fostering the skills 
and ability of each employee, by enabling full professional self-realisation and thus ensuring that 
working conditions are fair and free of any form of discrimination. 
 
The corporate governance structure, which is described in detail in the corporate governance 
and shareholdings report, available in the Company website www.amplifon.com in the Investor 
Relations / Corporate Governance / statutory and codes section, is based on the Listed 

Companies’ Corporate Governance Code issued by the Listed Companies’ Corporate 
Governance Committee which Amplifon signed up to in its original 2001 version and now follows 
the code issued in March 2006 by the same Committee.

Governing Bodies and Committees 

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 24 April 2007 and 
remains in offi ce for the three fi nancial years 2007-2009. Its membership is as follows:

Board of Directors
Chairman Anna Maria Formiggini
Deputy Chairman Susan Carol Holland
CEO Franco Moscetti 
Director* Giampio Bracchi
Director* Maurizio Costa
Director* Umberto Rosa
Director Vanni Emanuele Treves

 *  Denotes an independent director as defi ned in the Listed Companies’ Corporate Governance Code issued by the Listed Companies’ 
Corporate Governance Committee sponsored by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

Board of Statutory Auditors
Chairman Giuseppe Levi
Standing Auditor Cristina Seregni
Standing Auditor Alessandra Cislaghi

External Auditors Reconta Ernst & Young S.p.A.

Board Committees and Other Appointed Bodies

Internal Control Committee 
Chairman Umberto Rosa
Member Giampio Bracchi
Member Susan Carol Holland

Remuneration Committee 
Chairman Maurizio Costa
Member Anna Maria Formiggini
Member Umberto Rosa

Supervisory Body
Chairman Umberto Rosa
Member Giampio Bracchi
Group Compliance Offi cer Paolo Tacciaria

Lead Independent Director Umberto Rosa

Executive Responsible for  
Corporate Financial Information Ugo Giorcelli

Group Compliance Offi cer Paolo Tacciaria

From the left:     Maurizio Costa, Luigi Colombo, Vanni Treves, Alessandra Cislaghi, Giuseppe Levi, Umberto Rosa, Giampio Bracchi, 
Cristina Seregni, Susan Carol Holland, Franco Moscetti, Anna Maria Formiggini Holland.
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The Internal Control System

The internal control system comprises the rules, procedures and organisational structures 
designed to ensure that the company is managed soundly, correctly and in line with its 
objectives, by means of an appropriate process of identifi cation, measurement, management 
and monitoring of the main risks. The internal control system contributes to the safeguarding of 
company assets, the effi ciency and effectiveness of the company’s operations, the reliability of 
its fi nancial information and compliance with laws and regulations.

Responsibility for the internal control system rests with the Board of Directors. To this end the 
Board has recourse to the assistance of the Internal Control Committee, the CEO and the Head 
of Internal Control. 

Directors’ Interests and Related-Party Transactions

On 15 March 2007 the Board of Directors approved a procedure for the ‘conduct of signifi cant 
transactions and transactions with related parties’.
This procedure defi nes the guidelines and general principles for the identifi cation and 
authorisation of transactions having signifi cant strategic, economic, equity-related or fi nancial 
importance, with special reference to related-party transactions, as prescribed by §§ 1.C.1.f) 
and 9. Corporate Governance Code, § 2391bis Civil Code, §114 Law 58/1998 and § 71bis, 
enabling rules issued by CONSOB as well as the prescriptions of IAS 24.

The Board’s Members

Anna Maria Formiggini Holland 
Born in 1924, Italian citizen

Her professional career began in 1945 when she was Marketing Director in Elizabeth Arden S.p.A., 
where she stayed until 1957. In 1950 she married Algernon Charles Holland, a former Major in 
the British Special Forces, who moved to Italy and set up a business to import modern hearing 
aids, founding Amplifon S.r.l. in the same year. 
In 1959 she joined Amplifon in Marketing promoting and supporting direct marketing, which was 
crucial to the growth of the company in the following years.
In 1980 she was appointed member of the Board of Directors of Amplifon S.p.A.
In 1990 she was appointed Chairman of the Board of Directors, the offi ce she still holds, together 
with that of Chairman of Ampliter N.V., Chairman of the Board of Directors of Amplifi n S.p.A. and 
Chairman of the A. Charles Holland Foundation.
In the past she was also Vice Chairman of the Managing Council of the Alzheimer Federation Italy 
and Deputy Chairman of the Board of Ager, an Association for geriatric research and the study of 
longevity.

Susan Carol Holland 
Born in 1956, Italian citizen

She graduated in Psychology and Sociology at Keele University in the UK. She then took a 
diploma in Logopaedia at the Università degli Studi, Milan and in 1982 began her professional 
career as a logopaedist in Milan’s Policlinico.

The Role of the Board of Directors

Within its traditional corporate governance system, the Board of Directors of Amplifon S.p.A. 
has extensive powers of administration, ordinary and extraordinary management of the 
Company and is empowered to perform all acts that are considered necessary and useful for the 
purposes of accomplishing its corporate object, with the exception of those powers that the law 
and the by-laws reserve for the shareholder’s meeting.

The Board of Directors grounds its activity on the principles of sound corporate and 
entrepreneurial management, on those of the Corporate Governance Code and on the contents 
of the Code of Conduct. 

Powers Delegated by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is a unitary and collegiate body, in which the management powers 
delegated to the CEO, Franco Moscetti, are balanced by its executive and non-executive 
members, in possession of the knowledge and skills needed to stimulate discussion that will 
lead to decisions made in the interests of the Company. The CEO and the other Directors with 
special delegated powers report appropriately to the Board of Directors and to the Board of 
Statutory Auditors on the exercise of these powers to each meeting of the Board of Directors 
and at least quarterly.

The Chairman acts on the basis of the powers granted by law and the by-laws with no 
delegated management powers and no specifi c institutional role in the development of 
company strategies. 

Annual Self-Assessment by the Board of Directors

In application of principle 1.C.1.g) of the Corporate Governance Code, the Board of Directors, with 
the support of the Internal Control Committee and the Head of Internal Control, carries out an 
annual assessment of its size, membership and functioning. This assessment and especially the 
points concerning continuing improvement of the work of the Board, are discussed and agreed 
and lead to action planned to implement them.

The Law 231 Organisational Model

On 14 March 2005 the Board of Directors adopted an Organisational, Managerial and Control 
Model (the ‘Model’) as prescribed by Law 231/2001, which introduced corporate criminal 
liability for certain offences committed by the company’s directors, the senior managers or 
the staff in the interest or to the advantage of the company. The Model was drawn up with 
the aim of preventing the offences defi ned by the law from being committed and was based 
on the guidelines for Organisational Models issued by Confi ndustria and other relevant trade 
associations.

The Group’s people and governing bodies
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Umberto Rosa 

Born in 1933, Italian citizen

He graduated in Industrial Chemistry from Turin University. In 1959 he joined FIAT’s Nuclear 
Division and worked in various research groups at several centres and Italy and abroad. In 1967 
he became a lecturer in Radiochimica depositata at the Scuola Normale in Pisa. In1973 he took 
over the management of the SORIN Nuclear Research Centre (FIAT) which he converted into 
an industrial producer of biomedical technology (artifi cial organs and diagnostic reagents) of 
which he became General Manager in 1975 and then Managing Director in 1980. Following the 
acquisition of Sorin by the SNIA Group in 1986, he was appointed Member of the Management 
Committee and then Managing Director in 1991 and Chairman in 1996. 
He is currently Chairman of SORIN S.p.A., which is listed on the Milan Stock Exchange. 
Since 2004 he has been Executive Chairman of Nerviano Medical Sciences, the largest 
oncological research centre in Europe.
He is also Chairman of Telbios S.p.A. and NewCortec S.p.A. (NCT), Deputy Chairman of the 
Istituto Europeo di Oncologia and a Director of Finlombarda SGR, Amplifon S.p.A. 
and Actelios S.p.A..
From 1995 to 1999 he was Deputy Chairman of Confi ndustria, responsible for research, 
innovation and the environment and Chairman of the Istituto per l’Ambiente (IPA).

Vanni Treves 

Born in 1940, British citizen

He is a lawyer (Solicitor of the Supreme Court). For thirty years he was a Partner at Macfarlanes, 
a major City of London law fi rm, specializing in corporate law and international transactions. He 
is now Chairman of Korn/Ferry International, The Equitable Life Assurance Society and Intertek 
Group Plc and has in the past been Chairman of three other public companies (BBA Group Plc, 
McKechnie Plc and Trinity Holdings Plc) and of Channel 4 Television Corporation and London 
Business School. He is Chairman of the National College of School Leadership, a Trustee of the 
J. Paul Getty Charitable Trust, Solicitor to The Royal Academy and Senior Advisor to Oliver 
Wyman. He holds an MA in Jurisprudence, an LLM in International Law and is an Honorary 
Fellow of London Business School.

In 1988 she was appointed to the Board of Directors of Amplifon S.p.A. and in 1993 elected 
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors, a position she still holds, together with that of 
Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of Amplifi n S.p.A. and Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of Ampliare S.r.l., the Amplifi n Group’s property company.

Franco Moscetti 
Born in 1951, Italian citizen 

He began his career in the Air Liquide Group in 1973. In 1989, after gaining varied experience, he 
was appointed General Manager of Vitalaire Italia, a company specialising in home care. In 1995 
he was appointed General Manager and Managing Director of Air Liquide Sanità, a sub-holding 
controlling all the Group’s health operations in Italy. In 1999 he was also made Managing 
Director of the parent company, Air Liquide Italia. In 2001, he moved to Paris, where he became 
head of the International Hospitals Division and, at the same time, Président-Directeur Général 
of Air Liquide Santé France. Since December 2004 he has been General Manager and CEO of 
the Amplifon Group. He is also currently a member of the Executive Committee of Touring Club 
Italiano and an Independent Director of Diasorin S.p.A. and Fideuram Investimenti SGR S.p.A. 
(IntesaSanpaolo Group).

Giampio Bracchi 

Born in 1944, Italian citizen

Professor of Engineering at the Politecnico, Milan and Chairman of the Politecnico Foundation, 
Milan. Author of 20 books and 200 scientifi c publications in Italy and abroad on corporate and 
fi nancial innovation, he has been a member of the Strategic Committee in a number of the 
larger Italian industries, banks and public-sector organisations as an overseer of innovation. 
He is currently a Member of the Board of Directors of Banca Intesa Private Banking S.p.A., RDB 
S.p.A., Milano-Serravalle-Milano Tangenziali S.p.A., AIFI - Italian Association for Private Equity 
and Venture Capital (of which he is Chairman), Amplifon S.p.A. and CIR S.p.A..
He is a Member of the Consultative Committee of Borsa Italiana S.p.A.. He has been an advisor 
to the Presidenza del Consiglio dei Ministri (the Italian Prime Minister’s offi ce), a member of the 
Technical and Scientifi c Committee of the Fondo Nazionale per la Ricerca Applicata (Italian fund 
for applied research), Deputy Chairman of Banca Intesa S.p.A.. He is an Emeritus Trustee of the 
“Very Large Data Base Foundation”, Los Angeles and was for a long period world Chairman of 
the Information Systems Committee of the International Federation for Information Processing.

Maurizio Costa 

Born in 1948, Italian citizen 

He graduated in Mechanical Engineering at the Università degli Studi in Genoa. He was General 
Manager of the Standa Group from 1989 to 1992.
He joined Mondadori in 1992 to manage Group subsidiaries and acquisitions, divestments and 
development of new businesses, until he became Managing Director of Elemond in 1994.
In 1997 he has been appointed General Manager and then Managing Director of the Mondadori 
Group, at the same time taking up a Directorship of Arnoldo Mondadori Editore, becoming its 
Deputy Chairman in 2003.
He is a member of the Councils of Confi ndustria and Assolombarda and also participates in the 
Chairman’s Committee of F.I.E.G.. Since May 2007 he has been an independent Director 
of Amplifon.
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Ugo Giorcelli 
Born in 1959, Italian citizen

Chief Financial Offi cer
In the 1990s he worked in 
the Danka Group, fi rst as a 
Managing Director in Italy, 
then as Senior Vice President of 
Danka International in the UK. 
From 1999 to 2004 he gained 
experience in Spain as the CFO 
of Service Point Solutions a 
company listed on the Madrid 
Stock Exchange. In 2005 he 
joined Amplifon as CFO USA; 
since June 2007 he has held the 
position of CFO of Amplifon 
Group. He has a degree in 
Economics from the Università 
Cattolica in Milan.

Franco Moscetti  
Chief Executive Offi cer
(see page 52)

Enrico Bortesi  
Born in 1953, Italian citizen

Chief Supply Chain & 
Purchasing Executive
Since 1980 he has developed his skills 
in the fi nance fi eld, fi rst in Unilever, 
at the end of the 1980s in Sandoz 
Prodotti Chimici S.p.A. as a Controlling 
Manager. Then he had the same role 
in CPC Italia S.p.A. For 10 years he 
worked in a multinational chemical 
company (Air Liquide) as CFO with 
a period of experience in France as 
well. He joined Amplifon in 2005 
as Managing Director of the French 
branch. Since June 2008 he has held 
the position of Supply Chain Director. 
He has a degree in Economics from 
the University of Brescia.

Enrico Gambardella  
Born in 1966, Italian citizen

Chief HR Executive
He developed and matured his 
career in a leading multinational 
company, Masterfoods (1993-
2001) where he worked, initially in 
Sales and then in Human Resources 
including a stint in the UK. Before 
moving to Amplifon, from 2003 he 
was Human Resources Director of 
Toyota Motor Italia. Now he acts as 
the Chief HR Executive of Amplifon 
Group and, since July 2008, he 
has been Italy Human Resources 
Director. 
He graduated in Economics from 
the University of Pavia.

Gilbert Ferraroli   
Born in 1958, Italian citizen

Market Director Europe
He has been with Amplifon since 
2005 as Head of Supply Chain and 
he is currently the Market Director 
Europe of Amplifon Group.  
During the years of his career, he has 
served in many different functions 
such as HR, Supply Chain, Marketing 
and Sales in important multinational 
like Danone Group and Mars. 
He studied Economics and Business 
Administration in France.

Haluk Terzioglu   
Born in 1968, Turkish citizen

Chief Marketing Executive
He has been with the Amplifon 
Group since 2006. He began and 
developed his career in various 
functions and product categories in 
Marketing with Unilever, in Istanbul 
and Milan reaching the position of 
Global Category Marketing Manager.  
In 2001, he entered Masterfoods 
as European Marketing Leader, 
Innovation Pet Care. He has an 
degree in Marketing, Management 
and Finance from the Univeristy of 
Portland (Oregon, USA) and earned 
an MBA at the University of British 
Columbia (Vancouver, Canada). Heinz Ruch   

Born in 1963, Swiss citizen

Market Director North America
He served in various functions 
(Sales and Marketing) during his eight 
years at Schiller AG reaching the 
position of Managing Director. 
In 1998 he became General Manager 
of Viennatone Hearing Technology 
GmbH, a company that was merged  
into Amplifon in 2003, following 
which he became Country Manager in 
Switzerland and Germany. 
Since April 2008 he has been Market 
Director in the USA and Canada. 
He holds a degree in Economics and 
Business Administration from the 
University of Applied Sciences 
of Zurich.

Franco Moscetti
Chief Executive Offi cer

Enrico Gambardella
Chief HR Executive

Ugo Giorcelli
Chief Financial Offi cer
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Gilbert Ferraroli*
Italy 

Born in 1958, he joined Amplifon in 2005.

(*) Ad interim since 1 April 2009.  
Arnaldo Baroni was in charge until 30 March 2009.

Tibor Terman
Hungary

Born in 1971, he joined Amplifon in 2006.

Robert Leitl
Germany

Born in 1967, he joined Amplifon in 2008. 

Before moving to Amplifon he was Sales Director 

at Fielmann (leading European optical chain).

Richard Darmon
France

Born in 1957, he joined Amplifon in 2006.

Wafi k El Bardissi
Egypt

Born in 1963, he joined Amplifon in 2001.

Heinz Ruch
USA & Canada
Born in 1963, he joined Amplifon in 2003.

 

Steve Fleming
UK & Ireland
Born in 1962, he joined Amplifon in 2008. 

Before moving to Amplifon he was

Retail Operations Director at Vision Express.

Peter Peters
The Netherlands 
Born in 1965, he joined Amplifon as in 2008. 

Before moving to Amplifon he was Commercial Director at the 

Direct Group Benelux Company, a subsidiary of Bertelsmann.

Christian Rutishauser
Switzerland
Born in 1963, he joined Amplifon in 2008. 

Before moving to Amplifon he was Managing Director 

at Siemens Audiologie Ltd.

Paolo Boffano
Spain & Portugal
Born in 1960, he joined Amplifon in 1991.

Our Market
Directors
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Enrico Gambarella
Chief HR Executive

All those working for Amplifon share the corporate mission and the principles of the company’s 
Code of Conduct. 

In this context, the audioprothesist, audiologist and hearing instrument specialist is the 
“frontman” of an organisation in which individuals share an awareness of the social aims of the 
company’s business.

The following table shows the staff distribution by function and country:

Compensation Policy

Our compensation policy is based essentially on performance. 
The compensation package varies according to the role of the employee and may include:

•  a fi xed salary;

•  variable compensation;

•  any incentive plans to particular roles and positions approved by the Compensation 
Committee.

The fi xed salary is related to the role of the employee: salary levels depend on the function 
performed but also on the employee’s characteristics and responsibilities and they are 
compared to market benchmarks.

Variable compensation depends by contrast on performance: its aim is to focus the employee 
on the achievement of specifi c targets. Differently for each role it is linked to objectives set at 
the beginning of the year, both qualitative/individual and quantitative/business targets, such as 

Human resources

More than 7,600 people work for our Group 
whether as employees or contracted external 
workers (agents, self-employed and franchisees), 
of which 59% are in Europe and 41% in 
North America.

December 
2008

December
 2007

 Italy
North

 America France
The

Netherlands
UK and
Ireland

Iberian
Peninsula Switzerland Hungary Germany Total Total

Audioprothesists* 102 190 219 332 161 141 73 20 414 1,652 1,742

Other front 
offi ce staff

173 213 336 223 296 83 116 23 66 1,529 1,556

Total shops 275 403 555 555 457 224 189 43 480 3,181 3,298

Support 
functions

201 151 79 133 61 62 18 5 103 813 898

Total 
employees

476 554 634 688 518 286 207 48 583 3,994 4,196

Sales force 
not on payroll

921 2,600 ** - 33 3 51 - 15 - 3,623 *** 3,580

Grand Total 1,397 3,154 634 721 521 337 207 63 583 7,617 7,776

(*)  Audioprothesists + trainees

(**) Estimated

(***) Of whom 2,300 are Audioprothesists

Audioprothesists: this category includes the health professionals who, being holders of a university qualifi cation as required by the 
regulations, carry out programmes of prevention and rehabilitation of communication defi cits, whereby the customer’s hearing is tested 
and her or his needs understood, selection, fi tting and follow-up of the most appropriate remedy of hearing loss. Our audioprothesists 
accompany the customer through the entire process to ensure progressive benefi t and complete satisfaction.
Other front offi ce staff: all those working in our fi eld who are not qualifi ed audioprothesists.
Support functions: corporate centre staff.

The Group’s people and governing bodies
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Intercompany Mobility 

Within the Group there is an exchange programme mainly directed at executives and 

managers, which makes it possible to optimise the allocation of human resources, to propose 
opportunities of growth and professional development, to foster intercultural exchange and take 
best advantage of skills where they are needed.

By contrast audioprothesists meet with greater obstacles to an international career,
due to:

• the diffi culty of obtaining recognition for their qualifi cation in another country; and

• language differences, in a profession where language itself is a fundamental professional tool.

However, they have opportunities in sales (for example, as Area Managers) or other positions in 
Headquarters.

sales, EBITDA, free cash fl ow etc. According to the employee’s position, it can be between 5% 
and 35% of fi xed salary.  

Stock-option plans are awarded to key people with the aim of retaining the employee and 
rewarding them according to the performance of the company and its share price.
In cases identifi ed by the Compensation Committee, there are certain long-term incentives 

which aim to focus managers even more on medium/long-term objectives.

The CEO’s compensation is decided and approved by the Board of Directors, after consultation 
with the Compensation Committee. It includes a variable element of 50% of fi xed salary linked 
to the attainment of previously agreed specifi c objectives discussed and approved by the 
Compensation Committee.

Non-executive and independent directors’ compensation is fi xed and determined by the 
Shareholders’ Meeting on the proposal of the Board of Directors, which has received the advice 
of the Compensation Committee.

Training and Development Programmes

The Group is particularly attentive to the growth of its people and focuses on the training of 
the audioprothesists, audiologists and hearing instrument specialists, also the younger talents 
and those with clear potential.

With regard to the audioprothesists, constant learning and training aiming to continuously 
develop their skills are the two pillars on which the excellence of our customer service is based. 
This is why each country organises extremely detailed training programmes including not only 
product information and updating on the latest testing and prosthesisation techniques but also 
sales training (communication and the service culture) and specifi c study of the psychology of 
the hard of hearing and older people. 

In some cases, according to the country, there may be rules requiring continuing education of 
these professionals - e.g. in Italy, where audioprothesists are required to earn ECM (Continuing 
Education in Medicine) credits. In these cases we make sure that all our audioprothesists take 
part in certifi ed courses that enable them to earn the necessary credits. 

Since March 2007 we have set up a personal and professional development programme known 
as the Amplifon Talent Academy (ATA) which aims to identify, develop and enhance talents 
with the potential to become the future management of the Group. 

The participants in this programme have the chance to develop their knowledge and skills in a 
specifi cally Amplifon “style”, at the same time contributing to the diffusion of the multinational 
culture of the Group in their countries of origin.

The Group’s people and governing bodies
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Listing on the Italian Stock Exchange

The share of the parent company Amplifon S.p.A. has been listed on the screen-based Mercato 
Telematico Azionario (MTA) since 27 June 2001 and since 10 September 2008, with Banca Akros 
having assumed the role of specialist, in the STAR segment.

Main Shareholders  

The main Shareholders of Amplifon S.p.A. at 31 December 2008 are:

information
Shareholder

61,30%

26,45%

8,77% 

3,48%

STAR (Segmento Titoli con Alti Requisiti [segment of securities with high standards]) 

is the segment of the stock exchange of the Italian Stock Exchange reserved for small-

medium enterprises which undertake to comply with stricter requirements in terms of 

transparency of information, liquidity and corporate governance.

Shareholders Shareholder No. of ordinary shares  % held 

Ampliter N.V. 121,636,478 61.30%

Baillie Gifford & Co. 4,969,722 2.50%

Hal Holding N.V. 4,227,844 2.13%

Newton Investment 
Management Ltd. 4,168,081 2.10%

Allianz SE 4,040,600 2.04%

Treasury shares 6,900,000 3.48%

Market 52,477,275 26.45%

Total 198,420,000 100.00%

Change of Control Clauses

With the sole exceptions of a medium/long-term loan of €30 million and a stand-by line of 
credit of €25 million both granted to Amplifon S.p.A.’s French branch and for both of which 
the lending bank has the right to request prepayment, neither the Company nor any of its 
subsidiaries has entered into agreements subject to amendment or termination in event of 
changes in the control of the Company party to the agreement.

Restrictions on Share Transfers

At 31 December 2008 there were no restrictions on share transfers.

Shareholder Agreements

At 31 December 2008, there were no shareholders’ agreements as defi ned in § 122 TUF 
(Consolidated Finance Act).

Direction and Coordination

Pursuant to art. 2497 of the Italian Civil Code Amplifon S.p.A. is not subject to management 
and coordination activities either by its direct parent company Ampliter N.V. or other indirect 
controlling companies. 

It is thought necessary to report that: 
-  Anna Maria Formiggini Holland, sole director of the direct controlling entity Ampliter N.V. and 

Chairman of the Board of Directors of the indirectly controlling entity Amplifi n S.p.A., 
is non-executive Chairman of Amplifon S.p.A.;

-  and that Susan Carol Holland, Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of the indirectly 
controlling entity Amplifi n S.p.A., is non-executive Deputy Chairman of Amplifon S.p.A..

The Director Vanni Emanuele Treves, Member of the Board of Directors of the indirectly controlling 
entity Amplifi n S.p.A. is a non-independent and non-executive Director of Amplifon S.p.A..

It is therefore considered that the mere membership of the Boards of both the Companies and 
its controlling entities does not amount to control or coordinate, since these persons have no 
executive function.

Furthermore, none of the factual indicators commonly recognised as indicating any activity 
amounting to direction or coordination is to be found in Amplifon S.p.A. or its controlling entity.
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Starting in fi nancial year 2001 the Company set up stock option plans requiring capital increases: 
the description of these plans is given in the report and accounts in the section of the notes to 
the accounts entitled ‘Stock options’ (Note 30) and the prospectus prepared pursuant to § 84bis 
of the Consob Issuers Regulation and available on the Company website (www.amplifon.com) at 
the section ‘Investor Relations/Corporate Governance/statutory and codes’.

Employees’ Shareholdings: Mechanism for the Exercise of Voting Rights

There is no specifi c mechanism for the exercise of voting rights should employees hold shares.

Treasury Shares

i) Authorisations of Capital Increases and Purchase of Treasury Shares 

 i.1) Authorisation of Capital Increases 

   On 27 April 2006 an Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting resolved to delegate to the Board of 
Directors for a period of fi ve years from the date of the resolution, the power, pursuant to § 
2443 Civil Code, to carry out a rights issue, on one or more occasions, in instalments if necessary, 
of company capital to the maximum par value of €150,000.00, by issuing 7,500,000 ordinary 
shares with a par value of €0.02 each, cum dividend, to be offered in subscription to employees 
of the Company and its subsidiaries, with the exclusion of option rights pursuant to § 2441 last 
para. Civil Code and §§ 114 bis and 134 para. 2 Law 58/98, as amended or supplemented, to be 
identifi ed on the basis of the strategic importance of the function performed in the Group, it 
being understood that the decisions taken in execution of the authorisation shall also provide 
that, should the capital increase made under the authorisation not be subscribed within the 
term from time to time set (and in any case no later than 31 December 2020), company capital 
shall in any case be considered to have been increased in an amount equal to the subscriptions  
received up to the expiry of the above term. A more detailed description of stock option 
plans is given in the report and accounts in the section of the notes to the accounts 
entitled ‘Stock options’ (Note 30) and the prospectus prepared pursuant to § 84bis of the 
Consob Issuers Regulation and available on the Company website (www.amplifon.com) 
at the section ‘Investor Relations/Corporate Governance/statutory and codes’.

 i.2) Authorisation to Purchase Treasury Shares

  At 30 June 2008 Amplifon S.p.A. held 6,900,000 treasury shares equal to 3.478% of company 
capital, purchased under the powers delegated to the Board of Directors by the Shareholders’ 
Meeting held on 27 April 2006. The Shareholders’ Meeting held on 29 April 2008 authorised the 
Board of Directors to purchase further treasury shares being a maximum 12,942,000 ordinary 
shares with a par value of €0.02 each (equal to 6.52% of current company capital or 10% 
taking into account the 6,900,000 treasury shares already held) at a price no more than 5% 
over or under the reference market price of the previous trading day for each purchase.

  During the current year no treasury shares purchases were carried out.  
  The reason for this programme is that it may be necessary to purchase or sell in 

contingent market situations which might occur and make it advisable to have a policy 
of supporting the liquidity of the share or investment policies, as well as the usefulness of 
treasury shares held as a means of payment in acquisition transactions. 

The Share Trend, Trading Volumes and Market Capitalisation

The chart shows the performance of the Amplifon share and its trading volumes from 2 January 
2008 to 28 February 2009.

At 31 December 2008 market capitalisation was €158.6 million. 

Dealings in the Amplifon share in the screen-based stock market Mercato Telematico Azionario 
showed:

• Average daily value: €1,608,348.03

• Average daily volume: 810,336 shares

•  Total volume traded 205,015,113 shares or 107.04% of the total number of shares comprising 
company capital, net of treasury shares

Company Capital

Structure of Company Capital

At 31 December 2008 company capital was €3,968,400 represented by 198,420,000 ordinary 
shares with a par value of €0.02 each, of which 191,490,000 had equal voting rights and 
6,900,000 shares had suspended rights pursuant to § 2357 ter, para. 2 Civil Code, as being 
treasury shares.

At 31 December 2008 there were no shares with limited voting rights.

At 31 December 2008 there were no other instruments entitling the holder to subscribe newly 
issued shares outstanding.

Number
of Shares

% of 
Company Capital

Listed (in which
markets) or unlisted

Rights and
Obligations

Ordinary Shares 198,420,000 100% MTA- STAR segment -

o/w: shares with limited voting rights - - - -

o/w: shares without voting rights 6,900,000 3.478% - Treasury Shares

Jan Feb Mar Apr Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct NovMay Dec Jan

3.5800

2.1100

0.6400

Feban Feb Mar Apr Jun Jul Aug S OMay

Shareholder information 
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The management takes an active part in the road shows and broker conferences with the 
shareholders and investors, organised in the more important fi nancial markets. The following 
were the main events in which the Company’s management team participated in 2008:

During the year communication continues with the investor community and that of the fi nancial 
analysts: in 2008 management held some 200 one-to-one meetings and conference calls.

The Company has also set aside a section of its website (www.amplifon.com), in which 
important information is available to Shareholders.

Share Coverage

In 2008 further coverage of the Amplifon share was added bringing the total number of brokers 
representing the Company to 14. Over 100 notes on the Group were prepared in 2008.

2009 Financial Calendar 

11 March 2009: Board of Directors to approve the Accounts as at 31.12.2008.

5 May 2009: Board of Directors to approve the Q1-09 quarterly results.

31 July 2009: Board of Directors to approve the First Half Report as at 30.06.2009.

6 November 2009: Board of Directors to approve the Q3-09 quarterly results.

Rights

Shares with Special Rights

At 31 December 2008 there were no shares with special controlling rights.

Restrictions on Voting Rights

At 31 December 2008 the only restrictions on voting rights were those pursuant to § 2357 ter, 
para. 2 Civil Code (suspended voting rights) relating to the treasury shares held by the Company 
as noted in the “Main Shareholders” section.

Internal Dealing

With regard to the rules governing dealing in fi nancial instruments issued by the Company, in 
May 2006 Amplifon adopted a specifi c Internal Dealing Code prepared pursuant to §152-octies 

of Consob’s Issuers Regulation 11971.
Additionally, general principles of proper conduct and confi dentiality to be followed by those 
performing a function within the Group are contained in the Code of Conduct.
Both documents are available in the Company website (www.amplifon.com) under ‘Investor 
Relations/Corporate Governance/statutory and codes’.

Relations with the Financial Market

The Group maintains timely and constant communications with its investors.
The primary objective of the Investor Relations function in Amplifon is to ensure the greatest 
possible transparency, clarity and timeliness of information transmitted to the market and to 
maintain a constant fl ow of information between the Company and the market.
To this end press releases are frequent, regular meetings are held with institutional investors and 
the fi nancial community and constantly updated information is made available on our website.
The head of Investor Relations is Anjelika Chiltsyna, appointed by the Board of Directors on 
30 May 2001 and charged with managing the fl ow of information to shareholders, fi nancial 
analysts and institutional investors, in compliance with the rules governing the transmission of 
information and Company documents.

Investor Relations is a pro-active function affecting both internal and external relations. Senior 
management is kept informed as to the market’s perception of the Company, so as to enable it 
to take the most opportune strategic decisions. 

Every year a Presentation to the Financial Community is held at the Headquarters of the 
Company, in which management analyses the annual results and details the guidelines for the 
future management of the business. On the occasion of the announcement of quarterly results, 
conference-calls to the fi nancial community are regularly made at the end of the Board meeting.  

Date Event Participants

13.02.2008 Italian, Investor Conference 2008, Borsa Italiana, Copenhagen   IRM

17.03.2008 Presentation of FY 2007 results to the Financial Community (held at Amplifon) CEO, CFO, CEO UK,
CEO US, IRM

19.03.2008 London Road Show CEO, CFO IRM

12.05.2008 Conference call: 1Q 2008 Results CEO, CFO, IRM

14. 05.2008 Merrill Lynch Pan European, Biotech & Medical Devices 1-1 Forum 2008, London CFO

10.06.2008 29th Annual Goldman Sachs Global Healthcare Conference, Dana Point California CFO

19.06.2008 Milan Road Show CEO, IRM

07.08.2008 Conference Call: 1H 2008 Results CEO, CFO, IRM

3/4.09.2008 Fifth Annual European Medtech and Healthcare Services Conference, Goldman Sachs, London CEO/CFO

02.10.2008 Paris Road Show CEO/IRM

07.10.2008 ESN European Companies Conference, New York IRM

10.10.2008 Star Conference 2008, Borsa Italiana, London CEO/CFO

14.11.2008 Conference Call: 3Q 2008 Results CEO/CFO/IRM

20.11.2008 London Road show CEO/CFO

CEO: Chief Executive Offi cier    CFO: Chief Financial Offi cier    IRM: Investor Relation Manager

Shareholder information 
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Over 3,000 hearing aid 
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to fi nd the best solution
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Commentary on results

The Group’s 2008 profi t performance, that as regard to recurring operations reported a net result 
of Euro 17,794 thousand, was signifi cantly affected by a £28 million impairment of the goodwill of 
the UK (€29,396 thousand at the 31 December 2008 exchange rate). Due to this, that also reported 
an impairment of deferred tax assets on carryforward losses for an amount of Euro 2,934 thousand, 
Amplifon Group’s income statement shows a loss of €14,536 thousand, as against the €15,540 
thousand profi t of 2007.

Due to this write-down, as against revenues of £35 million (€44.5 million), net capital invested in 
the UK was £23.9 million (€25.1 million) at 31 December 2008 being mainly £11.5 million goodwill 
(€12.1 million) and customer lists worth £11 million (€11.5 million). The latter have a residual life of 
7.5 years and are regularly amortised in the annual amount of £1.5 million. 

Revenue

Revenues from sales and services were €641,439 thousand (€667,938 thousand in 2007) a reduction 
of €26,499 thousand or 4.0%. In the Continental Europe region Amplifon Group has so far managed to 
contain the effects of the general economic crisis, with revenue growth of €27,546 thousand or 6.2%. 
This was not the case in the UK and North America, regions in which revenues contracted sharply 
from 2007 respectively by 38.0% in the UK and 17.9% in North America (27.8% and 11.9% net of 
exchange differences). 

Profi t Performance

In 2008 EBITDA was €74,287 thousand (€92,238 thousand in 2007) a reduction of €17,951 thousand 
or 19.5%: while the Continental Europe region’s results were good – even including an increase in the 
latter part of the year over the same period of 2007 – and those of the UK were fl at, despite a sharp 
fall in turnover due to the rationalisation that was carried out, those of the North America region fell 
signifi cantly, this being the region where the effects of the current economic and fi nancial crisis were 
most severe. 

Changes in Net Debt

Net fi nancial indebtedness fell by €50,168 thousand to €190,614 thousand (from €240,782 thousand 
at 31 December 2007), thanks to substantial cash fl ow from operations and careful management of 
working capital. This was achieved after capital expenditure of €23,234 thousand, acquisitions of €6,730 
thousand and dividends paid in the amount of €7,661 thousand.
 
In addition, thanks to punctual refi nancing of maturing debt, the short-term component was positive 
by €27,490 thousand, as against medium/long-term indebtedness of €218,104 thousand.
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Income Statement

(€ thousands) FY 2008 % FY 2007 %

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total  Recurring Non- 

recurring Total  

Revenues from sales and services 641,439 641,439 100.0% 667,938 667,938 100.0%

Raw materials, consumables and 
supplies and change in raw mate-
rials, consumables and supplies (166,251) (166,251) -25.9% (172,436) (172,436) -25.8%

Personnel expenses (181,299) (181,299) -28.3% (183,168) (183,168) -27.4%

External services (221,243) (221,243) -34.5% (220,785) (220,785) -33.1%

Other income and revenues 3,236 3,236 0.5% 2,286 2,286 0.3%

Other expenses (1,595) (1,595) -0.2% (1,597) (1,597) -0.2%

Gross operating margin (EBITDA) 74,287 74,287 11.6% 92,238 92,238 13.8%

Depreciation and write-downs 
of non-current assets (21,058) (21,058) -3.3% (23,252) (23,252) -3.5%

Operating result before the 
amortization of trademarks, 
customer lists, non 
competition agreements 
and lease rights (EBITA) 53,229 53,229 8.3% 68,986 68,986 10.3%

Amortization and impairment 
of trademarks, customer lists, 
lease rights and non-competition 
agreements and goodwill (8,249) (29,396) (37,645) -5.9% (10,446) (16,904) (27,350) -4.1%

Operating income (EBIT) 44,980 (29,396) 15,584 2.4% 58,540 (16,904) 41,636 6.2%

Income, expenses, 
valuation adjustments 
of fi nancial assets (861) (861) -0.1% (212) (212) 0.0%

Net fi nancial expenses (*) (16,332) (16,332) -2.5% (16,199) (16,199) -2.4%

Exchange differences and 
non hedging instruments (*) (492) (492) -0.1% 125 125 -0.0%

Profi t (loss)  before taxes 27,295 (29,396) (2,101) -0.3% 42,254 (16,904) 25,350 3.8%

Current income taxes (10,443) (10,443) -1.6% (22,475) (22,475) -3.4%

Deferred income taxes 1,199 (2,934) (1,735) -0.3% 9,490 3,300 12,790 1.9%

Total net profi t (loss) 18,051 (32,330) (14,279) -2.2% 29,269 (13,604) 15,665 2.3%

(Profi t) loss of 
minority interests 257 257 0.0% 125 125 0.0%

Group net profi t (loss)  17,794 (32,330) (14,536) -2.3% 29,144 (13,604) 15,540 2.3%

*  This item has been reclassifi ed from 2007 to include the effect in the exchange differences line of the instruments non-hedge accounting 
(mainly forward contracts covering currency, i.e. non-euro, assets and liabilities).

(€ thousands) FY 2007 before reclassifi cation FY 2007 after reclassifi cation

Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Net fi nancial expenses (14,473) (14,473) (16,199) (16,199)

Exchange differences (1,601) (1,601) 125 125

Total (16,074) (16,074) (16,074) (16,074)

EBITDA is the operating result before charging amortisation, depreciation and impairment of both 
tangible and intangible fi xed assets.

EBITA is the operating result before charging amortisation and impairment of customer lists, 
trademarks, non-competition agreements and goodwill arising from business combinations.

EBIT is the operating result before fi nancial income and charges and taxes.

(€ thousands) Q4 2008 % Q4 2007 %

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total  Recurring Non- 

recurring Total  

Revenues from sales and services 186,667 186,667 100.0% 185,247 185,247 100.0%

Raw materials, consumables and 
supplies and change in raw mate-
rials, consumables and supplies (47,856) (47,856) -25.6% (45,184) (45,184) -24.4%

Personnel expenses (47,228) (47,228) -25.3% (44,972) (44,972) -24.3%

External services (63,723) (63,723) -34.1% (64,279) (64,279) -34.7%

Other income and revenues 1,731 1,731 0.9% 931 931 0.5%

Other expenses (1,021) (1,021) -0.5% (671) (671) -0.4%

Gross operating margin (EBITDA) 28,570 28,570 15.3% 31,072 31,072 16.8%

Depreciation and write-downs 
of non-current assets (5,940) (5,940) -3.2% (6,944) (6,944) -3.7%

Operating result before the 
amortization of trademarks, 
customer lists, non 
competition agreements 
and lease rights (EBITA) 22,630 22,630 12.1% 24,128 24,128 13.0%

Amortization and impairment 
of trademarks, customer lists, 
lease rights and non-competition 
agreements and goodwill (2,205) (29,396) (31,601) -16.9% (2,988) (16,904) (19,892) -10.7%

Operating incomle (EBIT) 20,425 (29,396) (8,971) -4.8% 21,140 (16,904) 4,236 2.3%

Income, expenses, 
valuation adjustments of 
fi nancial assets (264) (264) -0.1% 4 4 0.0%

Net fi nancial expenses (*) (4,077) (4,077) -2.2% (4,700) (4,700) -2.5%

Exchange differences and 
non hedging instruments (*) (279) (279) -0.1% (1,879) (1,879) -1.0%

Profi t (loss) before taxes 15,805 (29,396) (13,591) -7.3% 14,565 (16,904) (2,339) -1.3%

Current income taxes (2,799) (2,799) -1.5% (6,149) (6,149) -3.3%

Deferred income taxes (2,321) (2,934) (5,255) -2.8% 3,872 3,300 7,172 3.9%

Total net profi t(loss) 10,685 (32,330) (21,645) -11.6% 12,288 (13,604) (1,316) -0.7%

(Profi t) loss of 
minority interests 57 57 0.0% (18) (18) 0.0%

Group net profi t (loss) 10,628 (32,330) (21,702) -11.6% 12,306 (13,604) (1,298) -0.7%

*  This item has been reclassifi ed from 2007 to include the effect in the exchange differences line of the instruments non-hedge accounting 
(mainly forward contracts covering currency, i.e. non-euro, assets and liabilities).

(€ thousands) Q4 2007 before reclassifi cation Q4 2007 after reclassifi cation

Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Net fi nancial expenses (3,745) (3,745) (4,700) (4,700)

Exchange differences (2,834) (2,834) (1,879) (1,879)

Total (6,579) (6,579) (6,579) (6,579)

Report on Operations at 31 December 2008
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Reclassifi ed Balance Sheet
The reclassifi ed Balance Sheet aggregates assets and liabilities according to the functionality criteria 
of management, subdivided by convention into the following three key functions: investments, 
operations and fi nance.

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Goodwill 240,622 280,112 (39,490)

Non-competition agreements, trademarks, customer lists and lease rights 50,070 59,777 (9,707)

Software, licences, other intangible fi xed assets, in progress and advances 15,848 10,989 4,859

Tangible fi xed assets 56,358 57,654 (1,296)

Financial fi xed assets (1) 16,645 16,375 270

Other non-current fi nancial assets (1) 2,358 2,090 268

Non-current assets 381,901 426,997 (45,096)

Inventories 39,850 37,442 2,408

Trade receivables 99,232 130,422 (31,190)

Other receivables 34,205 33,688 517

Current assets (A) 173,287 201,552 (28,265)

Operating assets 555,188 628,549 (73,361)

Trade payables (88,902) (84,237) (4,665)

Other payables (2) (89,945) (85,787) (4,158)

Provisions for risks and charges (current portion) (640) (1,511) 871

Current liabilities (B) (179,487) (171,535) (7,952)

Net working capital (A) - (B) (6,200) 30,017 (36,217)

Derivative instruments (3) (5,056) 831 (5,887)

Deferred tax assets 61,132 60,673 459

Deferred tax liabilities (26,709) (23,711) (2,998)

Provisions for risks and charges (non-current portion) (21,145) (23,391) 2,246

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts (9,098) (8,374) (724)

Other non-current payables (11) (10) (1)

NET INVESTED CAPITAL 374,814 463,032 (88,218)

Group equity 183,754 221,366 (37,612)

Minority interests 446 884 (438)

Total net equity 184,200 222,250 (38,050)

Net medium and long-term indebtedness 218,104 240,703 (22,599)

Net short-term fi nancial indebtedness (27,490) 79 (27,569)

Total net fi nancial indebtedness 190,614 240,782 (50,168)

OWN FUNDS AND NET FINANCIAL INDEBTEDNESS 374,814 463,032 (88,218)

Notes for reconciling the condensed balance sheet with the statutory balance sheet:

(1)  “Financial fi xed assets” and “Other non-current fi nancial assets” include equity interests valued using the net equity method, fi nancial assets at 
fair value through profi t and loss and other non-current assets.

(2)  “Other Payables” includes other liabilities, accrued liabilities and deferred expense and tax liabilities.
(3)  “Derivative Instruments” includes cash fl ow hedges, fair value hedges and non-hedge accounting items not comprised in the net fi nancial 

position.
 

Condensed Reclassifi ed Cash Flow Statement
The condensed cash fl ow statement represents a synthetic version of the reclassifi ed cash fl ow 
statement detailed in the following pages and its purpose is, starting  from the EBIT, to detail  the 
fl ows generated or absorbed by operating, investing and fi nancing activities.

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

Operating income (EBIT) 15,584 41,636

 Amortization, depreciation and write-downs 58,704 50,602

Provision, other non monetary items and gain/losses from disposals 12,042 11,929

Net fi nancial expenses (15,658) (14,544)

Taxes paid (17,045) (21,493)

Changes in net working capital 30,376 4,351

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) operating activities  (A) 84,003 72,481

Cash fl ow generated (absorbed) by operating  investing activities  (B) (21,256) (25,447)

Free cash fl ow (A+B) 62,747 47,034

Cash fl ow generated (absorbed) by business combinations (C) (6,730) (32,066)

(Purchase) sale of other investments and securities (D) 2,576 2,159

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (B+C+D) (25,410) (55,354)

Cash fl ows provided by (used in) operating activities and investing activities 58,593 17,127

Purchase of treasury shares (41,778)

Dividend distributions (7,661) (6,846)

Capital increases and third parties contributions 353 1,001

Hedging instruments and other changes in non current assets (629) (2,785)

Net cash fl ow from the period 50,656 (33,281)

Opening net fi nancial indebtedness (240,782) (203,806)

Effect of the disposal of assets and of exchange rate fl uctuations on the net fi nancial position (488) (3,695)

Change in net fi nancial position 50,656 (33,281)

Closing net fi nancial indebtedness (190,614) (240,782)

Report on Operations at 31 December 2008
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Indicators
Indicators 31/12/2008 31/12/2007

Net fi nancial indebtedness (€ thousand) 190,614 240,782

Net Equity (€ thousand) 184,200 222,250

Group Net Equity (€ thousand) 183,754 221,366

Net fi nancial indebtedness/ Net Equity 1,03 1,08

Net fi nancial indebtedness/Group Net Equity 1,04 1,09

Net fi nancial indebtedness /EBITDA 2,56 2,61

Earnings per Share (EPS) (€) (0,075386) 0,07982

Diluted EPS (€) (0,075336) 0,07967

Earnings per Share – recurring operations (EPS) (€) 0,092282 0,14969

Diluted EPS – recurring operations (€) 0,092221 0,14942

Net Equity per share (€) 0,959 1,156

Dividend per share (DPS) (€) - 0,04 (*)

Pay out ratio (%) - 50.11% 

Dividend yield (%) - 1.15%

Period-end price 0.828 3.47

Highest price in period (€) 3.609 7.235

Lowest price in period (€) 0.64 3.44

Price/earnings ratio (P/E) (10.91) 42.77

Price/earnings ratio (P/E) – recurring operations (€) 8.91 22.80

Share price/ Net Equity per share 0.863 3.002

Market capitalisation (€ million) 158.6 693.6

Number of shares outstanding 191,520,000 191,520,000

*Dividend paid in 2008 out of 2007 net profi t.

•   The Net fi nancial indebtedness/Net Equity indicator is the ratio of net fi nancial indebtedness to 
total net equity.

•  The Net Financial Indebtedness/Group Net Equity indicator is the ratio of the net fi nancial 
indebtedness to the Group Net Equity.

•  The Net Financial Indebtedness/EBITDA indicator is the ratio of net fi nancial indebtedness to 
EBITDA for the last four quarters.

•  Earnings per share (EPS) (€) is net profi t for the year attributable to the Parent’s ordinary 
shareholders divided by the average weighted number of shares outstanding during the year, 
considering purchases and sales of treasury shares as cancellation or issue of shares.

•  Diluted earnings per share (EPS) (€) is net profi t for the year attributable to the Parent’s 
ordinary shareholders divided by the average weighted number of shares outstanding during the 
year adjusted for the dilution effect of potential shares. In the calculation of shares outstanding, 
purchases and sales of treasury shares are considered as cancellation or issue of shares.

•  Earnings per share – recurring operations (EPS) (€) is net profi t from recurring operations 
for the year attributable to the Parent’s ordinary shareholders divided by the average weighted 
number of shares outstanding during the year, considering purchases and sales of treasury shares as 
cancellation or issue of shares.

•   Diluted earnings per share – recurring operations (EPS) (€) is net profi t from recurring operations 
for the year attributable to the Parent’s ordinary shareholders divided by the average weighted 
number of shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the dilution effect of potential shares. 
In the calculation of shares outstanding, purchases and sales of treasury shares are considered as 
cancellation or issue of shares.

•  Net Equity per share (€) is the ratio of Group equity to the number of outstanding shares, 

•  Dividend per share (DPS) (€) is the dividend paid in the following year resolved by the 
shareholders’ meeting approving the accounts for the year indicated. This indicator is not given in 
interim reports since it is meaningful with reference only to the full year result.

•  Pay out ratio (%) is the ratio of the dividend to EPS.

•  Dividend yield (%) is the ratio of the dividend per share paid in the following year and the share 
price on 31 December of the year indicated.

•  Period-end price (€) is the closing price of the last stock exchange day of the period.

•  Highest price (€) and lowest price (€) are the highest and lowest prices from 1 January to the end 
of the current period.

•  Price/Earnings ratio (P/E) is the ratio of the share market price of the last stock exchange day of 
the period to earnings per share.

•  Price/Earnings ratio (P/E) – recurring operations is the ratio of the share market price of the last 
stock exchange day of the period to earnings per share.

•  Share price/Net equity per share is the ratio of the share closing price of the last stock exchange 
day of the period to net equity per share.

•  Market capitalisation is the closing price of the last stock exchange day of the period multiplied by 
the number of shares outstanding.

•  The number of shares outstanding is the number of issued shares less treasury shares.
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(€ thousands) Q4 2008 Q4 2007

Cont.
Europe

United 
Kingdom 

and 
Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Total Cont. 

Europe

United 
Kingdom 

and 
Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Total

Revenues from 
sales and services 146,329 8,440 31,550 357 (9) 186,667 134,789 15,709 34,574 187 (12) 185,247

Raw materials, 
consumables and 
supplies and change 
in raw materials, 
consumables and 
supplies (29,183) (2,323) (16,200) (159) 9 (47,856) (26,181) (2,432) (16,496) (87) 12 (45,184)

Personnel 
expenses (36,877) (3,936) (6,637) (16) 238 (47,228) (31,515) (7,259) (6,205) 35 (28) (44,972)

External 
services (49,210) (4,483) (9,632) (160) (238) (63,723) (47,418) (8,400) (8,395) (94) 28 (64,279)

Other income 
and revenues 371 1,419 (59) - - 1,731 294 90 547 - - 931

Other expenses (786) (56) (179) - - (1,021) (321) - (350) - - (671)

Gross operating 
margin (EBITDA) 30,644 (939) (1,157) 22 - 28,570 29,648 (2,292) 3,675 41 - 31,072

Depreciation and 
write-downs of 
non-current assets (3,925) (894) (1,114) (7) - (5,940) (4,068) (2,110) (762) (4) - (6,944)

Operating result 
before the amorti-
zation of trademar-
ks, customer lists, 
non competition 
agreements and 
lease rights (EBITA) 26,719 (1,833) (2,271) 15 - 22,630 25,580 (4,402) 2,913 37 - 24,128

Amortization and 
impairment of 
trademarks, 
customer lists, lease 
rights and non-com-
petition agreements 
and goodwill (1,166) (29,987) (448) - - (31,601) (1,237) (18,586) (69) - - (19,892)

Operating 
income (EBIT) 25,553 (31,820) (2,719) 15 - (8,971) 24,343 (22,988) 2,844 37 - 4,236

Income, 
expenses, valuation 
adjustments of 
fi nancial assets (264) 4

Net fi nancial 
expenses (*) (4,077) (4,700)

Exchange 
differences and 
non hedging 
instruments (*) (279) (1,879)

Profi t (loss) 
before taxes (13,591) (2,339)

Current year taxes (8,054) 1,023

Total net profi t
(loss) (21,645) (1,316)

(Profi t) loss of 
minority interests 57 (18)

Group net profi t 
(loss) (21,702) (1,298)

Consolidated Income Statement by Geographical Area

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

Cont. 
Europe

United 
Kingdom 

and 
Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Total Cont. 

Europe

United 
Kingdom 

and 
Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Total

Revenues from 
sales and services 471,492 44,532 124,311 1,142 (38) 641,439 443,946 71,786 151,458 765 (17) 667,938

Raw materials, 
consumables and 
supplies and change 
in raw materials, 
consumables and 
supplies (96,242) (9,791) (59,738) (518) 38 (166,251) (90,706) (12,703) (68,689) (355) 17 (172,436)

Personnel 
expenses (133,774) (21,142) (26,615) (44) 276 (181,299) (120,035) (32,882) (30,169) (24) (58) (183,168)

External 
services (162,655) (22,251) (35,615) (446) (276) (221,243) (152,719) (32,818) (35,026) (280) 58 (220,785)

Other income 
and revenues 944 2,075 217 - - 3,236 598 209 1,479 - - 2,286

Other expenses (1,152) (66) (377) - - (1,595) (804) (1) (792) - - (1,597)

Gross operating 
margin (EBITDA) 78,613 (6,643) 2,183 134 - 74,287 80,280 (6,409) 18,261 106 - 92,238

Depreciation and 
write-downs of 
non-current assets (14,652) (2,940) (3,437) (29) - (21,058) (13,792) (6,478) (2,957) (25) - (23,252)

Operating result 
before the amorti-
zation of trademar-
ks, customer lists, 
non competition 
agreements and 
lease rights (EBITA) 63,961 (9,583) (1,254) 105 - 53,229 66,488 (12,887) 15,304 81 - 68,986

Amortization and 
impaiment of 
trademarks, 
customer lists, lease 
rights and non-com-
petition agreements 
and goodwill (4,698) (31,239) (1,708) - - (37,645) (4,409) (21,721) (1,220) - - (27,350)

Operating 
income (EBIT) 59,263 (40,822) (2,962) 105 - 15,584 62,079 (34,608) 14,084 81 - 41,636

Income, 
expenses, valuation 
adjustments of 
fi nancial assets (861) (212)

Net fi nancial 
expenses (*) (16,332) (16,199)

Exchange 
differences and 
non hedging 
instruments (*) (492) 125

Profi t (loss) 
before taxes (2,101) 25,350

Current year taxes (12,178) (9,685)

Total net profi t
(loss) (14,279) 15,665

(Profi t) loss of 
minority interests 257 125

Group net profi t 
(loss) (14,536) 15,540

8180
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Revenues from sales and services

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Q4 2008 Q4 2007

Revenues from sales and services 641,439 667,938 186,667 185,247

Consolidated revenues from sales and services were €641,439 thousand in 2008, a reduction of 
€26,499 thousand or 4.0 % from 2007.
 
After a weak beginning of the year there was a steady improvement up to the last quarter in which 
revenues were €186,667 thousand, a small increase (€1,420 thousand) over the €185,247 thousand 
fi gure of Q4 2007 despite the effect of US dollar and pound sterling depreciation.

The following table shows the distribution of revenues by region. In contrast to previous accounts the 
amounts shown are gross of intercompany eliminations, which are given on a specifi c line.

 

(€ thousands) FY 2008 %  FY 2007 % Change Change % Exchange 
diff. (i)

Italy 192,443 30.0% 187,819 28.1% 4,624 2.5%  

France 90,216 14.1% 86,812 13.0% 3,404 3.9%  

Netherlands 85,217 13.3% 80,176 12.0% 5,041 6.3%  

Germany 41,945 6.5% 35,610 5.3% 6,335 17.8%  

Iberian peninsula 30,857 4.8% 27,110 4.1% 3,747 13.8%  

Switzerland 27,840 4.3% 24,154 3.6% 3,686 15.3% 938

Hungary 3,799 0.6% 2,572 0.4% 1,227 47.7% (2)

Intercompany 
eliminations (825) -0.1% (307) 0.0% (518) 168.7%  

Total Continental Europe 471,492 73.5% 443,946 66.5% 27,546 6.2% 936

United Kingdom and Ireland 44,532 6.9% 71,786 10.7% (27,254) -38.0% (7,096)

United Kingdom and Ireland 44,532 6.9% 71,786 10.7% (27,254) -38.0% (7,096)

USA - Canada 124,311 19.4% 151,458 22.7% (27,147) -17.9% (9,059)

Total America 124,311 19.4% 151,458 22.7% (27,147) -17.9% (9,059)

Egypt 1,142 0.2% 765 0.1% 377 49.3% (39)

Total Africa 1,142 0.2% 765 0.1% 377 49.3% (39)

Intercompany eliminations (38) 0.0% (17) 0.0% (21) 123.5%  

Total 641,439 100.0% 667,938 100.0% (26,499) -4.0% (15,258)

Continental Europe

Consolidated revenues from sales and services in the Continental Europe market were €471,492 
thousand in 2008 as against €443,946 thousand in 2007, a €27,546 thousand or 6.2% increase.

The increase was not evenly spread over the year. The year began with a low backlog due to a strong 
selling push at the end of 2007 and then steadily improved until reaching an especially positive trend 
in the fourth quarter despite the deterioration of the overall macro-economic scenario. 

At 31 December 2008 the Group operated 1,264 stores in Continental Europe, as against 1,218 
at 31 December 2007.

Italy

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 39,518 40,304 (786) -1.9%

II quarter 52,515 51,380 1,135 2.2%

I Half-year 92,033 91,684 349 0.4%

III quarter 39,123 36,627 2,496 6.8%

IV quarter 61,287 59,508 1,779 3.0%

II Half-year 100,410 96,135 4,275 4.4%

Total year 192,443 187,819 4,624 2.5%

Revenues from sales and services were €192,443 thousand in 2008 and €187,819 thousand in 2007 
giving an increase of €4,624 thousand or 2.5%.

Italy’s hearing-aid market is still under-penetrated and this enabled Amplifon to grow at an estimated 
annual rate 2.5% over in spite of the diffi culties at the beginning of the year due to a low backlog. 
Subsequently the increased success of advertising campaigns, already visible in end-June order-books 
and the fi rst effects of Amplifon’s revamping of its organisational structure in spring made possible 
a strong recovery in the second half of the year. The Q4 performance was very gratifying since both 
sales and order-books improved signifi cantly over 2007 despite the particularly diffi cult macro-
economic scenario.

This positive out-turn was made possible inter alia by the contribution of our marketing and 
communication area, which launched a new image during 2008 and where the total investment rose 
from €13 million in 2007 to €16 million in 2008, an increase of 23%. Part of this increase was due to 
the greater length of the “Prova Gratuita” [“Free Tests”] campaign and its TV commercials. The entire 
campaign was in line with and in support of Amplifon’s marketing strategy in Italy which again in 2008 
aimed to improve the customer mix, seeking to convert consumers from the public to the private 
sector (‘Social’ volumes fell by 7% offset by growth in ‘Paid Up’). Turnover relating to hearing-aid sales 
increased, though volumes were stable, due to the different customer mix and the higher subsidy paid 
in 2008 in the social market, which rose from €594 to €631 per hearing aid, a rise of 6.1%.

In 2008 Amplifon opened 13 new locations in Italy: the number of stores was 389 in December 2007 
and is now 402. In some of these new standards of store quality were achieved in line with the new 
image and based on the principles of ease of access and on breaking down the stigma.
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France

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 22,560 21,824 736 3.4%

II quarter 24,078 23,161 917 4.0%

I Half-year 46,638 44,985 1,653 3.7%

III quarter 17,787 17,809 (22) -0.1%

IV quarter 25,791 24,018 1,773 7.4%

II Half-year 43,578 41,827 1,751 4.2%

Total year 90,216 86,812 3,404 3.9%

Revenues from sales and services were €90,216 thousand in 2008 as against €86,812 thousand in 
2007, an increase of €3,404 thousand or 3.9%.
 
The French market is still notably fragmented and was driven by the increase of sales in the 
‘Independent’ channel and that of the Mutualistes (cooperatives).

Amplifon’s positive performance was due to the renewed vigour and effectiveness of its sales 
network in almost all regions and the renewal of its product mix and the number of binaural fi ttings 
(increasing customer satisfaction by fi tting two hearing aids operating synchronously instead of 
just one).
In France, after years of being seen as a ‘medical’ brand, Amplifon seeks to become the market leader 
as a retailer through a renewed programme of communication aimed at both the end user and the 
medical profession. Investment in marketing grew by 22% from €5.6 million to €6.8 million. This 
strategy was supported in 2008 by extensive sales force training programmes, which aimed principally 
to improve the relationship with the patient/customer, rather than product knowledge only. 
New tools such as AmpliSolution were introduced in support of this approach to the customer.
 
Amplifon’s product mix is still positioned in the mid-high band, priority being given to advanced 
products, in terms of both performance and practicality, and sales of accessories and services also 
increased by 7%.

At 31 December 2008 there were 326 stores in France, eight more than the 318 units at 
31 December 2007. 

The Netherlands

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 15,611 15,956 (345) -2.2%

II quarter 19,635 18,732 903 4.8%

I Half-year 35,246 34,688 558 1.6%

III quarter 19,217 18,580 637 3.4%

IV quarter 30,754 26,908 3,846 14.3%

II Half-year 49,971 45,488 4,483 9.9%

Total year 85,217 80,176 5,041 6.3%

Revenues from sales and services were €85,217 thousand in 2008 as against €80,176 thousand in 
2007 – an increase of €5,041 thousand or 6.3%, due, as to 1.5%, to organic growth and as 
to 2.8% to the opening of new stores, the remaining 2% being attributable to acquisitions made in 
the Rotterdam area.

In 2008 sales in the Dutch market were severely conditioned by news relating to insurance 
reimbursements and the tax deductibility of medical expenses: at the end of 2007 there was a 
slowdown of order acquisition given expectations of an increase in subsidy and tax deductibility 
in 2008; this was the cause of the contraction in the fi rst quarter of 2008; whereas at the end of 
2008 there was a signifi cant increase in both tests and sales due to the expectation that insurance 
reimbursements and tax deductibility were to be cut.
Other factors gave the sales force greater drive and motivation and consequently sales benefi ted: 
management changes were made in September; there were noteworthy investments in marketing, 
where expenditure increased by 12% over 2007, through initiatives providing local business support 
and incisive direct marketing and intensive middle management training was undertaken. 

Coverage is through 158 stores, of which 11 were added in 2008.
 

Germany

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 9,396 7,253 2,143 29.5%

II quarter 11,175 8,324 2,851 34.2%

I Half-year 20,571 15,577 4,994 32.1%

III quarter 10,369 9,568 801 8.4%

IV quarter 11,005 10,465 540 5.2%

II Half-year 21,374 20,033 1,341 6.7%

Total year 41,945 35,610 6,335 17.8%

Revenues from sales and services were €41,945 thousand in 2008 as against €35,610 thousand in 
2007 and increase of €6,335 thousand or 17.8%.

This growth was mainly due, as to 14.5%, to consolidation for the whole period of sales by 
acquisitions made in the fi rst half of 2007, but was also organic as to the remaining 3.3%.

In 2008 the Management Team was completed with the appointment of the Market Director and the 
CFO and thus the fi nal stage of integration of the acquisitions made over the previous three years was 
begun through brand unifi cation and implementation of common strategy.

The German market is the largest in Europe, but is extremely fragmented, with some 3,300 stores, 
Amplifon had 158 locations at 31 December 2008 (as against 159 at the end December 2007) 
and ranks third in terms of store numbers.
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Iberian Peninsula

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 7,937 6,773 1,164 17.2%

II quarter 8,449 7,692 757 9.8%

I Half-year 16,386 14,465 1,921 13.3%

III quarter 6,255 5,457 798 14.6%

IV quarter 8,216 7,188 1,028 14.3%

II Half-year 14,471 12,645 1,826 14.4%

Total year 30,857 27,110 3,747 13.8%

Revenues from sales and services were €30,857 thousand in 2008 and €27,110 thousand in 2007, an 
increase of €3,747 thousand or 13.8%.
 
After several years of growth by acquisition, in 2008 Amplifon concentrated on integrating its 
acquisitions and the growth over 2007 was almost entirely organic, in terms of both volumes and 
turnover. This fi gure is all the more signifi cant considering the very diffi cult overall economic situation 
and that it is a market without state subsidies or contributions for the purchase of hearing aids.

This result was achieved thanks inter alia to precise actions taken by the local management including 
(i) raising the audioprothesis’ awareness of the importance of binaural fi tting (the binaural rate rose 
from 1.34 to 1.44 generating a 7.5% volume increase with the same number of customers; (ii) store 
staff training on business and sales topics; (iii) specifi c marketing initiatives such as direct mailing 
to stimulate repurchase and free testing and (iv) new product launches, highly appreciated by our 
customers; together with very satisfactory management of the franchisee chain acquired in past years 
through our Bioacustica associate.

Coverage is through 96 direct stores and 24 franchised stores (these numbered respectively 85 and 20 
at 31 December 2007).

Switzerland

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 5,889 5,892 (3) -0.1%

II quarter 7,088 6,128 960 15.7%

I Half-year 12,977 12,020 957 8.0%

III quarter 6,945 6,104 841 13.8%

IV quarter 7,918 6,030 1,888 31.3%

II Half-year 14,863 12,134 2,729 22.5%

Total year 27,840 24,154 3,686 15.3%

Period (CHF thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter                      9,430                      9,523                         (93) -1.0%

II quarter                    11,418                    10,090                      1,328 13.2%

I Half-year                    20,848                    19,613                      1,235 6.3%

III quarter                    11,191                    10,056                      1,135 11.3%

IV quarter                    12,154                    10,009                      2,145 21.4%

II Half-year                    23,345                    20,065                      3,280 16.3%

Total year                    44,193                    39,678                      4,515 11.4%

Revenues from sales and services were €27,840 thousand in 2008 as against €24,154 thousand in 
2007, an increase of €3,686 thousand or 15.3%, of which €938 thousand and 3.9% were due to the 
appreciation of the Swiss franc against the Euro.

The fi rst quarter of 2007 was more or less in line with Q1 2007, thanks inter alia to an organisational 
change that entailed the arrival of a new Market Director completely dedicated to this market, 
but from the second quarter on growth was steady up to the brilliant result of the closing months 
of the year.

This result was achieved mainly thanks to (i) constant targeted marketing initiatives, both local and 
nationwide and (ii) the reorganisation of roles and the sales force, including an increase in store staff 
with the aim of resolving once and for all the problem of the shortage of audioprothesis and the 
slowness of the testing process. Better distribution of the workload made it possible to close many 
more sales than previously, thus preventing the accumulation of open orders.

There are 71 stores, of which one was opened in 2008.
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Hungary

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 434 979 (545) -55.7%

II quarter 694 402 292 72.6%

I Half-year 1,128 1,381 (253) -18.3%

III quarter 740 396 344 86.9%

IV quarter 1,931 795 1,136 142.9%

II Half-year 2,671 1,191 1,480 124.3%

Total year 3,799 2,572 1,227 47.7%

Period (UHF thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter                  112,527                  246,999                 (134,472) -54.4%

II quarter                  173,445                    98,839                    74,606 75.5%

I Half-year                  285,972                  345,838                   (59,866) -17.3%

III quarter                  176,465                  100,083                    76,382 76.3%

IV quarter                  493,148                  200,666                  292,482 145.8%

II Half-year                  669,613                  300,749                  368,864 122.6%

Total year                  955,585                  646,587                  308,998 47.8%

Revenues from sales and services were €3,799 thousand in 2008 as against €2,572 thousand in 2007, 
an increase of €1,227 thousand or 47.7%.

This sharp rise in turnover was directly due to the Government policy on subsidies for the purchase of 
hearing aids. In 2007 they had been reduced, but starting in May 2008 they were restored.
This, togheter with the reorganisation activites undertaken, made it possible to raise the category of 
the products sold.
 
Cochlear implant sales also increased under contracts for supply to both private and public sector 
clinics.

Coverage is through 18 stores, unchanged since 31 December 2007.
 

UK and Ireland

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 11,956 20,378 (8,422) -41.3%

II quarter 12,936 18,024 (5,088) -28.2%

I Half-year 24,892 38,402 (13,510) -35.2%

III quarter 11,200 17,676 (6,476) -36.6%

IV quarter 8,440 15,708 (7,268) -46.3%

II Half-year 19,640 33,384 (13,744) -41.2%

Total year 44,532 71,786 (27,254) -38.0%

Period (GBP thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter                      9,050                    13,665                     (4,615) -33.8%

II quarter                    10,246                    12,242                     (1,996) -16.3%

I Half-year                    19,296                    25,907                     (6,611) -25.5%

III quarter                      8,928                    12,027                     (3,099) -25.8%

IV quarter                      7,236                    11,192                     (3,956) -35.4%

II Half-year                    16,164                    23,219                     (7,055) -30.4%

Total year                    35,460                    49,126                   (13,666) -27.8%

Revenues from sales and services were €44,532 thousand in 2008 as against €71,786 thousand in 
2007, a reduction of €27,254 thousand or 38.0% of which €7,096 thousand and 9.9% were due to 
the depreciation of sterling against the euro.

At 31 December 2008 local currency revenue was £35,460 thousand as against £49,126 thousand at 
31 December 2007 a reduction of 27.8%.

The economic recession in the UK was and is deeper than in the rest of Europe. The British Consumer 
Confi dence index fell from 99 in September 2007 to 85 in December 2007 and down to 48 in 
December 2008 and 40 in January 2009. Given this adverse scenario, the sector in which Amplifon 
operates was severely affected, not least by the Government’s efforts to improve the service offered 
to national health patients: in the UK hearing aids are distributed free and the private sector’s raison 
d’être is largely based on customers interested in the higher level of products and services granted to 
the ones offered by the public sector.

The company’s business performance was negative: there was a serious loss of volume – of about 40% 
- for the year as a whole. Turnover generated by services also contracted, by some 27%. 

To deal with this situation a thorough-going reorganisation was carried out in the fi rst half of the year 
with the dual aim of integrating the UK businesses into the Group’s business model and rationalising 
the sales organisation to realign the cost structure with lower revenues.

In 2008 the number of sales locations was cut from 146 to 141. This reduction mainly consisted of 
eliminating overlapping already existing at the time of the 2006 acquisition. As well as our proprietary 
stores, there are 84 contact points (as against 75 at 31 December 2007). The increase was mainly due 
to an agreement reached with the Sam McCauley pharmacy chain in Ireland.
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North America

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 31,591 39,424 (7,833) -19.9%

II quarter 30,585 39,202 (8,617) -22.0%

I Half-year 62,176 78,626 (16,450) -20.9%

III quarter 30,584 38,258 (7,674) -20.1%

IV quarter 31,551 34,574 (3,023) -8.7%

II Half-year 62,135 72,832 (10,697) -14.7%

Total year 124,311 151,458 (27,147) -17.9%

Period (USD thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter                    47,311                    51,669                     (4,358) -8.4%

II quarter                    47,845                    52,830                     (4,985) -9.4%

I Half-year                    95,156                  104,499                     (9,343) -8.9%

III quarter                    45,996                    52,628                     (6,632) -12.6%

IV quarter                    41,678                    50,443                     (8,765) -17.4%

II Half-year                    87,674                  103,071                   (15,397) -14.9%

Total year                  182,830                  207,570                   (24,740) -11.9%

The North America result consolidates revenues from sales and services generated by the US and Canada. 

Revenues from sales and services were €124,311 thousand in 2008 as against €151,458 thousand in 
2007, a reduction of €27,147 thousand or 17.9%, of which €9,059 thousand and 6.0% were due to 
depreciation of the US dollar against the euro.

At 31 December 2008 local currency revenues were US$182,830 thousand as against US$207,570 
thousand at 31 December 2007 – a reduction of 11.9%.

Together with the UK, North America was the region most severely affected by the economic 
recession. Consumption and per capita spend fell sharply: the Consumer Confi dence Index had peaked 
at 110.3 in 2007; by December 2008 it was down to 38.6 only to fall still further to 37.7 
in January 2009.

In this scenario Amplifon began to lose turnover right from the fi rst quarter as the above table shows. 
This drop was also partly due to the initial lack of a strong management structure to coordinate and 
direct the company at a time of special diffi culty for the sector. This structure was rebuilt during the 
year, but – not least because of the worsening of the macro-economic situation in the same period – 
it did not succeed in returning the expected results.

Major diffi culties were experienced in the Sonus Clinics chain (directly managed stores) where there 
was a shortage of specialised staff (audioprothesists) in some areas (Minnesota and Oregon) and 
some negative performances by the Agents model.

Amplifon therefore intensifi ed its efforts in the indirect channel, especially that of franchisees 
operating under the Miracle Ear brand, by developing a new message to offer to the market, new 

business support systems (CRM) and improvements in operating effi ciency. However, the weakness 
of the economy and growing competitive pressure caused prices to be reduced, giving an estimated 
effect of US$5.7 million of lost revenues at the same volume level as 2007.

The HearPo wholesale channel showed good growth, with a signifi cant increase in new operators and 
growing cooperation with some large insurance groups. 

In North America Amplifon operates through 263 proprietary stores, 1,402 franchisees and 2,057 
stores reached through the wholesale channel. At 31 December 2007 proprietary stores were 260, 
franchisees were 1,405 and stores reached through the wholesale channel were 2,028.

Africa

Period (€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter 221 161 60 37.3%

II quarter 240 196 44 22.4%

I Half-year 461 357 104 29.1%

III quarter 324 221 103 46.6%

IV quarter 357 187 170 90.9%

II Half-year 681 408 273 66.9%

Total year 1,142 765 377 49.3%

Period (EGP thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change Change %

I quarter                      1,822                      1,202                        620 51.6%

II quarter                      2,014                      1,500                        514 34.3%

I Half-year                      3,836                      2,702                      1,134 42.0%

III quarter                      2,631                      1,711                        920 53.8%

IV quarter                      2,665                      1,500                      1,165 77.7%

II Half-year                      5,296                      3,211                      2,085 64.9%

Total year                      9,132                      5,913                      3,219 54.4%

Revenues from sales and services, in Egypt, were €1,142 thousand in 2008 as against €765 thousand 
in 2007 – an increase of €377 thousand or 49.3%, despite the depreciation of the Egyptian pound 
against the Euro, which caused a revenue reduction of €39 thousand.

Coverage is through 8 stores, unchanged since 31 December 2007.
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Gross operating margin (EBITDA)

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Q4 2008 Q4 2007

Gross operating margin (EBITDA) 74,287 92,238 28,570 31,072

The gross operating margin (EBITDA) was €74,287 thousand in 2008 as against €92,238 thousand in 
2007 – a reduction of €17,951 thousand or 19.5%. The EBITDA margin also fell to 11.6% from 13.8% 
in 2007, a 2.2% difference. In Q4 EBITDA was €28,570 thousand and the EBITDA margin was 15.3%, a 
reduction of € 2,502 thousand or 8.1% from the Q4 2007 fi gure of €31,072 thousand and an EBITDA 
margin of 16.8%.

Distribution of EBITDA by Region

(€ thousands) FY 2008 % of sales FY 2007 % of sales Change Change %

 Continental Europe 78,613 16.7% 80,280 18.1% (1,667) -2.1%

 UK and Ireland (6,643) -14.9% (6,409) -8.9% (234) -3.7%

 North America 2,183 1.8% 18,261 12.1% (16,078) -88.0%

 Africa 134 11.7% 106 13.9% 28 26.4%

Total 74,287 11.6% 92,238 13.8% (17,951) -19.5%

 

Q4 2008 % of sales Q4 2007 % of sales Change Change %

 Continental europe 30,644 20.9% 29,648 22.0% 996 3.4%

 Uk and ireland (939) -11.1% (2,292) -14.6% 1,353 59.0%

 North america (1,157) -3.7% 3,675 10.6% (4,832) -131.5%

 Africa 22 5.9% 41 21.9% (19) -46.3%

Total 28,570 15.3% 31,072 16.8% (2,502) -8.1%

Continental Europe

EBITDA was €78,613 thousand in 2008 as against €80,280 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of €1,667 
thousand or 2.1%. The EBITDA margin fell by 1.4% from 18.1% in 2007 to 16.7% in 2008.

In Q4 2008 only, EBITDA increased over that of Q4 2007, rising from €29,648 thousand to 
€30,644 thousand – an increase of €996 thousand or 3.4%. The EBITDA margin fell by 1.1%, 
from 22.0% to 20.9%.

Total operating costs were €392,879 thousand – an 8% increase over 2007.

Cost of sales was more or less stable, remaining at 20.4% of turnover, which showed that supplier 
relationships were based on fairness.

Payroll rose by 11.5% over 2007, due to (i) consolidation of the 2007 German acquisitions for the 
full year, (ii) the cost of staff hired to strengthen the network, (iii) acquisitions made in Spain and 
France in 2008 and (iv) the cost of reorganisations carried out during the year including termination 
payments to key managers amounting to €1,514 thousand.

Despite an increased amount, the cost of external services had the same ratio to turnover of 34.5%: 
higher marketing expense and rentals were absorbed by operating effi ciency gains. This item includes 
certain events not connected with the Group’s usual business, viz.: (i) provisions amounting to a 
charge of €1,847 thousand and (ii) stamp duty on the capital increase carried out by Amplifon Iberica 
S.A. amounting to a charge of €240 thousand.

UK and Ireland

EBITDA was negative €6,643 thousand in 2008 as against negative €6,409 thousand in 2007, i.e. 
lower by €234 thousand or 3.7%, while the negative EBITDA margin increased from 8.9% to 14.9% - 
a difference of 6.0%. 

In Q4 2008 only EBITDA improved over Q4 2007 from negative €2,292 thousand to negative €939 
thousand - an improvement of €1,353 thousand or 59.0%. The EBITDA margin improved from 
negative 14.6% to negative 11.1% - a difference of 3.5%.

The contraction in volumes due to a sharp fall in sales given the diffi cult economic situation reduced 
discounts applied by suppliers and the cost of sales consequently rose from an incidence of 17.7% to 
22.0% of turnover – a difference of 4.3%.

Fixed costs (i.e. payroll and external services) fell sharply following the reorganisation from €65,701 
thousand to €43,393 thousand – a 34% reduction. This enabled EBITDA to be practically unchanged 
despite the sharp fall in revenue, which however benefi ted from uses of the credit loss provision, net 
of allocations, of €796 thousand.

Other income includes a capital gain of €1,117 thousand arising from the disposal of an equity 
interest in Amplivox, a 75%-owned subsidiary which produces hearing measurement devices. 
This transaction was undertaken with the intention of increasing the focus on Amplifon Group core 
business.

North America

EBITDA was €2,183 thousand in 2008 as against €18,261 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of €16,078 
thousand or 88.0%. The EBITDA margin fell by 10.3% from 12.1% in 2007 to 1.8% in 2008.

In Q4 2008 EBITDA fell from the Q4 2007 fi gure of €3,675 thousand to negative €1,157 thousand – 
lower by €4,832 thousand or 131.5%. The incidence on revenues from sales and services fell by 14.3% 
from 10.6% to negative 3.7%.

This sharp reduction of margin was due to lower volumes caused by the severe economic crisis. 
The contribution margin fell by €18,197 thousand or 22%. The reorganisation of some distribution 
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channels and of the corporate centre made possible an 11.8% reduction in payroll. The cost of 
external services increased largely due to marketing expense both for the direct channels and for 
the franchisee networks and were also affected by increased credit provisions which were €1,016 
thousand net of uses.

Africa

EBITDA generated in Egypt was €134 thousand at 31 December 2008 (EBITDA margin 11.7%) as 
against €106 thousand (EBITDA margin 13.9%) in 2007 – an increase of €28 thousand or 26.4%.
The EBITDA margin fell by 2.2% from 13.9% in 2007 to 11.7% in 2008.

In Q4 2008 EBITDA was €22 thousand – a reduction of €19 thousand from Q4 2007.
The EBITDA margin fell by 16%, from 21.9% to 5.9%.

Operating income (EBIT)

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Operating income (EBIT) 44,980 (29,396) 15,584 58,540 (16,904) 41,636

(€ thousands) Q4 2008 Q4 2007

Operating income (EBIT) 20,425 (29,396) (8,971) 21,140 (16,904) 4,236

EBIT was €15,584 thousand in 2008 as against €41,636 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of €26,052 
thousand or 62.6%. The EBIT margin fell by 3.8% from 6.2% in 2007 to 2.4% in 2008.

At the end of 2008, as required by IAS 36, we wrote down UK goodwill in the amount of £28 million 
(€29,396 thousand at the 31 December 2008 exchange rate). This non-recurrent change had a severe 
effect on Group EBIT.
 
Net of UK goodwill and brand write-downs respectively in 2008 and 2007, current year EBIT would 
have been €44,980 thousand in 2008 and €58,540 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of €13,560 
thousand or 23.2%, lower than the reduction in EBIT described above – and the EBIT margin would 
have been 7.0% compared to 8.8% in 2007. In Q4 2008, net of the mentioned write-downs, the 
reduction in EBIT from Q4 2007 would be reduced to €715 thousand or 3.4%.

Distribution of EBIT by Region

(€ thousands) FY 2008 % of sales FY 2007 % of sales Change Change %

Continental Europe 59,263 12.6% 62,079 14.0% (2,816) -4.5%

UK and Ireland (40,822) -91.7% (34,608) -48.2% (6,214) -18.0%

North America (2,962) -2.4% 14,084 9.3% (17,046) -121.0%

Africa 105 9.2% 81 10.6% 24 29.6%

Total 15,584 2.4% 41,636 6.2% (26,052) -62.6%

 (€ thousands) Q4 2008 % of sales Q4 2007 % of sales Change Change %

Continental Europe 25,553 17.5% 24,343 18.1% 1,210 5.0%

UK and Ireland (31,820) -377.0% (22.988) -146.3% (8,832) -38.4%

North America (2,719) -8.6% 2,844 8.2% (5,563) -195.6%

Africa 15 3.6% 37 19.8% (22) -59.5%

Total (8,971) -4.8% 4,236 2.3% (13,207) -311.8%

Continental Europe

EBIT was €59,263 thousand in 2008 as against €62,079 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of €2,816 
thousand or 4.5%. The reduction was closely connected with that of EBITDA as described above and 
the increased depreciation relating to capital expenditure and acquisitions made in 2007. 

UK and Ireland

EBIT was negative €40,822 thousand in 2008 as against negative €34,608 thousand in 2007 – lower 
by €6,214 thousand or 18.0%. Net of non-recurrent charges (the €29,396 thousand write-down of 
goodwill in 2008 and the €16,904 advance amortisation of brands in 2007) EBIT improved by €6,242 
thousand over 31 December 2007 benefi ting both from lower depreciation and amortisation and from 
the depreciation of sterling against the euro.

North America

EBIT was negative €2,962 thousand in 2008 as against €14,084 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of 
€17,046 or 121.0%. This reduction was directly due to the change in EBITDA as described above. 

 
Africa

EBIT was €105 thousand in 2008 as against €81 thousand in 2007 – an increase of €24 thousand 
or 29.6%.
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Profi t (loss) before taxes

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Profi t (loss) before taxes 27,295 (29,396) (2,101) 42,254 (16,904) 25,350

(€ thousands) Q4 2008 Q4 2007

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Profi t (loss) before taxes 15,805 (29,396) (13,591) 14,565 (16,904) (2,339)

In 2008 profi t before tax was negative €2,101 thousand as against €25,350 thousand in 2007. 
The €27,451 thousand (-108.3%) reduction was due, as to €12,492 thousand, to the increased UK 
goodwill write-down as compared to the 2007 write-down of brands and, in respect of the difference, 
to the reduction in operating profi t as described above.

In Q4 2008 pre-tax profi t net of non-recurrent write-downs increased from €14,565 thousand to 
€15,805 thousand, i.e. by 8.5%. 

Net fi nance cost was €16,322 thousand at 31 December 2008 as compared to €16,199 thousand at 
31 December 2007, which however was affected by a charge of €2,691 thousand for the hedge of the 
UK investment. Net of this amount, net fi nance cost increased by €2,824 thousand, due, as to €1,014 
thousand, to the cost of two forfaiting transactions involving debts of the Italian public sector with a 
face value of €45,580 thousand and, in respect of the remaining amount, to the effect of interest rate 
increases over those of 2007 together with higher average indebtedness. Only in the latter part of the 
year interest rates begin to fall, but this has had as yet no effect on the level of interest payable since 
more than half of debt has been swapped for fi xed rate and the Group has a policy of maintaining high 
liquidity in times of credit squeeze which bears lower rates of interest than those paid on borrowings. 

Net Profi t (loss) attributable to the Group

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Net Profi t (loss) attributable to the Group 17,794 (32,330) (14,536) 29,144 (13,604) 15,540

(€ thousands) Q4 2008 Q4 2007

 Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Net Profi t (loss) attributable to the Group 10,628 (32,330) (21,702) 12,306 (13,604) (1,298)

The reduction in net result of €30,076 thousand was largely due to the reduction in operating profi t 
as described above.

Non-recurrent items – as well as the UK goodwill write-down of € 29,396 thousand – also included 
write-downs, totalling €2,934 thousand, of deferred tax assets relating to prior-year tax losses 
sustained in the UK. These tax losses had indefi nite validity, but the severe economic crisis, which 
worsened in the last quarter of 2008, made their use less probable for the next fi ve 5 years and 
therefore, in accordance with IAS 12, they were written down. The amount of the write-down 
concerned, as to €1,180 thousand, deferred tax assets relating to prior-year losses brought forward at 
31 December 2007 and, as to €1,754 thousand, losses accounted for in the fi rst three quarters 
of 2008.

In Q4 2008, net profi t attributable to the Group, net of the effect of the UK write-downs would have 
been €1,678 thousand or 14.0% lower than the fi gure for Q4 2007.
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Balance Sheets by Geographical Area

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

Cont. 
Europe

United 
Kingdom 

and 
Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Total Cont.

Europe

United 
Kingdom 

and 
Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Total

Goodwill 164,909 12,862 62,851 - - 240,622 163,757 56,653 59,702 - - 280,112

Non-competition 
agreements, trade-
marks, customer lists 
and lease rights 29,845 11,548 8,677 - - 50,070 32,750 16,999 10,028 - - 59,777

Software, licences, 
other intangible fi xed 
assets, in progress 
and advances 9,088 900 5,860 - - 15,848 5,923 332 4,734 - - 10,989

Tangible fi xed assets 46,432 5,269 4,156 501 - 56,358 43,803 8,557 4,832 462 - 57,654

Financial fi xed assets 4,868 304 11,473 - - 16,645 6,090 395 9,890 - - 16,375

Other non-current 
fi nancial assets 2,147 - 211 - - 2,358 1,912 - 178 - - 2,090

Non-current assets 257,289 30,883 93,228 501 - 381,901 254,235 82,936 89,364 462 - 426,997

Inventories 38,308 520 761 261 - 39,850 34,497 1,089 1,499 357 - 37,442

Trade receivables 79,859 1,058 22,129 118 (3,932) 99,232 108,935 1,170 25,722 64 (5,469) 130,422

Other receivables 26,997 2,095 5,309 58 (254) 34,205 27,805 3,580 2,248 55 - 33,688

Current assets (A) 145,164 3,673 28,199 437 (4,186) 173,287 171,237 5,839 29,469 476 (5,469) 201,552

Operating assets 402,453 34,556 121,427 938 (4,186) 555,188 425,472 88,775 118,833 938 (5,469) 628,549

Trade payables (62,844) (4,195) (25,464) (331) 3,932 (88,902) (61,819) (4,142) (23,229) (516) 5,469 (84,237)

Other payables (79,813) (5,159) (5,109) (118) 254 (89,945) (69,612) (7,085) (9,020) (70) - (85,787)

Provisions for risks 
and charges 
(current portion) (640) - - - - (640) (1,511) - - - - (1,511)

Current liabilities (B) (143,297) (9,354) (30,573) (449) 4,186 (179,487) (132,942) (11,227) (32,249) (586) 5,469 (171,535)

Net working capital 
(A) - (B) 1,867 (5,681) (2,374) (12) - (6,200) 38,295 (5,388) (2,780) (110) - 30,017

Derivative 
instruments (5,056) - - - - (5,056) 831 - - - - 831

Deferred tax assets 47,391 3,960 9,781 - - 61,132 44,552 7,268 8,853 - - 60,673

Deferred tax 
liabilities (8,591) (3,234) (14,878) (6) - (26,709) (7,057) (4,888) (11,761) (5) - (23,711)

Provisions for risks 
and charges 
(non-current portion) (15,991) - (5,154) - - (21,145) (18,798) - (4,583) (10) - (23,391)

Liabilities for
employees’ benefi ts (8,605) - (493) - - (9,098) (7,908) - (466) - - (8,374)

Other non-current 
payables - - (11) - - (11) - - (10) - - (10)

NET INVESTED 
CAPITAL 268,304 25,928 80,099 483 - 374,814 304,150 79,928 78,617 337 - 463,032

Group equity 183,754 221,366

Minority interests 446 884

Total net equity 184,200 222,250

Net medium and 
long-term 
indebtedness 218,104 240,703

Net short-term 
fi nancial 
indebtedness (27,490) 79

Total net fi nancial 
indebtedness 190,614 240,782

OWN FUNDS AND 
NET FINANCIAL 
INDEBTEDNESS 374,814 463,032

Non current assets

Non current assets were €426,997 thousand at 31 December 2007 as against €381,901 thousand at 
31 December 2008 – a net reduction of €45,096 thousand due to: (i) the UK goodwill write-down 
(€29,396 thousand); (ii) amortisation, depreciation and other write-downs (€29,307 thousand); 
(iii) capital expenditure of €23,234 thousand; (iv) increases following acquisitions of €6,500 thousand 
and (v) other net reductions relating to negative exchange differences (€16,127 thousand).

Investments

In 2008 the Amplifon Group focused on integrating the acquisitions made in previous years. This was 
the background to capital expenditure of €23,234 thousand. In line with its strategy of increasing 
focus on the customer, the Group has set in train a store renovation programme developing both 
a new concept of accessibility and a new image. Accordingly, in both the countries of recent 
acquisitions and the established markets resources were invested in rebranding, renovation and some 
stores’ relocation. Investments in IT – both in ERP systems and front-offi ce systems with CRM 
(Customer Relations Management) – aimed to increase customer care and operational control. 
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Non current assets

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Continental Europe

Goodwill 164,909 163,757 1,152

Non-competition agreements, trademarks, 
customer lists and lease rights 29,845 32,750 (2,905)

Software, licences, other intangible fi xed assets, 
in progress and advances 9,088 5,923 3,165

Tangible fi xed assets 46,432 43,803 2,629

Financial fi xed assets 4,868 6,090 (1,222)

Other non-current fi nancial assets 2,147 1,912 235

Non current assets 257,289 254,235 3,054

United Kingom 
and Ireland

Goodwill 12,862 56,653 (43,791)

Non-competition agreements, trademarks, 
customer lists and lease rights 11,548 16,999 (5,451)

Software, licences, other intangible fi xed assets, 
in progress and advances 900 332 568

Tangible fi xed assets 5,269 8,557 (3,288)

Financial fi xed assets 304 395 (91)

Other non-current fi nancial assets - - -

Non current assets 30,883 82,936 (52,053)

North America

Goodwill 62,851 59,702 3,149

Non-competition agreements, trademarks, 
customer lists and lease rights 8,677 10,028 (1,351)

Software, licences, other intangible fi xed assets, 
in progress and advances 5,860 4,734 1,126

Tangible fi xed assets 4,156 4,832 (676)

Financial fi xed assets 11,473 9,890 1,583

Other non-current fi nancial assets 211 178 33

Non current assets 93,228 89,364 3,864

Africa

Goodwill - - -

Non-competition agreements, trademarks, customer lists 
and lease rights - - -

Software, licences, other intangible fi xed assets, 
in progress and advances - - -

Tangible fi xed assets 501 462 39

Financial fi xed assets - - -

Other non-current fi nancial assets - - -

Non current assets 501 462 39

Continental Europe

Non current assets were €254,235 thousand at 31 December 2007 and €257,289 thousand at 
31 December 2008 – an increase of €3,054 thousand due to:

•  investment in tangible fi xed assets amounting to €14,097 thousand, mainly for store renovation, 
relocation and new openings;

•  investment in intangible fi xed assets amounting to €2,523 thousand mainly for new 
implementations in store and sales support systems;

•  acquisitions amounting to €6,406 thousand mainly recognised as goodwill;

•  depreciation, amortisation and write-downs amounting to €19,350 thousand;

•  other net reductions totalling €622 thousand.

UK and Ireland

Non current assets were €82,936 thousand at 31 December 2007 and €30,883 thousand at 
31 December 2008 – a reduction of €52,053 thousand due to:

•  write-down of goodwill amounting to €29,396 thousand;

•  investment in tangible fi xed assets amounting to €2,374 thousand mainly relating to store 
renovation and rebranding with the Amplifon logo; 

•  investment in intangible fi xed assets amounting to €945 thousand, essentially related to the 
continuing implementation of ERP;

•  depreciation and amortisation of €4,782 thousand;

•  negative exchange differences of €18,397 thousand due to the depreciation of the pound sterling 
against the Euro; 

•  other net reductions amounting to €2,797 thousand.

North America

Non current assets were €89,364 thousand at 31 December 2007 and €93,228 thousand al 
31 December 2008 – an increase of €3,864 thousand due to:

•  investment in tangible fi xed assets amounting to €1,346 thousand mainly relating to store and 
offi ce renovation;

•  investment in intangible fi xed assets amounting to €1,910 thousand essentially relating to the 
implementation of a new system for the management of franchisees, as well as new functionalities 
in the ERP system;

•  acquisitions amounting to €94 thousand;

•  depreciation and amortisation of €5,145 thousand;

•  positive exchange differences amounting to €4,393 thousand;

•  increase in non-current amounts due from franchisees amounting to €1,031 thousand;

•  other net increases amounting to €235 thousand.

Africa

Non current assets were €462 thousand at 31 December 2007 and €501 thousand at 31 December 
2008 – an increase of €39 thousand due to:

•  investment in tangible fi xed assets amounting to €40 thousand;

•  depreciation and amortisation of €29 thousand;

•  other net increases amounting to €11 thousand mainly due to exchange gains.
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Net invested capital
Net invested capital was €463,032 thousand at 31 December 2007 and €374,814 thousand at 
31 December 2008 – a reduction of €88,218 thousand relating to the reduction invested capital 
described in the previous section and essentially attributable to the write-down of UK goodwill, to 
exchange losses and a sharp fall in debtors following forfaiting transactions involving Italian public- 
sector debt as described below in the Continental Europe section.

Distribution of Net Invested Capital by Region

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

 Continental Europe 268,304 304,150 (35,846)

 United Kingdom and Ireland 25,928 79,928 (54,000)

 North America 80,099 78,617 1,482

 Africa 483 337 146

Total 374,814 463,032 (88,218)

Continental Europe

Net invested capital was €268,304 thousand at 31 December 2008 – a reduction of €35,846 
thousand from 31 December 2007 essentially due to a reduction in debtors amounting to €29,076 
thousand mainly due to two forfaiting transactions carried out in June for a face value of € 27,680 
(most of which would have been settled before 31 December 2008) and in December for a face value 
of €17,900 thousand.

UK and Ireland

Net invested capital was €25,928 thousand al 31 December 2008 – a reduction of €54,000 thousand 
from the 31 December 2007 fi gure, essentially due to the reduction in invested capital described 
above, in turn due to the write-down of goodwill and exchange losses on the pound sterling.

North America

Net invested capital was €80,099 thousand at 31 December 2008 – an increase of €1,482 thousand 
over the 31 December 2007 fi gure: the increase in invested capital of € 3,864 thousand described 
above was partly offset by the reduction in debtors due to higher write-downs than in 2007.

Africa

Net invested capital was €483 thousand at 31 December 2008 – an increase of €146 thousand over 
the 31 December 2007 fi gure.

Net fi nancial indebtedness

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Net medium and long-term fi nancial indebtedness 218,104 240,703 (22,599)

Short -term fi nancial indebtedness 64,870 55,604 9,266

Cash and cash equivalents (92,360) (55,525) (36,835)

Net fi nancial indebtedness 190,614 240,782 (50,168)

Group net equity 183,754 221,366 (37,612)

Minority interest 446 884 (438)

Net equity 184,200 222,250 (38,050)

Financial indebtedness/Group net equity 1.04 1.09 (0.05)

Financial indebtedness/net equity 1.03 1.08 (0.05)

Net debt was €190,614 thousand at 31 December 2008 – a reduction of €50,168 thousand from 
31 December 2007 due to the favourable performance of cash fl ow from operations.

The current world economic and fi nancial crisis had a modest impact on the Group’s fi nances, thanks 
above all to its large medium/long-term borrowings and the lines of credit that the Group secured in 
the closing months of 2007 when the fi rst signs of the credit squeeze appeared. In 2008 the Group 
maintained and strengthened its strategy, which aimed on the one hand to maximise positive cash 
fl ow expected from operations and on the other – despite the credit restrictions due to the banks’ 
funding diffi culties, which caused longer loan approval times and greater selectivity towards borrowers 
– to constantly renegotiate its credit facilities in order to increase the medium/long-term component. 
In June 2008 a stand-by loan of €20 million was renegotiated with an extended maturity and in 
December a long-term loan of €30 million and a stand-by facility of €25 million were renegotiated 
and renewed.

The result of this careful management was that, at 31 December 2008, with total net debt of 
€190,614 thousand there were liquid assets of €27,490 thousand net of short-term debt, while 
the medium/long-term component of the debt was €218,104 thousand; credit lines granted but 
unutilised totalled €104.8 million of which €7.5 million were committed lines. 

As the chart in the next page indicates, cash is more than suffi cient to meet all the maturities falling 
in 2009, in which the Group expect to maintain the strategy of renewing and extending medium/
long-term borrowings.
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Interest payable on fi nancial indebtedness was €16,114 thousand, as against €14,453 
thousand in 2007.
Interest receivable on bank deposits was €945 thousand, as against €684 thousand in 2007.

Covenants
The following covenants apply to the private placement of US$180 million (€141 million including 
the fair value of the derivatives capping the €/US$ exchange rate at 1,2676 on a notional amount 
of US$175 million:

• the ratio of net debt to Group net equity must not exceed 1.5 times;

• the ratio of net debt to the EBITDA of the last four quarters must not exceed 3.5 times.

The following covenants apply to a €30 million loan made to the French branch:

• the ratio of net debt to Group net equity must not exceed 1.5 times;

• the ratio of net debt to the EBITDA of the last four quarters must not exceed 3.5 times.

At 31 December 2008 these two ratios were respectively 1.04 and 2.56.

There are no covenants in respect of the remaining €142 million of fi nancial debt.

Leverage, i.e. the ratio of net debt to net invested capital was 50.9% at 31 December 2008 as 
against 52.0% at 31 December 2007.

The reasons for the changes in net debt are detailed below in the cash fl ow statement section.

Cash fl ow
The reclassifi ed cash fl ow statement illustrates the change in net fi nancial indebtedness from the 
beginning to the end of the fi nancial year. The Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement include 
the cash fl ow statement which classifi es cash fl ows during the period as required by IAS 7 highlighting 
changes from the beginning to the end of the year.

Consolidated cash fl ow statement FY 2008 FY 2007

Operating activities

Group net result (14,536) 15,540

Minority interests 257 125

Amortization, depreciation and write-downs:

- intangible fi xed assets 12,970 33,920

- tangible fi xed assets 16,338 16,682

- goodwill 29,396

Total amortization, depreciation and write-downs 58,704             50,602 

Provisions 13,277             11,538 

(Gains) losses from sale of fi xed assets (1,235)                  384 

Associated companies’ share of profi t net of dividends received (73)                      3 

Financial income and charges 17,758             16,286 

Current and deferred income taxes 12,178                9,685 

Change in assets and liabilities:

- Use of funds (14,414)               (7,564)

- (Increase) Decrease in inventories (1,949)                 395

- Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 32,253                2,400 

- Increase (decrease) in trade payables 4,203                3,425 

- Changes in other receivables and other payables 10,283                5,695 

Total change in assets and liabilities 30,376               4,351 
Dividends received 65                     4 

Net interest charges (15,723)            (14,544)

Tax paid (17,045)            (21,493)

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) operating activities 84,003              72,481 

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible fi xed assets (5,358)               (7,923)

Purchase of tangible fi xed assets (17,876)             (19,949)

Consideration from sale of tangible fi xed assets 1,978                2,425 

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (21,256)            (25,447)
Cash fl ow generated by operating and investing activities (Free cash fl ow) 62,747              47,034 

Business combinations* (6,730)             (32,066)

(Purchase) sale of other investments and securities 2,576                2,159 

Cash fl ow generated by acquisition activities (4,154)            (29,907)
Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (25,410)             (55,354)

Financing activities

Changes in hedging derivatives 1,289 (783)

Other non-current assets (1,918) (2,002)

Dividend distributions (7,661) (6,846)

Purchase of treasury shares - (41,778)

Capital increases (reduction) / third parties contributions in subsidiaries 353 1,001

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) fi nancing activities (7,937) (50,408)

Changes in net fi nancial indebtedness 50,656 (33,281)

Opening net fi nancial indebtedness (240,782) (203,806)

Effect disposal of assets on NFP - (3,738)

Effect of exchange rate fl uctuations on NFP (488) 43

Changes in net indebtedness 50,656 (33,281)

Closing NFP (190,614) (240,782)

* The item relates to net cash fl ows absorbed by acquisitions of business units and investments.
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The change in net debt of €50,168 thousand comprised the effects of:
 
 (I) Investment and expenditure, as follows:
  •  acquisition of companies and businesses (as detailed in the following section) in order to 

increase the Group’s penetration of its markets of operation at a cost of €6,730 thousand (net 
of the fi nancial position of the acquired concerns);

  •  capital expenditure on tangible and intangible fi xed assets amounting to €23,234 thousand as 
described in the commentary on the change in invested capital relating essentially to store 
renovation and rebranding and new store and sales support software;

  •  net proceeds from the disposal of other assets, shareholdings, securities and minorities’ 
subscription of shares, amounting to €4,907 thousand.

 (II) Operations, as follows:
  •  a reduction in debtors of €32,253 thousand mainly due to two forfaiting transactions entered 

into in June for a face value of €27,680 and a discounted value of €26,714 thousand (most of 
which would however have been collected by 31 December 2008) and in December for a face 
value of €17,900 thousand and a discounted value of €17,202 thousand;

  •  interest payable on borrowings and other net fi nance cost amounting to €15,723 thousand;
  •  tax paid amounting to €17,045 thousand;
  •  cash fl ow from operations of €82,600 thousand.

 (III) The following fi nancial transactions:
  •  distribution of dividends amounting to €7,661 thousand;

  •  gains due to exchange rate and interest rate hedging and an increase in other non-current 
assets, amounting to €1,289 thousand.

 (IV) Effect of exchange rate fl uctuations negative by €488 thousand.

Acquisitions of companies and businesses
In 2008 the Amplifon Group – after a period of growth by acquisition – focused its attention on 
organic growth and the integration of the businesses acquired in 2006 and 2007. The limited 
acquisitions made in 2008 targeted a number of stored in Spain, the Netherlands, France and 
Germany with the aim of increasing the coverage of these markets.

Details of the acquisitions are as follows (amounts in thousands of Euros).

The Netherlands

At the beginning of 2008 an important acquisition of three stores was closed with the aim of 
strengthening Amplifon’s position in Rotterdam. The purchase price refl ected the Dutch market’s 
competitiveness and the strategic importance of the target. Towards the end of the year a store was 
acquired in Hoensbroek.

Name Date %
Total 

purchase price
(€ thousands)

Net equity 
acquired

Number 
of shops

Expected 
annual 

turnover

Businesses acquired

P.Vegt Beheer B.V. 02/01/2008  3,058  3

Lemmens Frankhuijzen VOF 01/11/2008 65 1

Total businesses acquired 3,123 4 2,200

Total investment 3,123 4 2,200

Spain

Following rapid expansion in recent years, the objective of the acquisitions made in Spain was solely 
to cover areas where Amplifon was not present or to support particular market situations. This was 
the purpose of our acquisitions in Galicia, in the Madrid area and that of the remaining 67.5% of G.A. 
Jeretz SL of which the Group already held 32.5%.

Name Date %
Total 

purchase price
(€ thousands)

Net equity 
acquired

Number 
of shops

Expected 
annual 

turnover

Companies acquired

Instituto Gallego de Audiología SL 11/01/2008 100% 1,013 67 2

Electrónica Gen. Española 
de Audiología 18/02/2008 100% 485 3 1

Gabinetes Auditivos de Jerez SL 23/12/2008 67.5% 21 (28) 1

Total companies acquired 1,519 42 4 680

Total investment 1,519 42 4 680

The Group also acquired 49% of Bio Mieres (Asturias) for €11 thousand to add to its holding of 51%. 
An earn-out on Acustica Real (Portugal), now absorbed by Bioacustica Istituto de Audiologia, was 
accounted for as to €60 thousand.
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France

With the aim of increasing coverage in the south-west of the country two stores in Casteljaloux and 
Saint Foy La Grande were acquired, as well as four stores in Alsace.

Name Date %
Total 

purchase price
(€ thousands)

Net equity 
acquired

Number 
of shops

Expected 
annual 

turnover

Companies acquired

Jacques Martin Sarl 02/09/2008 100% 371 233 2

France Surditè SA 02/09/2008 100% 1,027 194 4

Total companies acquired 1,398 6 915

Total investment 1,398 6 915

Germany

After the rapid expansion of recent years the focus was on integrating existing businesses, the only 
acquisition in 2008 being a store in Giengen (Baden-Wurttemberg).

Name Date %
Total 

purchase price
(€ thousands)

Net equity 
acquired

Number 
of shops

Expected 
annual 

turnover

Businesses acquired

Lager 01/04/2008  320  1

Total businesses acquired 320 1 260

Total investment 320 1 260

An earn-out of €193 thousand was paid on a 2007 acquisition in the Berlin area. 

United States

The investment made using the Miracle Ear brand was part of the rationalisation of the business 
model of the franchising network: the stores purchased will be used to increase the business in certain 
areas. The medium-term business strategy is to return these stores to the franchising network.
 

Name Date %
Total 

purchase price
(€ thousands)

Net equity 
acquired

Number 
of shops

Expected 
annual 

turnover

Businesses acquired from a franchisee

Ray Kelly 24/02/2008 59 3

Total businesses acquired from franchisee 59 - 3 -

Purchase of customer lists

Other 01/09/08 - 31/12/08 35

Total investment  94 - 3 180

      

Reconciliation of the Parent Company 
Amplifon S.p.A.’s Net Equity and Net Income 
with the Group’s Net Equity and Net Income 
at 31 December 2008

(€ thousands) Net Equity Net result

Net equity and year-end result as reported in the Parent Company’s fi nancial statements 140,465 (22,431)

Elimination of carrying amount of consolidated investments:

- difference between carrying amount and the pro-quota value of net equity (180,412)

- pro-quota results reported by the subsidiaries 120,010 120,010

- pro-quota results reported by investments valued at equity 1,032 72

- goodwill from consolidation 113,017 (29,396)

Elimination of the effects of intercompany transactions

- elimination of investments impairment net of reversals 85,847

- intercompany dividends (164,251)

- intercompany profi ts included in the year-end value of inventories net of fi scal effect (9,408) (792)

- intercompany profi ts relating to internal sales of investments in subsidiaries (4,768)

- exchange differences and other changes (504) 1,430

Net equity and year-end result as stated in the consolidated fi nancial statements 184,200 (14,279)

Minority equity and result for the year 446 257

Group net equity and result for the year 183,754 (14,536)
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Risk management 
In line with the most advanced management systems and best practice in the design and 
implementation of internal control systems, Amplifon focuses strongly on risk management. 
All enterprises deal with risk: this exercise is all the more vital in a continually changing situation, 
where moreover there is an ongoing recession. 

Amplifon’s management carefully assesses the balance between risk and opportunity and channels 
resources towards the achievement of the best balance in line with the risk threshold which is 
considered acceptable.

Risks are identifi ed both at Group level and locally, in the Group’s countries of operation by regularly 
performing risk assessment exercises involving the whole management of the Group using the self-
assessment method. Risks are then ranked according to priority in light of the Group’s objectives and 
those of its subsidiaries and on the basis of the combined effect of probability and gravity of the 
residual risks.

Systems are then put in place to monitor the factors contributing to risk with the aim of mitigating 
risk and exploiting business opportunities in relation to the ability to anticipate competitive dynamics. 
In this way risk management and risk monitoring continuously complete the Group’s risk analysis.

To facilitate assessment the risk factors have been grouped in homogeneous categories: those 
originating outside the company, those relating to the structure of the company and those of a 
specifi cally fi nancial nature.

The main external risks identifi ed, grouped by type, are the following

Political, economic and social context legal questions and regulatory environment

The Amplifon Group operates in a medical sector, which is regulated in different ways and with 
signifi cant differences according to the country. A change in the regulations – e.g. in conditions 
governing subsidies or the accessibility of the national health service – has a signifi cant and 
immediate impact on results, as would a change in social policy that increased the role of the public 
sector in dealing with hearing pathologies.

The Group has therefore initiated a series of activities designed to ensure timely reaction to this kind 
of event through constant monitoring of change, with a view to reducing the impact of any adverse 
change or maximising the results of a favourable one.

Specifi cally: (i) regular reporting has been set up on the main changes in regulations, on analyses 
of their impact and on the plans made to adapt to them, which are discussed with the Company’s 
management and approved centrally; (ii) mapping of the sector regulations in all countries of 
operation has been initiated, together with monitoring of changes in regulations by the Group’s 
Compliance function with the support of Legal Affairs; and (iii) mapping of trade organisms and 
associations in the Group’s countries of operation has been initiated, as well as participation in them 
by Amplifon’s manager with the aim of agreeing future strategy.

From the viewpoint of demographic changes, several factors such as the number of older people (baby 
boomers), the rise in average life expectancy and the reduction of the age at which the hearing-aid 
market is accessed are on the one hand a great opportunity, but on the other there is the risk of not 
taking it. In our marketing operation we have made a special effort to pick up all the signs of these 
trends and attempt to infl uence them with a suitable development of our communication.
 
Technological Innovation

The Amplifon Group’s distinctive features are the quality of customer assistance at the sale stage and 
the personalisation of the hearing aid. Any technological changes affecting the development of the 
self-fi tting hearing aid, if not foreseen in the short term, would entail a reduction of the importance of 
personalisation, but would remain fundamental in the assistance and support given to the customer 
when choosing the best solution, and in post-sale service.

The Amplifon Group has set up a work-group to monitor continuously the technological changes 
in the fi tting of the product and to inform Corporate Managers on all innovations or alterations. 
This work-group is also studying and developing alternatives to the hearing aid and new marketing 
methods.

The risk that an alternative to the hearing aid may be developed to remedy hearing loss (e.g. by 
surgical techniques or the use of pharmaceuticals) would have a very signifi cant impact, but is 
considered very remote.
 
Competition and the Market

The entry of new competitors into the market, intensifying competition, could constitute an obstacle 
to growth by acquisition due to increased competition for acquisition targets. 

Entry to the market by new players, especially optician chains, which are able to use distribution 
channels based on already existing stores entails greater price competition.

Economic Recession

The current recessive economic situation brings greater uncertainty to forecasting the future and, 
since the costs of a store are largely fi xed, reduced sales would have a direct impact on margins in the 
short term.
In the US, where the Group’s business model is also based on commercial partnerships – with Sears, 
Wal-Mart and franchisees – the business depends on their profi tability and fi nancial soundness.  

Relationships with the Medical Profession

Doctors are important infl uencers over our customers’ buying choices. We consider our relationship 
with the medical profession of primary importance, though in different ways, both in countries where 
a prescription is obligatory (such as Italy, France, Germany, Switzerland and Hungary) and in those 
where it is not, since there is a strong bond between patients and their doctor. We have therefore 
created a position in the corporate centre to coordinate relationships with the medical profession 
internationally with the aim of disseminating information and providing professional and scientifi c 
support. At the same time the Group continues to be a reference-point – through our CSR (the 
Company’s research centre) – for the international scientifi c community both by organising numerous 
conferences and scientifi c seminars and cooperating with numerous universities, and through its 
scientifi c publications.
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Customer Relationships

Amplifon’s business essentially consists of providing high quality service to the customer in terms of 
both technical performance and personal relations. This is what distinguishes us from our competitors. 
Should the customer not be satisfi ed, therefore, the Company would be running a risk. 
To monitor customer satisfaction continuously, Amplifon carries out regular customer satisfaction 
surveys and frequent training programmes for its audioprothesists; our sales policies are also 
orientated to customer satisfaction. 

The Principal Internal Risks by type

Organisation and Processes

In the current economic situation, in which the decisive factors for our business are highly volatile, the 
ability to take rapid strategic and tactical action is vital in all the countries where the Group operates. 
It follows that the Company must possess an adequate level of formalisation and application and 
control over, its processes, in order to maximise its operating effi ciency and effectively control its 
stores in terms of the profi tability, effectiveness and effi ciency of each one. These processes are 
still more important with acquisitions, where it is crucial to assess all the risks arising from their 
operations: mistakes in assessing these risks, like slow and delayed integration of acquired businesses 
into the Group’s processes, might entail signifi cantly higher costs and ineffi ciency levels for the Group.

The Group has for some time been following a path to defi nition and formalisation of common 
procedures, above all the project aiming to standardise the Group’s IT applications (CAPI) and the 262 
Compliance project [Law 262 being the Italian equivalent of Sarbanes-Oxley]. 

In May 2008 Group formalised a new organisation based on regional divisions and set up a leadership 
team comprising the heads of the various corporate centre areas (sales, marketing, human resources, 
administration and fi nance and procurement), who, working with the Chief Executive Offi cer, are able 
to ensure rapid implementation of strategic decisions.

In the coming months a business performance management project will be carried out in our stores 
with the aim of more effectively monitoring their operations and comparing them internationally.

Human Resources

One of Amplifon’s strengths is its customer service and in this context our people are a vital factor. 
However they present certain criticalities and risk areas:

•  limited availability of audioprothesists in our market, the diffi culty of attracting new ones and some 
of them moving to the competition – these can pose signifi cant risks for the Group’s organic growth 
together with the risk of losing customers that of increased labour cost due to pay rises;

•  staff defi ciencies in technical and sales skills might make the sales effort ineffective in certain 
countries and would be a signifi cant risk in terms of reaching our organic growth targets;

•  the risk of illegal acts or behaviour out of line with Group rules committed by the sales force.

To mitigate these risks the Group has taken the following action:

•  we have defi ned and collected our values in our Code of Conduct, which has been distributed in all 
our countries of operation;

•  we have drawn up the profi le of the ideal audioprothesist, with the aim of having a profi le 

consistent with our recruitment methods and the Group’s business policies; we have also initiated 
action to increase the supply of audioprothesists in the market, through agreements with 
universities and specialisation courses;

•  we have stepped up our internal training programmes and developed central coordination of the 
training organised in our countries of operation;

•  in order to check that procedures are being followed, for some time we have been inspecting our 
branches in Italy, something which is frequently repeated over time and is the basis for similar 
initiatives in other countries.

Financial Risks, by type

The Overall Macro-economic Scenario

The general economic crisis which began in the United States in the second half of 2007 gradually 
deteriorated until in September 2008 it developed into a severe fi nancial crisis with serious 
consequences for a number of US and European fi nancial institutions. A crisis of confi dence then 
overtook international fi nance creating an extremely thin interbank market, a dramatic fall in share 
prices, serious fi nancial diffi culties for banks that depended on the money markets for their funding 
as a consequence of the perception that liquidity and counterparty risk had greatly intensifi ed. The 
central banks intervened with huge coordinated efforts in the attempt to restore liquidity to the 
markets. The US and European authorities intervened with large injections of cash to prevent the 
insolvency of certain large banks, which would have had systemic consequences that were considered 
unsustainable. 

In recent months this situation produced sharp fl uctuations in both interest rates and exchange rates.

Risks for the Amplifon Group

The Amplifon Group, due to the nature of its business, is exposed to the following fi nancial risks:

• currency risk;

• interest rate risk;

• credit risk;

• price risk;

• liquidity risk.

Currency Risk 

Currency risk includes the following:

•  foreign exchange transaction risk, that is the risk of changes in the value of a fi nancial asset or 
liability due to exchange rate fl uctuations; 

•  foreign exchange translation risk, that is the risk that the conversion of the assets, liabilities, costs 
and revenues relating to a ‘net investment in a foreign operation’ into the presentation currency 
gives rise to a positive or negative difference in the balances of the converted items.

In the Amplifon Group, foreign exchange transaction risk is substancially negligible considering that 
each country is practically autonomous in the management of its business, bearing costs in the same 
currency as its income, and arises mainly from intercompany transactions (loans, current accounts, 
recharges due to cost sharing agreements) which expose the company, whose functional currency is 
different from the currency of the intercompany transaction, to foreign exchange risk. Furthermore, 
exposure to foreign exchange transaction risk arises from certain fi nancial investments in quoted 
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instruments denominated in a currency other than the functional one of the company that holds 
them, Foreign exchange translation risk arises from investments in the United States, United Kingdom, 
Switzerland, Hungary and Egypt. 

The Group’s strategy aims to minimise the impact on profi t and loss of changes in exchange rates 
and requires that the risk arising from fi nancial positions in a currency other than the presentation 
currency of individual subsidiaries be hedged. These are: (i) the bond denominated in US dollars 
issued by Amplifon S.p.A. and underwritten by Amplifon USA Inc. and (ii) the intercompany loans 
denominated in pounds sterling between Amplifon S.p.A. and its UK affi liates. The risks arising from 
other intercompany transactions and investments in quoted instruments in foreign currency are not 
high since the amounts involved are not signifi cant, hence they are not hedged. 

Taking the foregoing into account, the fl uctuations in exchange rates in 2008 had no signifi cant 
effects on the Amplifon Group’s consolidated accounts.

With reference to the foreign exchange translation risk, considering that each Country realise revenues 
and bear costs in the same currency and that the main part of the margin is denominated in the Group 
functional currency, no hedging activity is performed, considering also the complexity of these activites.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk includes the following situations:

•  fair value risk, that is the risk that the value of a fi nancial asset or liability at fi xed interest rate 
changes due to fl uctuations in market interest rates;

•  cash fl ow risk, that is the risk that the future cash fl ows of a fi nancial asset or liability at variable 
interest rate fl uctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

In the Amplifon Group fair value risk arises on the issue of fi xed-income bonds (private placements), 
Cash fl ow risk arises from recourse to variable-rate bank borrowings. 
The Group’s strategy aims to minimise cash fl ow risk, especially on long-term exposure, by balanced 
recourse to fi xed and variable rate borrowings, judging when each borrowing is obtained when to 
transform it from variable to fi xed rate. At 31 December 2008 46% of the €271 million medium-term 
debt (including the short-term portion of such borrowings) i.e. €124 million, had been transformed 
into fi xed-rate debt through the use of swaps. Given the foregoing, interest fl uctuations in 2008 had 
no signifi cant effects on the Amplifon Group’s consolidated accounts.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a fi nancial instrument fails to meet its obligations and causes a 
fi nancial loss to the underwriter.

Credit risk for the Amplifon Group arises from:

(i) sales made as part of the ordinary business activity;
(ii) the use of fi nancial instruments that require settlement of positions with the counterparty.

The risk related to point (i) is not signifi cant as the only positions with a high unit value are 
represented by receivables from Italian public bodies where the insolvency risk, if there is one, in the 
past has been almost non-existent.
In comparison with previous years the credit risk arising from sales to customers on an instalment 
basis has increased. Due to the recent fi nancial crisis some customers may not be able to meet their 

obligation. This entails the risk that working capital may increase and that losses may be incurred 
on debtors.The Group through its corporate centre has set up a monthly debtor position reporting 
system which monitors the composition and maturity of debtors in each country, agreeing with local 
management actions to be taken to recover the credit and commercial policies. Scope for instalment 
sales or consumer fi nance has been limited to a maximum maturity of one year and where possible 
consumer loans are managed by external fi nance houses, which advance the whole amount of the sale 
to Amplifon. In any case this risk is marginal, since almost all sales to private individuals are for cash. 

The risk described under (ii) above, despite inevitable uncertainty as to potential sudden and 
unforeseen defaults by counterparties, is managed by diversifying among the largest investment- 
grade Italian and foreign banks. Given the modest number of transactions outstanding, there is 
inevitable concentration of risk, especially as regards exchange-rate and interest-rate hedges of the 
private placement, which were entered into with one counterparty only. 

Price Risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a fi nancial asset or liability may change due to fl uctuations in 
market prices (other than those of currencies and interest rates) both where such fl uctuations arise 
from specifi c features of the fi nancial asset or liability or of the issuer of the fi nancial liability and 
where such fl uctuations are attributable to market factors. This risk is common to fi nancial assets 
which are not listed on any active market and which cannot always be converted into cash at a value 
close to their fair value in a short period of time.
 
In the Amplifon Group price risk arises from certain fi nancial investments in quoted instruments 
(principally bonds). Given the size of the investments this risk is not signifi cant, hence it is not 
hedged against. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter diffi culty in raising funds to meet its obligations 
and encompasses the risk that the counterparties which granted the loans and/or credit lines may 
request repayment. This risk has become particularly signifi cant in the fi nancial crisis of recent months. 
The Group is therefore carefully monitoring cash fl ow and debt, maximising cash fl ow from operations 
and, within the credit market restrictions described above, maintaining relations with its lending banks 
for the purpose of securing suitable lines of credit. In December 2008 the Group obtained medium/long-
term loans of €55 million thanks to which we believe that, at least in the short term, our liquidity risk 
is insignifi cant: liquid assets disclosed in the accounts as at 31 December 2008 are suffi cient – together 
with the committed lines of credit – to meet all our obligations through to the early months of 2010.
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Hedging Instruments
 
Hedging instruments are used by the Group exclusively to mitigate, in line with the business strategy, 
interest rate risk and currency risk, and comprise exclusively fi nancial derivatives. In order to maximise 
the economic effectiveness of hedges, the Group’s policy prescribes that:

•  the counterparties should be large in size and have a high credit rating in order to minimise 
counterparty risk;

•  the instruments entered into should have features that closely mirror those of the hedged item,

•  the performance of any instruments used is monitored, also for the purpose of verifying and if 
possible improving, the adequacy of the structure of the instruments used, by reference to the 
objectives of the hedge.

The derivatives used by the Group are generally non-structured fi nancial instruments 
(i.e. plain vanilla). The types of derivatives adopted are the following:

• cross currency swaps;

• interest rate swaps;

• interest rate collars;

• forward foreign exchange contracts.
 
Upon initial recognition, such instruments are measured at fair value. On subsequent balance sheet 
dates, the fair value of the derivatives must be measured again and:

 (i) if these instruments do not meet the requisites for hedge accounting, any fair value changes that 
originate after initial recognition are recognised in the income statement;

 
 (ii)  if these instruments meet the criteria of fair value hedges, starting from that date any changes 

in the fair value of the derivative are recognised in the income statement; at the same time 
any fair value changes due to the hedged risk are booked as an adjustment to the value of the 
item hedged and recognised in the income statement; the amount of any ineffective hedge is 
recognised in the income statement under a different item from the one used to recognise the 
fair value changes of the hedging instrument and the hedged item;

 (iii)  if these instruments meet the criteria of cash fl ow hedges, starting from that date any changes 
in the fair value of the derivative are recognised in equity, but only to the extent of the 
effective amount of the hedge, the amount of any ineffective portion being recognised in the 
income statement; changes in the fair value of the derivative that are recognised in equity are 
subsequently transferred to the income statement in the same period in which the hedged item 
impacts the income statement;

 (iv) if these instruments meet the criteria for hedges of ‘a net investment in a foreign operation’, 
starting from that date any changes in the fair value of the derivative are adjusted through the 
“conversion difference”, for the effective amount of the hedge, and recognised in the income 
statement in the amount of the ineffective portion.

The hedging strategy adopted by the Group is accounted for through the accounting entries described 
above starting from the time that the following conditions are met:
 

•  the hedging relationship, its purpose and the overall strategy pursued are formally defi ned and 
documented; the documentation prepared includes the identifi cation of the hedging instrument, the 
hedged item, the nature of the risk which the company intends to hedge and the methods used to 
assess the effectiveness of the hedge;

•  hedge effectiveness may be reliably assessed and it is reasonable to believe, as may be confi rmed by 
ex-post corroboration, that the hedge will be highly effective for the period in which exposure to the 
hedged risk exists;

•  the risk of changes in cash fl ows related to a future transaction is hedged against where the future 
transaction is highly probable and its exposure to the risk of changes in cash fl ows could affect the 
income statement.

Derivatives are recorded as assets if their fair value is positive and as liabilities if their fair value is 
negative. These balances are shown under assets or liabilities if related to derivatives which do not meet 
hedge accounting criteria, whereas in other cases they are classifi ed according to the hedged item.

If the hedged item is classifi ed as a current asset or liability, the positive or negative fair value of 
the hedging instrument is included under current assets or liabilities; if the hedged item is classifi ed 
under non-current assets or liabilities, the positive or negative fair value of the hedging instrument is 
included under non-current assets or liabilities.
 
Intercompany derivatives are eliminated on consolidation.

Shareholdings of Directors, Board of Auditors, 
General managers and Key managers
Pursuant to the provisions of § 79 Consob Resolution 11971 dated 14 May 1999, as amended, the 
following table shows the shareholdings held in Amplifon S.p.A. and its subsidiaries by Directors, 
Board of Auditors General managers and Key managers, as well as their spouses if not legally 
separated and their children under 18, directly or through subsidiaries, trustees or proxies, resulting 
from the Register of Members, communications received and any other information acquired 
from the same Directors, Statutory Auditors, General managers and managers with strategic 
responsibilities (“Key managers”).

Name and Surname Company
No, of shares 

held at 
01/01/2008

Purchases Disposals
No. of shares 

held at 
31/12/2008

Franco Moscetti Amplifon S.p.A. 7,500 21,700 - 29,200

Gilbert Ferraroli Amplifon S.p.A. - 25,000 - 25,000
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Subsequent events
Since the end of the fi nancial year the following signifi cant events occurred:

VAT Credit Rebate

At the beginning of March 2009, Amplifon has received the payment of VAT receivables for €6,081 thousand, 
of which €5,142 thousand through the controlling entity Amplifi n, as part of the Group VAT position.

Sale of the Service Division in Italy

At the beginning of March 2009 Amplifon signed a framework agreement with the Siemens Group 
under which its Service Division is to be outsourced to the latter. The division is engaged in the 
personalisation, maintenance and servicing of hearing aids sold in Italy.

This decision was based on the need to have products and services of the highest quality in order to 
maintain our leadership in the Italian market.

By outsourcing ‘Service’ Amplifon S.p.A. will be able to concentrate on its core business, viz. the 
distribution and sale of hearing solutions, while relying on a leading hearing-aid producer to further 
develop the quality of the Service Division, with which a long-term partnership has been established 
and that will ensure that ‘Service’ would receive all necessary investment, technology and training to 
continue to improve the quality of its service and thus achieve ever-increasing competitiveness. 
 
This strategy is consistent with our Group’s orientation. The same solution had been adopted outside 
Italy with good results. The transaction should be completed in the second quarter of 2009 for a 
consideration of €2.4 million and should give rise to a capital gain of €2 million. It should involve the 
transfer of 65 / 70 people to Siemens.

Treasury shares
The Shareholders’ Meeting held on 29 April 2008 authorised the Board of Directors to purchase 
further treasury shares up to 12,942,000 ordinary shares with a par value of €0.02 each (equal to 
6.52% of current company capital or 10% taking into account the 6,900,000 treasury shares already 
held) at a price no more than 5% over or under the reference market price of the previous trading day 
for each purchase.

The reason for this programme is that it may be necessary to purchase or sell treasury shares in 
contingent market situations and advisable to have a policy of supporting the liquidity of the share or 
investment policies, as well as appropriately using the treasury shares held as a means of payment in 
acquisition transactions. 

No treasury shares were purchased in 2008.

Treasury Shares purchased in 2005, 2006 and 2007 
and held in the Company’s portfolio

No. of shares* Average Price Total Paid

As at 31 December 2008 6,900,000 6.39 44,091,446

Research and development
The Group did not carry out any research and development activity in the period.

Transactions between Group companies 
and with related parties
During the period, there were no transactions with related parties, including intragroup transactions, 
which qualifi ed as unusual or atypical. Any related party transactions formed part of the normal 
business activities of companies in the Group. Such transactions are concluded at standard market 
terms for the nature of goods and/or services offered.

Information on transactions with related parties, including specifi c disclosures required by the Consob 
Communication of 28 July 2006, is provided in Note 33 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Outlook
Despite the adverse economic situation Amplifon Group has in recent months seen an increase 
in organic growth in the markets of Continental Europe, whereas in the UK and North America 
conditions continued to be diffi cult.

In the remaining months of 2009 the Group will continue to carry out its plan, which focuses on the 
attainment of operational excellence in all our markets, with the threefold objective of (i) increasing 
the rate of organic growth in Continental Europe; (ii) persevering with the rebasing of operations 
in the UK, benefi ting from the reorganisation already undertaken and (iii) optimising the business 
strategy in the US, where the economic crisis and the weakness of the dollar have seriously impacted 
results – all of which with the support of the corporate centre and further investment in marketing, 
IT and human resources.
The fi nancial crisis sparked by subprime mortgages – which initially affected principally banks and 
the credit market – has become a full-blown global recession, which will severely impact all sectors, 
whether industrial or commercial. In 2009 a contraction of between 2% and 4% of the economies of 
the advanced countries – higher in the US and the UK, rather less in Continental Europe – is forecast. 

This negative economic scenario has had a limited impact on the hearing-aid sector as well. Our 
market provides goods and services that are only in part deferrable, since they greatly condition 
the quality of life of the user; government support and insurance pay-outs are a further stabilising 
factor. For these reasons in most of our markets there have been relatively modest reductions in 
consumption. However, in this scenario forecasting is especially diffi cult: if consumer spending were 
to fall signifi cantly in Continental Europe as well, this could negatively affect the Group’s results. The 
stores’ cost structure is largely fi xed and therefore changes in revenue have an immediate strong 
impact on margins in the short term. 

The management of the Group is however confi dent that – not least as a consequence of the actions 
taken in recent months – this impact, if it occurs, can be contained and thus, at least in Continental 
Europe, may not prejudice a resumption of the growth that was interrupted in the last 18-24 months.

The Group is carefully monitoring cash fl ow and debt, maximising cash fl ow from operations and, 
within the credit market restrictions described above, maintaining relations with its lending banks 
for the purpose of securing lines of credit that will increase the medium-term component of our 
borrowing.

The Group is not at the moment running other special risks, with the following exceptions:

•  there is an ongoing tax inspection at our Dutch subsidiaries of which it is not currently possible to 
foresee the result, since it is still at the information-gathering stage;

•  the offi ce of the Attorney General of New York State has requested information from our US 
subsidiary Miracle Ear as part of an investigation of certain advertising by franchisees; 
Miracle Ear promptly supplied all the requested information and documentation. 

With regard to the strategy of expanding through acquisition, this will be limited to areas of special 
interest or to obtain positioning in specifi c geographies or for the contribution that the target could 
bring to the Group.

Corporate Governance 
Pursuant to § 5 ¶1 Law 173/2008 the corporate governance report can be found on the Company’s 
website (www.amplifon.com) by clicking Investor Relations > Corporate Governance/ Statutory 
and Codes.

Report on Operations at 31 December 2008
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Reclassifi ed Income Statement

(€ thousands) FY 2008 % FY 2007 %

 Recurring
Non 

recurring Total  Recurring
Non 

recurring Total

Revenues 
from sales and 
services 192,655 192,655 100.0%  187,899  187,899 100.0%

Raw materials, 
consumables 
and supplies 
and change in 
raw materials, 
consumables 
and supplies (31,722) (31,722) -16.5% (30,056) (30,056) -16.0%

Personnel 
expenses (38,672) (38,672) -20.1% (34,216) (34,216) -18.2%

External 
services (103,721) (103,721) -53.8% (102,045) (102,045) -54.3%

Other income 
and revenues 12,083 12,083 6.3%  10,191  10,191 5.4%

Other expenses (167) (167) -0.1% (439) (439) -0.2%

Gross operating 
margin 
(EBITDA)  30,456  30,456 15.8%  31,334  31,334 16.7%

Depreciation 
and write-
downs of non-
current assets (4,569) (4,569) -2.4% (4,559) (4,559) -2.4%

Operating 
income (EBIT)  25,887  25,887 13.4%  26,775  26,775 14.2%

Income, 
expenses, 
valuation 
adjustments 
of fi nancial 
assets (*) 36,398 (65,000) (28,602) -14.8%  22,713 (17,000)  5,713 3.0%

Net fi nancial 
expenses (*) (12,898) (12,898) -6.7% (8,308) (8,308) -4.4%

Exchange 
differences and 
non hedging 
instruments (*) (1,349) (1,349) -0.7%  742  742 0.4%

Profi t (loss) 
before taxes  48,038 (65,000)  (16,962) -8.8%  41,922 (17,000)  24,922 13.3%

Current income 
taxes (4,690) (4,690) -2.4% (9,551) (9,551) -5.1%

Deferred 
income taxes (779) (779) -0.4% (6,161) (6,161) -3.3%

Net result  42,569 (65,000)  (22,431) -11.6%  26,210 (17,000)  9,210 4.9%

(*)  The items has been reclassifi ed from 2007 to highlight separately the results of management of controlled entities (write-up, impairment and 
dividends), the net fi nancial charges (interest income and expenses and other fi nancial charges) and the net exchange differences net of hedge 
operations classifi ed as non-hedge accounting (mainly forward contracts covering currency, i.e. non-euro, assets and liabilities).

(€ thousands) FY 2007 before reclassifi cation

Interest income (A) 7,857

Interest expenses (B) (13,663)

Exchange gain and losses (C) (828)

Other fi nancial income and charges (D) 23,496

- dividends (E) 24,429

- non hedge derivatives (F) 1,569

- other hedging instruments – non hedge acocunting (G) (2,308)

- other fi nancial charges (H) (194)

Gain/losses fi nancial assets valued at fair value (I) (18,715)

Total (1,853)

(€ thousands) FY 2007 after reclassifi cation

Other income, charges, revaluations and write down of fi nancial activities (I) + (E)  5,713

Net fi nancial charges (A) + (B) + (G) + (H) (8,308)

Exchange differences and other hedging instruments – non hedge accounting (C) + (F)  742

Total (1,853)

EBITDA is the operating result before amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on tangible 
and intangible fi xed assets.

EBIT is the operating result before fi nancial income and charges and taxes.

122
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Reclassifi ed Balance Sheet
The reclassifi ed Balance Sheet aggregates assets and liabilities according to the functionality criteria 
of management, subdivided by convention into the following three key functions: investments, 
operations and fi nance.

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Goodwill 415 415 -

Other intangibile assets 3,154 3,364 (210)

Tangibile assets 11,833 10,259 1,574

Financial fi xed assets 279,386 240,565 38,821

Other non-current fi nancial fi xed assets 508 481 27

Non-current assets 295,296 255,084 40,212

Inventories 12,509 11,246 1,263

Trade receivables (1) 45,608 69,128 (23,519)

Other receivables (2) 18,586 18,742 (156)

Current assets (A) 76,704 99,116 (22,412)

Operating assets 372,000 354,200 17,800

Trade payables (3) (24,679) (25,597) 918

Other payables (4) (28,861) (28,763) 98

Provisions for contingency and obligations (current portion) (469) (568) 99

Current liabilities (B) (54,010) (54,928) 919

Net working capital (A)+(B) 22,694 44,187 (21,493)

Derivative instruments (5) (5,057) - (5,057)

Deferred tax assets 33,577 34,446 (869)

Deferred tax liabilities (634) (725) 91

Provisions for contingency and obligations (non-current portion) (7,208) (7,662) 454

Employee benefi ts (non-current portion) (6,393) (6,546) 153

NET INVESTED CAPITAL 332,275 318,784 13,491

Net equity 140,465 177,333 (36,868)

Net medium and long-term net fi nancial debt 206,346 201,317 5,029

Short term net fi nancial indebteness (14,536) (59,866) 45,330

Total net fi nancial indebteness 191,810 141,451 50,359

OWN FUNDS AND NET FINANCIAL INDEBTENESS 332,275 318,784 13,491

(1) The item “Trade receivables” includes “Trade receivables” and “Receivables - related parties”.
(2) The item “Other receivables” includes  “Other receivables” and “Other receivables - related parties”.
(3) The item “Trade payables” includes “Trade payables” and “Trade payables - related parties”.
(4) The item “Other payables” includes “Other payables – third parties”, “Other payables – related parties” and “Tax payables”.
(5)   “Derivative instruments” includes cash fl ow hedge instruments, fair value hedge and non-hedge accounting instruments that are not included in 

the net fi nancial position.

 

Condensed Reclassifi ed Cash Flow Statement
The condensed cash fl ow statement represents a synthetic version of the reclassifi ed cash fl ow 
statement detailed in the following pages and its purpose is, starting from the EBIT, to detail the fl ows 
generated or absorbed by operating, investing and fi nancing activities.

(€ thousands) 2008 2007

Operating income (EBIT) 25,887 26,775

Amortization, depreciation and write-downs 4,569 4,559

Provision, other non monetary items and gain/losses from disposals 5,946 6,042

Net fi nancial expenses (12,380) (5,700)

Dividends received 44,282 24,429

Taxes paid (10,374) (10,510)

Changes in net working capital 16,762 8,891

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) operating activities (A) 74,692 54,486

Cash fl ow generated (absorbed) by operating investing activities (B) (5,955) (6,723)

Free cash fl ow (A+B) 68,737 47,763

Equity investments purchase/share capital increases in controlled entities (C) (160,784) (23,872)

(Purchase) sale of other investments and securities (D) 49,023 -

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (B+C+D) (117,716) (30,595)

Hedging instruments 353 -

Other non-current activities (27) (99)

Dividends paid (7,661) (6,846)

Treasury shares purchase - (41,778)

Share capital increases - 1,001

Net cash fl ow for the period (50,359) (23,831)

Opening net fi nancial indebtedness (141,451) (117,620)

Change in net fi nancial indebtedness due to exchange rates changes (1,791) -

Change in net fi nancial position (48,568) (23,831)

Closing net fi nancial indebtedness (191,810) (141,451)

Commentary on the results of the Parent Company Amplifon S.p.A.
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Gross Operating Margin (EBITDA)

(€ thousands) FY 2008 % FY 2007 % Change Change %

 EBITDA 30,456 15.8% 31,334 16.7% (878) -2.8%

EBITDA was €30,456 thousand in 2008 as against €31,334 thousand in 2007 – a reduction of €878 
thousand or 2.8%.

This result was basically due to an increase in payroll which rose from €34,216 thousand in 2007 to 
€38,672 thousand in 2008 both for reasons of contract renewal and due to internal reorganisation 
carried out during the year including termination payments to key managers amounting to €1,514  
thousand.

Operating Income (EBIT)

(€ thousands) FY 2008 % FY 2007 % Change Change %

Operating income (EBIT) 25,887 13.4% 26,775 14.2% (888) -3.3%

Following the reduction in EBITDA, EBIT, was €25,887 thousand in 2008 as against €26,775 thousand 
in 2007, a reduction of €888 thousand (-3.3%).

Revenues from Sales and Services

(€ thousands)     FY 2008 % FY 2007 % Change %

Hearing Aid Line Sales 184,813 95.9% 179,968 95.8% 4,845 2.7%

Biomedical Line Sales 4,925 2.6% 5,303 2.8% (378) -7.1%

Total Sales 189,738 98.5% 185,271 98.6% 4,467 2.4%

Hearing Aid Line Services 2,012 1.0% 1,712 0.9% 300 17.5%

Biomedical Line Services 905 0.5% 916 0.5% (11) -1.2%

Total Services 2,917 1.5% 2,628 1.4% 289 11.0%

Revenues from sales and services 192,655 100.0% 187,899 100.0% 4,756 2.5%

Revenues from sales and services, including french branch result equal to €212 thousand, increased 
by €4,756 thousand (+2.5%), rising from €187,899 thousand to €192,655 in 2008 thousand due to 
higher sales of hearing aids and related services.

Italy’s hearing-aid market is still under-penetrated and this enabled Amplifon to grow at an estimated 
annual rate 2.5% over in spite of the diffi culties at the beginning of the year due to a low order-book. 
Subsequently the increased success of advertising campaigns, already visible in end-June order-books 
and the fi rst effects of Amplifon’s revamping of its organisational structure in Spring made possible 
a strong recovery in the second half of the year. The Q4 performance was very gratifying since both 
sales and order-books improved signifi cantly over 2007 despite the particularly diffi cult macro-
economic scenario.

This positive out-turn was made possible inter alia by the contribution of our marketing and 
communication area, which launched a new image during 2008, and where the total investment rose 
from €13 million in 2007 to €16 million in 2008, an increase of 22%. Part of this increase was due to 
the greater length of the ‘Prova Gratuita’ [“Free Tests”] campaign and its TV commercials. The entire 
campaign was in line with and in support Amplifon’s marketing strategy in Italy which again in 2008 
aimed to improve the customer mix, seeking to convert consumers from the public to the private 
sector ( ‘Social’ volumes fell by 7% offset by growth in ‘Paid Up’). Turnover relating to hearing-aid 
sales increased, though volumes were stable, due to the different customer mix and the higher subsidy 
paid in 2008 in the social market, which rose from €594 to €631 per hearing aid, a rise of 6.1%.

In 2008 Amplifon opened 13 new locations in Italy: the number of stores was 389 in December 2007 
and is now 402. In some of these new standards of store quality were achieved in line with the new 
image and based on the principles of ease of access, breaking down the stigma, etc.  

The biomedical otological division’s business centres on the sale of audiological and ENT equipment: 
audiometers, impedance audiometers, evoked-response audiometers, oto-emission equipment, 
ENG (Electronystagmography) testing apparatus, audiometric booths and diagnostic endoscopy 
instruments. The fall in revenues in 2008 was €378 thousand and was mainly due to a contraction of 
demand in the Italian market. 

Commentary on the results of the Parent Company Amplifon S.p.A.
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Non current assets

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Goodwill 415 415 -

Other Intangible Fixed Assets 3,154 3,364 (210)

Tangible Fixed Assets 11,833 10,259 1,574

Financial Fixed Assets 279,386 240,565 38,821

Guarantee Deposits 508 481 27

Non current assets 295,296 255,084 40,212

Invested capital was €295,296 thousand at 31 December 2008 as against €255,084 thousand at 
31 December 2007 – an increase of €40,212 thousand, due to:

•  an increase in the value of the equity investments in Amplifon CCA Groupe (€48,342 thousand), 
Amplifon Iberica SA (€24,000 thousand), Amplifon Deutschland GmbH (€46,000 thousand) 
and Amplifon Magyarorszàg Kft (€506 thousand) in order to replace the intercompany loans, 
accumulated in prior years following acquisitions or in support of liquidity requirements with equity;

•  concentration of the UK equity investments in a single investment and a simultaneous write-down 
to align the value with the recoverable value in light of the impairment test (total negative impact 
€81,073 thousand);

•  revaluation of Amplimedical S.p.A. to align carrying value with recoverable value (€1,091 thousand);

•  an increase of tangible fi xed assets following renovation of in-store technical equipment.

Net Invested Capital
Net invested capital was €332,275 thousand at 31 December 2008 as against €318,784 thousand at 
31 December 2007 – an increase of €13,491 thousand mainly due to:

•  increases in non current assets as detailed above;

•  a reduction in debtors (€23,519 thousand) due to two forfaiting transactions carried out in June 
for a face value of €27,680 thousand (most of which would have been settled before 31 december 
2008) and in December for a face value of €17,900 thousand. 

Profi t (loss) before taxes

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

 Recurring Non-
recurring Total Recurring Non -

recurring Total

Profi t (loss) before taxes 48,038 (65,000) (16,962) 41,922 (17,000) 24,922

In 2008 result before tax fell by €41,884 thousand from 2007, mainly due to:

•   a €19,873 thousand increase in dividends collected from foreign subsidiaries;

•  a €54,038 thousand increase in write-downs of fi nancial assets following a write-down of the 
equity interests in Amplifon UK Ltd and the revaluation of the equity interest in Amplimedical S.p.A.;

•  a €1,840 thousand reduction in interest receivable on short-term loans following a reduction in 
loans to subsidiaries due to the recapitalisation of them;

•  a €1,335 thousand increase in net interest payable on bonds issued following issuance of a new 
US$38 million bond entirely subscribed by the subsidiary Amplifon USA Inc. in July 2008 and the 
effects of hedges;

•  a €2,010 thousand increase in interest charges on bank borrowings due to increases in interest rates 
compared to 2007 and a to the increase of the net fi nancial indebtedness. Only in the latter part of 
the year interest rates begin to fall, but this has had as yet no effect on the level of interest payable 
since more than half of debt has been swapped for fi xed rate and the Group has decided to maintain 
high liquidity in times of credit squeeze which bears lower rates of interest than those paid on 
borrowings. 

Net result

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

 Recurring Non-
recurring Total Recurring Non -

recurring Total

Profi t (loss) of the period 42,569 (65,000) (22,431) 26,210 (17,000) 9,210

Net result for 2008 was negative €22,431 thousand compared to positive €9,210 in 2007.
The reduction is due to the net effect of:

•  a change in margins on business and in fi nance as described above;

•  a reduction in tax for the year from €15,712 thousand nel 2007 thousand in 2007 to €5,469 
thousand in 2008. The 2007 result was impacted by decrease of deferred tax assets of €6,267 
thousand due to the lower corporate tax rate for 2008 introduced by the Budget Law 244 dated 24 
December 2007.

Commentary on the results of the Parent Company Amplifon S.p.A.
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Net Financial Indebtedness

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Net medium and long-term net fi nancial debt 206,346 201,317 5,029

Short term net fi nancial indebteness 39,179 (44,650) 83,829

Cash and cash equivalents (53,715) (15,216) (38,499)

Net Financial Indebtedness 191,810 141,451 50,359

Net fi nancial indebtedness were ad €191,810 thousand at 31 december 2008, an increase of €50,359 
thousand from 31 december 2007.

The current world economic and fi nancial crisis had a modest impact on the Group’s fi nances thanks 
above all to its large medium/long-term borrowings and the lines of credit that the Group secured in 
the closing months of 2007 when the fi rst signs of the credit squeeze appeared.  

In 2008 the Group maintained and strengthened its strategy, which aimed on the one hand to 
maximise positive cash fl ow expected from operations and on the other – despite the credit 
restrictions due to the banks’ funding diffi culties, which caused longer loan approval times and greater 
selectivity towards borrowers – to constantly renegotiate its credit facilities in order to increase the 
medium/long-term component. 

In June 2008 a stand-by loan of €20 million was renegotiated with an extended maturity and in 
December a long-term loan of €30 million and a stand-by facility of €25 million were renegotiated 
and renewed. 

The result of this careful management was that, at 31 December 2008, with a total net debt of 
€191,810 thousand there were liquid assets of €53,715 thousand, while the medium/long–term 
component of the debt was €206,346 thousand. 

The liquid assets and committed lines of credit were more than suffi cient to meet all the maturities 
falling in 2009, in which Amplifon S.p.A. expect to maintain the strategy of renewing and extending 
medium/long-term borrowings.

Shareholders’ Equity

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

Capital 3,968 3,968 -

Share premium reserve 109,574 109,574 -

Statutory reserve 934 934 -

Treasury shares (44,091) (44,091) -

Stock option reserve 4,953 4,625 328

Cash fl ow hedges reserve (6,922) 183 (7,105)

Extraordinary reserve 2,767 2,767 -

Profi t brought forward 91,713 90,163 1,550

Profi t for the year (22,431) 9,210 (31,641)

Shareholders’ equity 140,465 177,333 (36,868)

Shareholders’ equity was €140,465 thousand at 31 December 2008 as against €177,333 thousand at 
31 December 2007 – a reduction of € 36,868 thousand due to:

•  the effect of exchange rate and interest rate hedges of currency borrowings within hedge 
accounting;

•  the reduction in profi t for the year principally caused by the investment impairment and the 
decrease of tax burden.

Commentary on the results of the Parent Company Amplifon S.p.A.
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The change in net fi nancial indebtness equal to €50,359 thousand is mainly due to:

The following investing activities:

•  €160,784 thousand of recapitalisation of subsidiaries in order to replace with own funds the 
amount of fi nancial debt accumulated in the former years following the various acquisitions made 
and to support the fi nancial needs;

•  €49,014 thousand relating to the liquidation of the UK subsidiary Ampli UK LLP in order to simplify 
the corporate structure in the United Kingdom; 

•  €5,955 thousand of net increase in tangibile fi xed assets and intangibile fi xed assets relating to 
store renovation and rebranding and new store and sales support software.

The following operating activites:

•  a reduction in debtors of €24,124 thousand mainly due to two forfaiting transactions entered into 
in June for a face value of €27,680 thousand and a discounted value of €26,714 thousand (most of 
which would however have been collected by 31 December 2008) and in December for a face value 
of €17,900 thousand and a discounted value of €17,202 thousand;

•  €12,380 thousand of interest charges on fi nancial debt and other net fi nancial charges;

•  income tax payment amounting to €10,374 thousand;

•  dividends received from Group Companies amounting to €44,282 thousand;

•  cash fl ow generated from operating activites amounting to €29,040 thousand.

The following fi nancing activites:

•  dividends paid amounting to €7,661 thousand;

•  positive changes due to the exchange and interest rates hedging activities for the amount of €353 
thousand.

Condensed Cash Flow Statement
The condensed cash fl ow statement discloses the change in fi nancial indebtednesses between the start and the 
end of the period. The notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contain a cash fl ow statement based on 
liquid assets as required by IAS 7 showing the change in liquid assets between the start and the end of the period.

(€ thousands) 2008 2007

Operating activities

Net income (loss) (22,431) 9,210

Amortization, depreciation and write-downs:
- other intangible fi xed assets 1,315 1,524

- tangible fi xed assets 3,254 3,035

Total amortization, depreciation and write-downs 4,569 4,559
Provisions and other non- monetary items 5,943 5,903

Investments impairment 72,904 18,715

(Gains) losses from sale of fi xed assets 4 139

Financial income and charges (30,056) (16,862)

Current and deferred income taxes 5,469 15,712

Change in assets and liabilities  

Use of funds (6,981) (7,506)

(Increase) Decrease in inventories (922) 1,761

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 24,124 1,942

Increase (decrease) in trade payables (918) 4,804

Increase (decrease) in other receivables/payables non-fi nancial net of tax receivables/payables 1,459 7,890

Total change in current assets and liabilities 16,762 8,891
Dividends received 44,282 24,429
Interest received/paid (12,380) (5,700)
Tax paid (10,374) (10,510)
Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) operating activities 74,692 54,486

Investing activities  

Purchase of intangible fi xed assets (1,495) (1,616)

Purchase of tangible fi xed assets (4,896) (5,128)

Consideration from sale of tangible fi xed assets 436 21

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (5,955) (6,723)
Cash fl ow generated by operating and investing activities (Free cash fl ow) 68,737 47,763

Business combinations / Share capital increase in subsidiaries (160,784) (23,872)

(Purchase) sale of other investments and securities 49,023 -

Cash fl ow generated by acquisition activities (111,761) (23,872)
Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (117,716) (30,595)

Financing activities

Hedging derivatives 353 -

Other non-current assets (27) (99)

Dividend distributions (7,661) (6,846)

Purchase of treasury shares - (41,778)

Capital increases - 1,001

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) fi nancing activities (7,335) (47,722)

Changes in net fi nancial indebtedness (50,359) (23,831)

Opening net fi nancial indebtedness (141,451) (117,620)

Effect of exchange rate fl uctuations on NFP (1,791) -

Changes in net fi nancial indebtedness (48,568) (23,831)

Closing net fi nancial indebtedness (191,810) (141,451)
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Related-Party Transactions
Amplifon’s related-party transactions concern both the supply of goods and services and funding and 
investment. All such transactions were settled at arm’s length and there were no untypical or unusual 
transactions. 

Parent companies

Transaction with the controlling company Amplifi n S.p.A. regarded:

•  rental under a tenancy agreement for the Via Ripamonti 133, Milan premises, which are the 
registered offi ce and main offi ce of Amplifon S.p.A. and the supply of ancillary services including 
building maintenance;

•  rental under certain tenancy agreements concerning store premises used in the business;

•  VAT credits and related interest accrued thereon under § 73 presidential decree 633/72 and 
ministerial decree 1312/79, which permitted transfer to the controlling entity of VAT credits and 
liabilities and consequently presentation of a joint Group VAT return. Since 2007 Amplifon S.p.A. has 
not taken part in the Group VAT scheme. This amount has been cashed beginning of March 2009.

Subsidiaries

Financial Transactions with Subsidiaries

Financial transactions between Amplifon S.p.A. and its subsidiaries are in place, both as current 
accounts than as long term loans, ruled at market conditions.

Service Contracts with Subsidiaries

Amplifon S.p.A. has entered into centralised service contracts with its foreign subsidiaries covering 
e.g. strategic operations, HR management with special reference to common compensation policies, 
incentive programmes, training and hiring staff and internationalisation of careers, marketing, 
administration and control, assistance with banking relationships and the introduction of shared 
information systems. The costs of these services are charged by Amplifon S.p.A. on the basis of 
contractually agreed parameters.

Security Plan

On 11 March 2004 the Board of Directors approved the ‘Security Plan’ pursuant to § 34 (G) Law 
196/2003 as supplemented and amended. A revised version of the ‘Security Plan’ was approved by the 
Chief Executive Offi cer on 30 June 2005. At the meeting of 26 April 2005 Franco Moscetti was appointed 
“Person in charge of the handling of personal data” under the Law. At the same meeting Franco Moscetti 
was given the responsibility of ‘Employer’ pursuant to Law 626/94 as amended by futher modifi cations.

Branch Offi ces

Amplifon S.p.A. has set up a branch offi ce – ‘Amplifon Succursale de Paris’ – with permanent offi ces in 
Arcueil, 22 Avenue Aristide Briand.

Outlook
The market in which Amplifon S.p.A. operates, is linked to demand for medical treatment and over the 
years has always been shown to be less sensitive than others to changes in the economic situation 
and generally remains stable.

Our development plans are therefore unchanged.
We will invest in our stores, continuing the job of improving territorial coverage by opening new outlets.

The new store layout will gradually be introduced to all our stores. This will improve not only their 
attractiveness but also their functionality and our customers’ comfort. At the same time the quality of 
our service will be further upgraded thanks to the installation of new exclusive equipment, which has 
been developed and created internally and provides the highest level possible of acoustic application.  
Quality will also be assured by very extensive investment in training at all staff levels. Our advertising 
drive will be constant. 

This investment will enable us to maintain – if not increase – our competitive edge over increasingly 
aggressive and structured competitors. 

There will of course be a special focus on organisational effi ciency and profi tability. These aims will be 
furthered thanks to increasing cost control, careful pursuit of all possible economies of scale, greater 
cooperation with suppliers and, where possible, outsourcing of non-core activities.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill Note 5              240,622 280,112               (39,490)

Intangible fi xed assets with fi nite useful life Note 6                65,918 70,766                 (4,848)

Tangible fi xed assets Note 7                56,358 57,654                 (1,296)

Investments valued at equity                  1,032 955                      77 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through the profi t and loss Note 8                  3,669 4,516                   (847)

Long-term hedging instruments Note 9                  3,285 718                  2,567

Other non-current fi nancial assets                    463 521                     (58)

Deferred tax assets Note 24                61,132 60,673                    459 

Receivables for disposals                      86 197                   (111)

Other assets Note 8                14,302 12,994                  1,308

Total non-current assets              446,867 489,106               (42,239)

Current assets

Inventories Note 10                39,850 37,442                  2,408 

Trade receivables Note 11                99,232 130,422               (31,190)

- parent companies Note 33 37 36 1

Tax receivables Note 11                19,653 16,983                  2,670 

Other receivables Note 11                14,552 16,705                 (2,153)

- parent companies Note 33 5,391 5,142 249

Available for sale investments                      67 81                     (14)

Hedging instruments Note 9                  1,722 666                  1,056 

Current portion of long-term fi nancial 
receivables                      73 75                       (2)

Short-term fi nancial receivables Note 12                  2,712 2,691 21

Cash and cash equivalents Note 13                92,360 55,525                36,835 

Total current assets              270,221 260,590                  9,631 

TOTAL ASSETS              717,088              749,696 (32,608)

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008 31/12/2007 Change

LIABILITIES

Shareholders' equity Note 14

Share Capital                  3,969 3,969                      -   

Share premium account              109,570 109,570                        - 

Treasury shares               (44,091) (44,091)                      -   

Other reserves (24,514) (8,897) (15,617)

Profi t (Loss) brought forward 153,356 145,275 8,081

Profi t (Loss) for the year               (14,536) 15,540               (30,076)

Group equity               183,754 221,366               (37,612)

Minority interests                     446 884                   (438)

Total equity               184,200 222,250               (38,050)

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities Note 16              220,565 225,973                 (5,408)

Provisions for risks and charges Note 17                21,145 23,391                 (2,246)

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts Note 18                  8,306 8,292                      14 

Hedging instruments Note 9                  7,338 15,005                 (7,667)

Deferred tax liabilities Note 24                26,709 23,711                  2,998 

Payables for business acquisitions Note 19                    661 996                   (335)

Other long-term debt Note 19                      11 10                        1 

Total non-current liabilities              284,735 297,378               (12,643)

Current liabilities

Trade payables Note 20                88,902 84,237                  4,665 

Payables for business acquisitions Note 21                  1,261 1,414                   (153)

Other payables Note 21                68,340 61,960                  6,380 

Hedging instruments Note 9                    152 -                    152 

Tax payables                21,605 23,827                 (2,222)

Provisions for risks and charges Note 22                    640 1,511                   (871)

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts                    792 82                    710 

Financial payables Note 23                66,461 57,037                  9,424 

Total current liabilities  248,153 230,068                18,085 

TOTAL LIABILITIES  717,088              749,696 (32,608)

Consolidated Financial Statements 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change

Recurring Non- 
recurring Total Recurring Non- 

recurring Total

Revenues from sales and services Note 25 641,439 641,439 667,938 667,938 (26,499)

Raw materials, consumables and 
supplies and change in raw materials, 
consumables and supplies (166,251) (166,251) (172,436) (172,436) 6,185
Personnel expenses Note 26 (181,299) (181,299) (183,168) (183,168) 1,869
Services (221,243) (221,243) (220,785) (220,785) (458)
- parent companies Note 33 (1,979) (1,979) (1,978) (1,978) (1)
Other income and revenues 3,236 3,236 2,286 2,286 950
Other costs (1,595) (1,595) (1,597) (1,597) 2
Gross Operating Margin  74,287 74,287 92,238 92,238 (17,951)
Amortisation, depreciation and 
impairment Note 27

Amortisation (12,970) (12,970) (16,277) (16,904) (33,181) 20,211
Depreciation (16,171) (16,171) (16,640) (16,640) 469
Impairment and impairment 
reversals of non-current assets (166) (29,396) (29,562) (781) (781) (28,781)

 (29,307) (29,396) (58,703) (33,698) (16,904) (50,602) (8,101)
Operating result  44,980 (29,396) 15,584 58,540 (16,904) 41,636 (26,052)
Financial income, charges and value 
adjustments to fi nancial assets Note 28

Group's share of the result of associated 
companies valued at equity 73 73 56 56 17
Other income and charges,
 impairment and revaluations 
of fi nancial assets (*) (934) (934) (268) (268) (666)
Interest income and charges (*) (15,169) (15,169) (13,769) (13,769) (1,400)
Other fi nancial income and charges (*) (1,163) (1,163) (2,430) (2,430) 1,267
Exchange gains and losses (3,705) (3,705) (1,601) (1,601) (2,104)
Gain (loss) on assets measured 
at fair value (*) 3,213 3,213 1,726 1,726 1,487

(17,685) (17,685) (16,286) (16,286) (1,399)
Net income (loss) before taxes  27,295 (29,396) (2,101) 42,254 (16,904) 25,350 (27,451)
Current and deferred income tax Note 29

Current tax (10,443) (10,443) (22,475) (22,475) 12,032
Deferred tax 1,199 (2,934) (1,735) 9,490 3,300 12,790 (14,525)

(9,244) (2,934) (12,178) (12,985) 3,300 (9,685) (2,493)
Total net income (loss)  18,051 (32,330) (14,279) 29,269 (13,604) 15,665 (29,944)
Minority interests 257 257 125 125 132
Group net income (loss)  17,794 (32,330) (14,536) 29,144 (13,604) 15,540 (30,076)

Earnings and dividend per share (€per share) Note 32 2008 2007

Earnings per share from:
- Basic
- Diluted

(0.075386)
(0.075336)

0.07982
0.07967

Dividend per share - 0.04

(€ thousands)
Year 2007 before 

reclassifi cation
Year 2007 after 
reclassifi cation

Other income and charges, impairment and revaluations of fi nancial assets (*) - (268)

Interest income and charges (*) (12,108) (13,769)

Other fi nancial income and charges (*) (4,387) (2,430)

Gain (loss) on assets measured at fair value (*) 1,754 1,726

Total (14,741) (14,741)

(*)   This item has been reclassifi ed from 2007 in order to detail separately the lines related to other income and charges, impairment and revaluations 
of fi nancial assets and the interest income and charges.
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Statement of Changes in Consolidated Net Equity
(€ thousands) Share 

Capital

Share 
premium 

account

Legal 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Treasury 
shares 

reserve

Stock 
option 

reserve

Cash fl ow 
hedge 

reserve

Profi t (loss) 
brought 
forward

Translation 
difference

Profi t (loss) 
for the year

Group 
net equity

Minority 
interests’ 

net equity

Total 
Shareholders' 

equity

Balance as at 1 January 2007 3,959 108,579 934 2,770 (2,313) 3,496 257 102,435 (4,258) 49,578 265,437 591 266,028

Allocation of 2006 result 49,578 (49,578) - -

Dividend distribution (6,846) (6,846) (6,846)

Share capital increase 10 991 1,001 1,001

Translation difference (15,050) (15,050) (67) (15,117)

Other changes 108 108 235 343

Treasury shares (41,778) (41,778) (41,778)

Hedge Accounting Note 9 (179) 1,867 1,688 1,688

Implicit cost of stock options Note 30 1,266 1,266 1,266

2007 result 15,540 15,540 125 15,665

Balance as at 31 December 2007 3,969 109,570 934 2,770 (44,091) 4,762 78 145,275 (17,441) 15,540 221,366 884 222,250

(€ thousands) Share 
Capital

Share 
premium 

account

Legal 
reserve

Other 
reserves

Treasury 
shares 

reserve

Stock 
option 

reserve

Cash fl ow 
hedge 

reserve

Profi t (loss) 
brought 
forward

Translation 
difference

Profi t (loss) 
for the year

Group 
net equity

Minority 
interests’ 

net equity

Total 
Shareholders' 

equity

Balance as at 1 January 2008 3,969 109,570 934 2,770 (44,091) 4,762 78 145,275 (17,441) 15,540 221,366 884 222,250

Allocation of 2007 result 15,540 (15,540) - -

Dividend distribution (7,661) (7,661) (7,661)

Translation difference (9,339) (9,339) (33) (9,372)

Other changes 202 202 (662) (460)

Hedge Accounting Note 9 (6,700) (6,700) (6,700)

Implicit cost of stock options Note 30 422 422 422

2008 result (14,536) (14,536) 257 (14,279)

Balance as at 31 December 2008 3,969 109,570 934 2,770 (44,091) 5,184 (6,622) 153,356 (26,780) (14,536) 183,754 446 184,200

Consolidated Financial Statements 2008
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

Operating Activities

Net income (loss) (14,279) 15,665

Amortisation, depreciation and write-downs: 58,704 50,602

- intangible fi xed assets 12,970 33,920

- tangible fi xed assets 16,338 16,682

- goodwill 29,396 -

Provisions 13,277             11,538 

(Gains) losses from sale of fi xed assets (1,235) 384

Associated companies' share of profi t net of dividends received (73) 3

Financial income and charges 17,758 16,286

Current, deferred tax assets and liabilities 12,178 9,685

Cash fl ow from operating income before working capital change 86,330 104,163

Utilization of funds (14,414) (7,564)

(Increase) Decrease in inventories (1,949) 395

Decrease (increase) in trade receivables 32,253 2,400

Increase (decrease) in trade payables 4,203 3,425

Changes in other receivables and other payables 10,283 5,695

Total change in assets and liabilities 30,376 4,351

Dividends received 65 4

Interest received (paid) (15,703) (14,544)

Tax paid (17,045) (21,493)

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) operating activities (A) 84,023 72,481

Investing Activities

Purchase of intangible fi xed assets (5,358) (7,923)

Purchase of tangible fi xed assets (17,876) (19,949)

Consideration from sale of tangible fi xed assets 1,978 2,425

Cash fl ow generated (absorbed) by investing activities (B) (21,256) (25,447)

Purchase of subsidiaries (net of subsidiaries’ liquid funds) and business units (6,730) (32,066)

Increase (decrease) in payables for businesses acquisition (185) (1,823)

(Purchase) sale of other investments and securities 2,734 2,182

Cash fl ow generated (absorbed) by acquisition activities (C) (4,181) (31,707)

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) investing activities (B+C) (25,437) (57,154)

Financing Activities

Increase (decrease) in fi nancial payables (13,297) 48,859

(Increase) decrease in non-current fi nancial receivables 486 4,732

Derivative instruments and other non-current assets (629) (2,785)

Dividend distributions (7,661) (6,846)

Purchase of treasury shares - (41,778)

Capital increases 353 1,001

Cash fl ow generated by (absorbed by) fi nancing activities (D) (20,748) 3,183

Net Increase in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C+D) 37,838 18,510

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 55,525 37,888

Effect of discontinued operations on liquid funds (159) 1,204

Effect of exchange rate fl uctuations on liquid funds (902) (2,077)

Liquid assets acquired 58 -

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 37,838 18,510

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 92,360 55,525

Related-party transactions refer exclusively to rentals on the main offi ce and certain stores: please see Note 33 for details.

Supplementary Information
The fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired is summarized in the following table:

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007

- Goodwill 4,660 27,158

- Customer lists 1,256 8,425

- Trademarks and non-competition agreements - 253

- Other intangible fi xed assets - 47

- Tangible fi xed assets 571 2,094

- Financial fi xed assets 13 - 

- Current assets 687 6,173

- Provisions for risks and charges (18) (3,079)

- Current liabilities (358) (5,859)

- Other non-current assets and liabilities (90) (1,461)

- Minority interest (3) (99)

Total Investments: 6,718 33,652

(Financial debt) cash and cash equivalents acquired 12 (1,586)

Total business combination 6,730 32,066

(Increase) decrease in payables for businesses combinations 185 1,823

Disposal of businesses (reduction in earn-outs) (2,753) -

Cash fl ow absorbed (generated) by acquisition activities 4,162 33,889

Consolidated Financial Statements 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. General Information

The Amplifon Group is the world leader in the distribution of hearing systems (hearing aids) and their 
adjustment and customization to hypo-acusic patients’ needs.

The parent company, Amplifon S.p.A., is based in Milan, in Via Ripamonti 133. The Group is directly 
controlled by Ampliter N.V. and indirectly by The Holland Trust, whose registered offi ce is in Douglas 
(Isle of Man - UK).

The consolidated fi nancial statements at 31 December 2008 have been prepared in accordance 
with International Accounting Standards and the implementation regulations set out in Article 9 of 
Legislative Decree 38 dated 28 February 2005. These standards include the IAS and IFRS issued by 
the International Accounting Standard Board, as well as the SIC e IFRIC interpretations issued by 
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee, which have been endorsed at 31 
December 2008, in accordance with the procedure set out in Article 6 of Regulation (EC) 1606 dated 
19 July 2002. International Accounting Standards endorsed after that date and before the preparation 
of these fi nancial statements are adopted in the preparation of the consolidated fi nancial statements 
only if early adoption is allowed by the Endorsing Regulation and the accounting standard itself and 
the Group has elected to do so.

The publication of the consolidated fi nancial statements of the Amplifon Group at 31 December 2008 
was authorized by a resolution of the Board of Directors of 11 March 2009. These fi nancial statements 
are subject to the approval of the Shareholders’ Meeting of Amplifon S.p.A. on 22 April 2009.

2. Valuation Criteria

2.1. Introduction

The consolidated fi nancial statements of the Amplifon Group have been prepared in compliance with 
the International Accounting Standards and related interpretations approved by the IASB and endorsed 
in accordance with the procedure set out in Article no. 6 of Regulation (EC) no. 1606 of 19 July 2002.

The consolidated fi nancial statements at 31 December 2008 have been prepared in accordance with 
the historical cost convention with the exception of derivative fi nancial instruments, certain fi nancial 
investments measured at fair value and assets and liabilities hedged by a fair value hedge, as more 
fully explained hereafter, as well as on the going concern assumptions.

The following table lists the international accounting standards and the interpretations approved by 
IASB and endorsed to be adopted in Europe and applied for the fi rst time in the fi nancial year under 
review.

Description Endorsement 
date

Publication
in O.J.E.C

Effective 
date

Effective date
for Amplifon

IFRIC 11 - IFRS 2 - 
Group and Treasury Share Transactions

1 June 2007 2 June 2007
Financial years 
beginning after 

1 mar 2007
1 Jan 2008

Changes to IAS 39 and to IFRS 7: 
Reclassifi cation of Financial Instruments 15 Oct 2008 16 Oct 2008 1 July 2008 1 July 2008

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 – The Limit on a Defi ned Benefi t 
Assets, Minimum Funding Requirements 
and their Interaction

16 Dec 2008 17 Dec 2008
Financial years 
beginning after 

1 Jan 2008
1 Jan 2008

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations had no material impact on the valuation of 
the assets, liabilities, costs and revenues of the Group and the information provided in the fi nancial 
statements.

The changes to IAS 39 introduced in October 2008 do not apply, in that the Group has no held-for-
trading or available-for-sale fi nancial assets. 

With respect to the presentation of the fi nancial statements it should be noted that:

•  Balance Sheet: the Group distinguishes between current and non-current assets and liabilities;
•  Income Statement: the Group classifi es costs by nature, as such classifi cation is deemed to be more 

representative of the mainly commercial and distribution activities carried out by the Group;
•  Cash fl ow statement: is prepared using the indirect method for defi ning cash fl ows deriving from 

operating activities;
•  Changes in Net Equity: the Group includes all changes in Net Equity, including those arising from 

transactions with the shareholders (dividend distributions, increases in share capital).

2.2. Use of estimates

Estimates and assumptions were made in the preparation of the fi nancial statements and related 
notes and, in particular, with regard to the following items: allowances for doubtful debts, provisions 
for risks and charges, inventory obsolescence, employees’ benefi ts as well as income tax and derivative 
fi nancial instruments.

Estimates are periodically reviewed and any adjustments due to changes in the circumstances which 
determined such estimates or additional information are recognised in the income statement. The use 
of reasonable estimates is an essential part of the preparation of the fi nancial statements and does 
not affect their overall reliability.

The Group tests for goodwill impairment at least once a year (see § 2.10). This requires the estimate 
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Such estimates require 
the forecast of future cash fl ows and the estimate of the pre-tax discount rate which refl ects the 
market conditions at the valuation date.
 

Consolidated Financial Statements 2008



148 149
Amplifon

Annual Report 2008

2.3. Future accounting principles and interpretations

The following table lists the IFRS/Interpretations approved by the IASB and endorsed for mandatory 
adoption in Europe as of 31 December 2008.

Description Endorsement 
date

Publication
in O.J.E.C

Effective 
date

Effective date
for Amplifon

IFRS 8 – Operating segments
21 Nov 2007 22 Nov 2007

Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 Jan 2009
1 Jan 2009

Changes to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment: 
Amendment relating to vesting conditions 
and cancellations

16 Dec 2008 17 Dec 2008
Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 Jan 2009
1 Jan 2009

Changes to IAS 1 Presentation 
of Financial Statements: Comprehensive 
revision including requiring 
a statement of comprehensive income

17 Dec 2008 18 Dec 2008
Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 Jan 2009
1 Jan 2009

Changes to IAS 23 Borrowing Costs: Comprehensive 
revision to prohibit immediate expensing

10 Dec 2008 17 Dec 2008
Capitalization 

allowed on or after 
1 Jan 2009

1 Jan 2009

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
16 Dec 2008 17 Dec 2008

Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 July 2008
1 Jan 2009

Changes to IFRS 1 First–time Adoption 
of International Financial Reporting Standards 
and IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements: Amendment relating 
to cost of an investment in a subsidiary, 
jointly controlled entity or associate

23 Jan 2009 24 Jan 2009
Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 Jan 2009
1 Jan 2009

Changes to IAS 1 Presentation of 
Financial Statements: Amendments relating 
to disclosure of puttable instruments 
and obligation arising on liquidation

21 Jan 2009 22 Jan 2009
Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 Jan 2009
1 Jan 2009

Changes to IAS 32 Financial Instruments Presentation: 
Amendments relating to puttable instruments 
and obligations arising on liquidation

21 Jan 2009 22 Jan 2009
Financial years 
beginning on or 

after 1 Jan 2009
1 Jan 2009

Changes to the following IAS/IFRSs under 
“Annual Improvements to IFRSs”:
  - IFRS 5 Non–current Assets Held for Sale 

and Discontinued Operations;
-   IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements;
  - IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment;
 - IAS 19 Employee Benefi ts;
 - IAS 20 Government Grants 

and Disclosure of Government Assistance;
 - IAS 23 Borrowing Costs;
-   IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate 

Financial Statements;
  - IAS 28 Investments in Associates;
- IAS 29 Financial Reporting 

in Hyperinfl ationary Economies;
  - IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures;
 - IAS 36 Impairment of Assets;
 - IAS 38 Intangible Assets;
  - IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 

Recognition and Measurement;
 - IAS 40 Investment Property;
 - IAS 41 Agriculture;

23 Jan 2009 24 Jan 2009

Financial years 
beginning after 

1 Jan 2009
(for improvements 

to IFRS 5: 
Financial years

 beginning 
on or after 

1 July 2009)

1 Jan 2009 
(For improvements 

to IFRS 5:  
1 Jan 2010)

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations is not expected to signifi cantly affect the 
valuation of assets, liabilities, costs or revenues of the Group.

Below are the international accounting standards, interpretations, amendments to existing accounting 
standards and interpretations, or specifi c provisions contained in the standards and interpretations 
approved by the IASB which on 3 March 2009 have not yet been endorsed for adoption in Europe:

Description Effective date

Revised IFRS 1 First Time Adoption 
of International Financial Reporting Standards Periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Revised IFRS 3 Business Combinations: 
Comprehensive revision on applying the acquisition method 
(and related changes to IAS 27 Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements, 
IAS 28 Investments in Associates and IAS 31 
Interests in Joint Ventures)

Financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Changes to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement: Eligible Hedged Items Financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Changes to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement: 
Reclassifi cation of Financial Assets: Effective Date and Transition

1 July 2008

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements Financial years beginning on or after 1 Jan 2008

IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate Financial years beginning on or after 1 Jan 2009

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation Financial years beginning on or after 1 Oct 2008

IFRIC 17 Distribution of Non-Cash Assets to Owners Financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Provisions of IAS 39 relating to fair value hedge of interest rate risk 
associated with a portfolio including core deposits Date of First Time Adoption

IFRIC 18 Transfers of assets from customers Financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009

The adoption of the above standards and interpretations is not expected to signifi cantly affect the 
valuation of assets, liabilities, costs and revenues of the Group.

2.4. Subsidiaries

The consolidation area includes companies which are controlled by the Group. Control is defi ned as 
the power to infl uence the fi nancial and operating policies of a company. The existence of control over 
a company is determined on the basis of: (i) voting rights, including potential ones, that the Group is 
entitled to and by virtue of which the Group may exercise the majority of the votes that can be cast 
at the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting; (ii) the content of possible agreements between shareholders 
or the existence of specifi c clauses in the Statutes which grant the Group the power to manage 
the company; (iii) control by the Group of a suffi cient number of votes to control the Shareholders’ 
Meeting of the company.

Income statement items are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements starting from the date 
control is acquired and up to the date such control is lost. Receivables and payables as well as costs 
and revenues arising from transactions between companies included in the consolidation area are 
eliminated in full as are capital losses and gains arising from transfers of non-current assets between 
consolidated companies, losses and profi ts arising from transactions between consolidated companies 
relating to sale of items that represent inventories of the acquiring company, write-downs and 
reversals of write-downs of investments in consolidated companies as well as intercompany dividends. 
Assets, liabilities, costs and revenues of subsidiaries are recorded in full, allocating to minority 
shareholders their share of net equity and of the net result.
The fi nancial statements of subsidiaries are adjusted where necessary to make the valuation criteria 
consistent with those adopted by the Group.
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2.8.  Functional currency, presentation currency and conversion criteria applied to foreign 

currency items

The consolidated fi nancial statements of the Amplifon Group are presented in Euros, the functional 
currency of the parent company, Amplifon S.p.A..

The fi nancial statements of subsidiaries and jointly-controlled companies are prepared in the 
functional currency of each company. 

When this currency differs from the presentation currency of the consolidated fi nancial statements, 
the fi nancial statements are converted using the current exchange rate method: income statement 
items are converted using the average exchange rates of the year, asset and liability items are 
translated using year-end rates and net equity items are converted at historical rates. 
The exchange differences are recorded under “conversion difference” in the consolidated net equity; 
when the company is disposed of, the cumulative differences booked in net equity are recognized in 
the income statement to offset the gain or loss on disposal.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the transaction date. 
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated, at the balance sheet 
date, at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currency and valued at cost are stated at the exchange rate used when initially recorded. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency and valued at fair value, at 
recoverable value, or at realizable value, are stated using the exchange rate ruling at the time the value 
was determined.

Any exchange rate differences arising from the settlement of monetary assets and liabilities or 
from the conversion at exchange rates that are different from those used when they were originally 
recorded, during the year or in previous fi nancial statements, are recognized in the income statement. 

2.9. Intangible fi xed assets

Intangible assets purchased separately and those acquired through business combination transactions 
carried out prior to the adoption of the IFRS are initially measured at cost, whilst those acquired 
through business combination transactions completed after the date of transition to the IFRS, are 
initially measured at fair value. Expenditure incurred after the initial acquisition are recorded as an 
increase in the cost of the intangible asset to the extent that the expenditure can generate future 
economic benefi ts.

Intangible assets with a fi nite useful life are amortized systematically over their useful life and are 
written down for impairments (see § 2.12). Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use 
and ceases when the asset is classifi ed as held-for-sale (or included in a disposal group classifi ed as 
held-for-sale). Both the useful life and the amortisation criterion are periodically reviewed and, where 
signifi cant changes have occurred compared to the previously adopted assumptions, the amortisation 
charge for the current year and subsequent ones is adjusted. Amortisation rates used in the year are 
shown in the following table.

2.5. Jointly-controlled companies

The fi nancial statements of companies that are jointly controlled are consolidated using the 
proportional method. Joint control arises from a shareholders’ agreement and exists only where, the 
unanimous approval by all the parties that have joint control is required for fi nancial and strategic 
decisions. Based on the proportional method of consolidation only the Group’s share of the assets, 
liabilities, costs and revenues of the investee are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements 
based on the Group’s ownership percentage, hence excluding the minority’s share of net equity and 
result. The transactions carried out by the group with jointly-controlled companies are eliminated based 
on the Group’s ownership percentage. The fi nancial statements of companies under joint control are 
adjusted in order to make the evaluation criteria consistent with those adopted by the Group.

 
2.6. Associated companies

Investments in associated companies are valued using the equity method.
A company is considered as an associated company if the Group is able to participate in the defi nition 
of the fi nancial and operating policies of the company and the latter is neither controlled nor jointly-
controlled by the Group. In accordance with the equity method, an investment in an associated 
company is included in the Balance Sheet at acquisition cost as adjusted (written-up or down) by 
the Group’s share of the changes in the associated company’s net assets. The goodwill relating to 
the associated company is included in the book value of the investment and is not amortized. The 
transactions carried out by the Group with associated companies are eliminated based on the Group’s 
ownership percentage. The fi nancial statements of subsidiaries and jointly-controlled companies are 
adjusted in order to make the valuation criteria consistent with those adopted by the Group.

2.7. Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for in the fi nancial statements as follows:

•  acquisition cost is determined on the basis of the fair value of assets transferred, liabilities 
taken over, or the shares transferred to the seller in order to obtain control, increased by directly 
attributable transaction costs;

•  the fair value of the shares transferred is determined on the basis of the market price at the 
exchange date;

•  where the agreement with the seller provides for a price adjustment linked to the profi tability of 
the business acquired, over a defi ned timeframe or at a pre-established future date (earn-out), if 
the adjustment is probable and may be reasonably determined, the adjustment is included in the 
acquisition price as of the acquisition date;

•  at the acquisition date, the assets and liabilities, including contingent ones, of the acquired company 
are recognized at their fair value at that date;

•  when the values of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recorded differ from their 
corresponding tax base at the acquisition date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized;

•  any difference between the acquisition cost of the investment and the corresponding share of net 
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill, if positive, conversely it is credited to the income statement, 
if negative;

•  income statement items are included in the consolidated fi nancial statements starting from the 
date control is acquired and up to the date such control is lost.
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Asset Type Depreciation rate

Software 20% - 25% -33.33% - 40%

Licenses 10% - 25% - 33.33% - 40%

Non-competition agreements 14% - 20%

Customer lists 10%

Trademarks and concessions 10% - 20% -33.33%

Other 10%- 20% - 25%

2.10. Goodwill 

Goodwill is recognized in the fi nancial statements following business combinations and is initially 
recorded at cost, which is the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share in the fair values 
of assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Goodwill is classifi ed as an intangible asset. As of the acquisition date, the goodwill acquired in a 
business combination is allocated to each of the acquirer’s cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefi t from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of 
whether other assets or liabilities of the Acquiree are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Subsequent to initial recognition, goodwill is not amortized but valued at cost less any cumulative 
impairment losses (see § 2.12).

If goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and the company disposes of an asset which 
is part of the unit, the goodwill associated with the asset disposed of is included in the carrying value 
of the asset when the disposal gain or loss is calculated; the amount is calculated on the basis of the 
values relating to the asset disposed of and the part that is retained.

2.11. Tangible fi xed assets 
Tangible fi xed assets are recorded at purchase or production cost, inclusive of accessory costs that are 
directly attributable to the assets. Operating assets acquired under fi nance lease agreements whereby 
all risks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred to the Group are recorded at the 
time of signing the agreement at the lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum 
payments due under the fi nance lease terms. A liability equal to the amount due to the lessor is 
recorded under fi nancial liabilities. 

Leases where the lessor does not substantially transfer all the risks and rewards of ownership 
associated with the assets are classifi ed as operating leases. The costs incurred for operating leases are 
recognized in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The initial recognition of tangible fi xed assets, or their signifi cant elements (except for land), net of 
their residual value, is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful life and is written down for 
impairments (see § 2.12). Depreciation charges begin when the asset is available for use and ceases 
when the asset is classifi ed as held-for-sale (or included in a disposal group classifi ed as held-for-
sale). The useful life and the depreciation rate, as well as the residual value, are periodically reviewed 
and, where signifi cant changes have occurred compared to the previously adopted assumptions, the 
depreciation charge for the current year and subsequent ones is adjusted.

Maintenance costs that do not add value to an asset are charged to the income statement in the year 
in which they are incurred. Maintenance costs that add value to an asset are recorded with the fi xed 
asset item to which they relate and are depreciated on the basis of the future residual useful life of 
the asset.
 
Improvement costs in respect of third party’s assets, such as premises, shops and branches under 
operating leases, are capitalized and depreciated over the shorter of the term of the lease and the 
useful life of the tangible asset installed.
 
Depreciation rates used in the year are shown in the following table.

Asset Type Depreciation rate

Buildings, constructions and leasehold improvements 3%- 10% -20%

Plant and machinery 10%- 15% -20% 

Industrial and commercial equipment 10%- 12.5% -15%- 20% -25% 

Motor vehicles 20%- 25% -40%

Computers and offi ce machinery 20% - 25% - 33.33% - 40%

Furniture and fi ttings 12% - 15% - 20% -25%

Other tangible fi xed assets 10%- 15% - 25%

2.12.  Impairment of intangible fi xed assets, tangible fi xed assets, investments in associated 

companies and goodwill

The Group verifi es the recoverable value of an asset whenever an impairment indicator exists and, for 
intangible fi xed assets with an indefi nite life, other tangible assets and goodwill, the assessment is 
carried out yearly. The recoverable value is defi ned as the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to 
sell and its value in use.

The fair value is determined by reference to a binding sales agreement between independent and 
willing counterparties at arms’ length. In the absence of such an agreement, the fair value is estimated 
on the basis of the market prices of the asset and the information available so as to refl ect the 
amount that the company may obtain, at the balance sheet date, from the disposal of the asset in an 
arms’ length transaction between informed and willing parties.

Value in use is determined by reference to the present value of the future estimated cash fl ows that 
are expected to be generated by the continued use of an asset and its disposal at the end of its useful 
life, discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market valuations of the present 
value of money and the specifi c risks associated with the asset. Where the value in use of a single 
asset cannot be determined due to the fact that the asset does not generate independent cash fl ows, 
the value in use is estimated by reference to the cash-generating unit that the asset relates to.

With regards to goodwill, the impairment test is performed for the smallest cash-generating unit that 
the goodwill relates to and which is used by the group to evaluate, either directly or indirectly, the 
return on the investment which includes the goodwill itself.

Impairment losses are recognized in the income statement when the carrying value of the asset is 
higher than its recoverable value. Except for goodwill, for which impairment losses cannot be reversed, 
when there is an indication that an impairment loss is no longer justifi ed or may have decreased, the 
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2.15. Cash and cash equivalents 

The caption ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ comprises liquid funds and fi nancial investments with a maturity, 
at the acquisition date, of less than three months and for which there is an insignifi cant risk of a change in 
value. These fi nancial assets are recorded at their nominal value.

2.16. Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges relate to costs and charges of a specifi c nature which are certain or 
probable and whose amount or timing is uncertain at the balance sheet date. 

Provisions are recognized if the following conditions apply: (i) the Group has a present obligation (legal 
or constructive) that has arisen as a result of a past event; (ii) it is probable that the fulfi lment of the 
obligation will require the use of resources which produce economic benefi ts; (iii) the amount can be 
estimated reliably.

The amount recognized as a provision in the fi nancial statements represents the best estimate of the 
expenditure required by the company to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date or to transfer it to 
a third party. 

When the time value of money is signifi cant and the due dates of the obligations can be reliably 
estimated, the provision is discounted to its present value; when the provision is discounted, the increase 
in provision related to the passage of time is charged to the income statement as a fi nancial charge.

In particular:

•  the agents’ termination provision includes the estimate of amounts due to agents, calculated using 
actuarial methods and having regard to the probability that such amounts will be paid, as well as the 
expectations as to the time of payment;

•  the warranty and repair provision includes the estimate of costs for warranty services to be provided on 
products sold, calculated on the basis of historical/statistical data and the warranty period;

•  the provision for risks arising from legal disputes includes the estimate of charges relating to legal 
disputes with employees, agents or associated with the supply of services.

2.17. Employees’ benefi ts

Post-employment benefi ts are defi ned on the basis of plans, even if not formalized, which due to their 
characteristics can be either defi ned-contribution or defi ned-benefi t plans.

Under a defi ned-contribution plan the company’s obligation is limited to the payment of the 
contributions agreed with the employees and it is determined on the basis of the contributions due at the 
end of the period, as reduced by any amounts already paid.

Under defi ned-benefi t plans the liability recorded in the books is equal to: (a) the present value of the 
defi ned-benefi t obligation at the balance sheet date; (b) plus any actuarial gains (minus any actuarial 
losses); (c) less any past service costs that have not yet been recorded; (d) less the fair value at the balance 
sheet date of plan assets (if any) out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. As regards the 
“corridor” method, the Amplifon Group immediately recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from 
changes in actuarial assumptions or in the conditions of the plan in the income statement.

carrying value of the asset is adjusted to its recoverable value. The increased carrying value of an asset 
due to a reinstatement does not, however, exceed the carrying value that the asset would have had 
(net of the write-down or amortisation) if the impairment had not been recognized in previous years. 
The reinstatement is immediately recognized in the income statement.

2.13. Financial assets (excluding derivatives)

Financial assets are initially recognized in the fi nancial statements, at the transaction date, at their fair 
value. This value is increased by the transaction costs that are directly attributable to the purchase of 
the asset, excluding ancillary costs related to the purchase of fi nancial assets held for trading that are 
recognized in the income statement when incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the accounting treatment of fi nancial assets depends on their 
functional destination:

•  fi nancial assets held for trading, acquired for the purpose of generating short-term gains from price 
fl uctuations, are measured at fair value and any gains and losses arising from the changes in fair 
value are included in the income statement;

•  loans and receivables, represented by non-derivative fi nancial assets, with fi xed or determinable 
payments and which are not quoted in an active market, are valued at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method and are written down for impairments; any impairment losses are 
calculated as the difference between the carrying value of the receivable and the present value 
of the future estimated cash fl ows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate; the 
impairment loss is recognised in a provision if based on an estimate and is directly recognised 
through profi t and loss as an adjustment to the value of the asset if it is a defi nitive ascertained 
loss. If in a subsequent period the amount of the impairment loss is reduced and such reduction can 
be objectively traced to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the impairment 
loss may be reversed up to its amortised cost by using the provision made previously, if any, or by 
adjusting the value of the asset upwards. Impairment losses are recognised where there are objective 
diffi culties in recovering the receivable, e.g. (i) fi nancial diffi culties experienced by the debtor, (ii) 
non-payment of several instalments under the contract and/or signifi cantly delayed payment of 
instalments or (iii) the signifi cant age of the receivables;

•  shares and other securities which the Group classifi es as fi nancial assets held for trading, are valued 
at fair value, any changes being recognized in the income statement. Such classifi cation is in line 
with the Group strategy which requires the return on such assets to be managed and measured at 
fair value.

Financial assets are eliminated from the fi nancial statements when the related contractual rights 
expire, or when Amplifon S.p.A. substantially transfers all the risks and rewards of ownership associated 
with the fi nancial asset. In the latter case the difference between the sale consideration and the net 
book value of the asset sold is recognized in the income statement.

2.14. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of purchase or production cost and their net realizable value 
(represented by their open market value). Inventories are valued using the weighted average cost 
method.
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2.20. Revenues, interest income and dividends

Revenues are recognized on the basis of the fair value of the sale consideration agreed, net of 
discounts, reductions, returns, premiums and tax, if any. Revenues from the sale of products are 
recognised at the time when the Group transfers to the purchaser the risks and rewards of ownership, 
that is on transfer of title (which usually coincides with the dispatch or delivery of the products) or 
with the end of the trial period, if applicable.

Revenues – less any implicit fi nancial component, interest receivable being indicated separately – are 
discounted to their present value and if the discounting effect is signifi cant, the implicit fi nancial 
element is separated. The fi nancial element is allocated between the amount pertaining to the current 
year and future years, with the latter being accounted for as deferred income.

Revenues from services are recognised when the services are provided, based on the accrual method of 
accounting and based on the stage of completion of the transaction at the fi nancial statement date.

Interest income is recognised on the basis of the effective interest rate. Dividends are recognised when 
the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established. 

2.21. Current and deferred income tax

Tax payables and receivables for current income tax are recorded at the amount that is expected to 
be paid to/received from the tax authorities at current rates and on the basis of the laws in force, or 
substantially approved at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on the temporary differences between the value of assets 
and liabilities in the fi nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases.

Deferred income tax are not recorded: (i) when they derive from the initial recognition of goodwill or 
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination and which, at the time of the 
transaction, does not affect either the accounting profi t or the taxable profi t/loss; (ii) when they relate 
to temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures where the reversal of 
temporary differences may be controlled and it is probable that it will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets, including those arising from unused tax losses and tax credits, are recorded only to 
the extent their recovery is highly probable.

Deferred tax assets are not discounted to present value and are calculated using tax rates that are 
expected to apply when the tax are paid or settled in the respective countries where the Group operates.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are debited or credited directly to net equity if they relate to elements 
which are recognized directly in net equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded respectively 
under non-current assets and liabilities and are offset only when the legal right to the set-off exists.

When an asset is revalued for tax purposes and the revaluation does not relate to an accounting 
revaluation of an earlier period, or to one that is expected to be carried out in a future period, deferred 
tax assets are recognized in the income statement on the temporary difference arising as a result of the 
revaluation.

Under defi ned-benefi t plans, the cost charged to the income statement is equal to the algebraic sum 
of the following elements: (a) current service cost; (b) the fi nancial charges arising from the increase 
in liability due to the passage of time; (c) the expected return on plan assets; (d) actuarial gains and 
losses; (e) past service cost; (f) the effect of any curtailments or settlements under the plan.

2.18. Stock option

The Group grants certain top executives the right to participate in stock option plans. These stock 
options are of the “equity settled” type and the benefi ciary has the right to purchase Amplifon S.p.A.’s 
shares at a certain pre-established price if certain conditions are met.

For “equity settled” stock option plans, the fair value of the stock options awarded is recognized in the 
income statement under personnel expenses over the period running from the date they are granted 
to the maturity date and a corresponding amount is recorded in a net equity reserve. The fair value of 
the stock options is determined at the date they are granted, taking account of the market conditions 
at that date.

At each balance sheet date, the Group reassesses the assumption about the number of stock options 
which are likely to be exercised and records the effect of any change in estimate in the income 
statement adjusting the corresponding net equity reserve. In the event that the stock options are 
exercised, the amount received from the exercise of the stock options at the strike price is recorded as 
an increase in share capital and in the share premium account.

2.19. Financial liabilities (excluding derivatives)

Financial liabilities include fi nancial payables, lease obligations and trade payables.

Financial payables are initially recognized at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. 
Lease obligations are initially recognized at the fair value of the operating assets that are the subject 
of the agreements or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum payments due. Trade payables are 
generally recorded at nominal value except in those cases where the fair value of the consideration 
signifi cantly differs from the nominal value. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, fi nancial liabilities are valued at amortized cost; the difference 
between the initial book value and the reimbursement value is recognized in the income statement 
using the effective interest rate method.

When a fi nancial liability is hedged against interest rate risk in a fair value hedge, any changes in fair 
value due to the hedged risk are not included in the calculation of the amortized cost. These changes 
are amortized starting from the moment the fair value hedge accounting is discontinued (§ 2.23). 

Financial charges accrued during the period are fully charged to the income statement. The Group 
does not capitalize fi nancial charges by including them in the production cost of balance sheet assets.

Financial liabilities are eliminated from the fi nancial statements when the underlying obligation is 
settled, cancelled or fulfi lled.
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considered in the assessment of the hedge effectiveness. In the case of forward contracts, only changes in fair 
value due to changes in the spot rate are designated as a hedging instrument; conversely the fair value changes 
due to changes in the forward points are recognized in the income statement and are not considered in the 
assessment of the hedge effectiveness. 

If the hedge becomes ineffective or the Group changes its hedging strategies, hedge accounting is discontinued. 
In particular, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the hedge becomes ineffective or when 
there is a change in the hedging strategies. 

If, in a fair value hedge, the hedged item is a fi nancial instrument measured using the effective interest rate 
method, the adjustments made to the book value of the hedged item are amortized starting from the date 
when fair value hedge accounting is discontinued and the hedged item is no longer adjusted for fair value 
changes attributable to the hedged risk.

Derivatives are recorded as assets if their fair value is positive and as liabilities if their fair value is negative. These 
balances are shown under assets or liabilities if related to derivatives which do not meet hedge accounting 
criteria, conversely they are classifi ed according to the hedged item.

In particular, if the hedged item is classifi ed as a current asset or liability, the positive or negative fair value 
of the hedging instrument is included under current assets or liabilities; if the hedged item is classifi ed under 
non-current assets or liabilities, the positive or negative fair value of the hedging instrument is included under 
non-current assets or liabilities.

2.24. Share capital, treasury shares, dividend distribution and other net equity items

Ordinary shares issued by the parent company Amplifon S.p.A. are classifi ed as part of net equity. Any costs 
incurred to issue new shares, also following the exercise of stock options, are classifi ed as a reduction in net 
equity.

Purchases and disposals of treasury shares, as well as any gains or losses on purchase/disposal, are recognized 
in the fi nancial statements as changes in net equity. Dividends distributed to the shareholders are recorded 
as a reduction in net equity and as a liability of the period when the dividend payment is approved by the 
Shareholders’ Meeting.

2.25. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or group of assets and liabilities being disposed of) are classifi ed as held for sale if their 
book value will be recovered mainly through a sale rather than through their continued use.

If they are classifi ed as held for sale, non-current assets (or group of assets and liabilities being disposed of) are 
recorded at the lower of their book value and their fair value net of costs to sell.

2.26. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are determined by comparing the Group’s net income to the weighted-average number 
of shares outstanding during the accounting period. For the calculation of the diluted earnings per share, the 
weighted average number of shares outstanding is adjusted assuming the conversion of all potential shares 
with a dilutive effect.

2.22. Value added tax

Revenues, costs and assets are recognized net of valued added tax (VAT), except where VAT applied to the 
purchase of goods or services is non-deductible, in which case it is recognized as part of the purchase cost of 
the asset or as part of the expense recorded in the income statement.
The net amount of indirect tax on sales which may be recovered from/paid to the Tax Authorities is 
included in the fi nancial statements under other receivables or payables, depending on whether it is a 
debit or a credit balance.

2.23. Derivative fi nancial instruments 

The Group trades in derivative fi nancial instruments for the purpose of neutralizing the fi nancial risks it is 
exposed to and which it decides to hedge against in accordance with its adopted strategy (see § 3).

The documentation which formalizes the hedging relationship subject to Hedge Accounting includes the 
identifi cation of the:

• hedging instrument;

• hedged item or transaction;

• nature of the risk;

•  methods that the company intends to adopt to assess the hedge effectiveness in offsetting the 
exposure to changes in the fair value of the hedged item or the cash fl ows associated with the risk 
that is hedged against.

Upon initial recognition, such instruments are measured at fair value. At the following accounting year-ends, 
the fair value of the derivatives are measured again and:

(i)    if these instruments do not meet the requisites for hedge accounting, any fair value changes that originate 
after initial recognition are booked in the income statement;

(ii)   if these instruments satisfy the criteria of fair value hedges, starting from that date any changes in the fair 
value of the derivative are recognised in the income statement; at the same time, any fair value changes 
due to the hedged risk are recorded as an adjustment to the book value of the hedged item and the same 
amount is recorded in the income statement; the amount of any hedge ineffectiveness is recognized in the 
income statement, under a different caption from the one comprising the fair value changes of the hedging 
instrument and the hedged item;

(iii)  if these instruments meet the criteria for cash fl ow hedges, starting from that date any changes in the fair 
value of the derivative are recognized in net equity, but only to the extent of the effective amount of the 
hedge, with the amount of any hedge ineffectiveness being recognized in the income statement; changes in 
the fair value of the derivative that are recognized in net equity are subsequently transferred to the income 
statement in the period in which the transaction that is hedged against affects the income statement;

(iv)  if these instruments meet the criteria for hedges of ‘net investment in a foreign operation’, starting from 
that date any changes in the fair value of the derivative are adjusted as part of the “conversion difference”, 
to the extent of the effective amount of the hedge and the ineffective part is recognized in the income 
statement.

Hedging is carried out by the designated instrument, considered as a whole. In the case of options or forward 
contracts, however, only part of the derivative instrument is designated as the hedging instrument; the 
remainder is recognized in the income statement. More specifi cally, in the case of options, only the changes 
in fair value due to changes in the intrinsic value are designated as hedging instrument; conversely, the fair 
value changes of options due to changes in the time value are recognized in the income statement and are not 
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other intercompany transactions and investments in quoted instruments in foreign currency are not 
high since the amounts involved are not signifi cant, hence they are not hedged. 

Taking the foregoing into account, the fl uctuations in exchange rates in 2008 had no signifi cant effects 
on the Amplifon Group’s consolidated accounts.

With regards to the foreign exchange translation risk, considering that each country realise revenues 
and bear costs in the same currency and that the main part of the margin is denominated in the 
Group functional currency, no hedging activity is performed, considering also the complexity of these 
activities.

Currency risk – sensitivity analysis

The entire amount of the US dollar long-term note payable issued by Amplifon S.p.A. of USD 175 
million is fully hedged against currency risk.

In particular, as a result of the derivative instruments entered into, the Group has fi xed the Euro/Dollar 
exchange rate for the entire term of these loans. Therefore, it is reasonable to assume that any change 
in exchange rates will not give rise to a signifi cant economic effect as the foreign currency positions 
and the hedging derivatives will automatically generate changes of the same amount but of the 
opposite sign.

Similar considerations may be made with regard to intercompany loans, denominated in British 
Pounds, between Amplifon S.p.A. and the UK and Swiss affi liates.

The analysis excludes receivables, payables and future commercial fl ows which have not been hedged 
since, as stated above, these are not signifi cant.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk includes the following situations:

•  fair value risk, that is the risk that the value of a fi nancial asset or liability at fi xed interest rate 
changes due to fl uctuations in market interest rates;

•  cash fl ow risk, that is the risk that the future cash fl ows of a fi nancial asset or liability at variable 
interest rate fl uctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

In the Amplifon Group fair value risk arises on the issue of fi xed-income bonds (private placements). 
Cash fl ow risk arises from recourse to variable-rate bank borrowings. 

The Group’s strategy aims to minimise cash fl ow risk, especially on long-term exposure, by balanced 
recourse to fi xed and variable rate borrowings, judging when each borrowing is obtained when to 
transform it from variable to fi xed rate. At 31 December 2008 46% of the €271 million medium-term 
debt (including the short-term portion of such borrowings) i.e. €124 million, had been transformed 
into fi xed-rate debt through the use of swaps. Given the foregoing, interest fl uctuations in 2008 had 
no signifi cant effects on the Amplifon Group’s consolidated accounts.

3. Financial risk management

The Overall Macro-economic Scenario

The general economic crisis which began in the United States in the second half of 2007 gradually 
deteriorated until in September 2008 it developed into a severe fi nancial crisis with serious 
consequences for a number of US and European fi nancial institutions. A crisis of confi dence then 
overtook international fi nance creating an extremely thin interbank market, a dramatic fall in share 
prices, serious fi nancial diffi culties for banks that depended on the money markets for their funding 
as a consequence – following the collapse of Lehman Brothers – of the perception that liquidity and 
counterparty risk had greatly intensifi ed. The central banks intervened with huge coordinated efforts in 
the attempt to restore liquidity to the markets. The US and European authorities intervened with large 
injections of cash to prevent the insolvency of certain large banks, which would have had systemic 
consequences that were considered unsustainable.

In recent months this situation produced sharp fl uctuations in both interest rates and exchange rates.

Risks affecting the Amplifon Group

The Amplifon Group, due to the nature of its business is exposed to the following fi nancial risks:

• currency risk

• interest rate risk

• credit risk

• price risk

• liquidity risk

Currency risk 
The currency risk includes the following:

•  foreign exchange transaction risk, that is the risk of changes in the value of a fi nancial asset or 
liability due to exchange rate fl uctuations; 

•  foreign exchange translation risk, that is the risk that the conversion of the assets, liabilities, costs 
and revenues relating to a ‘net investment in a foreign operation’ into the presentation currency 
gives rise to a positive or negative difference in the balances of the converted items.

In the Amplifon Group, foreign exchange transaction risk is substantially negligible considering that 
each country is practically autonomous in the management of its business, bearing costs in the same 
currency as its income and arises mainly from intercompany transactions (loans, current accounts, 
recharges due to cost sharing agreements) which expose the company, whose functional currency is 
different from the currency of the intercompany transaction, to foreign exchange risk. Furthermore, 
exposure to foreign exchange transaction risk arises from certain fi nancial investments in quoted 
instruments denominated in a currency other than the functional one of the company that holds 
them. Foreign exchange translation risk arises from investments in the United States, United Kingdom, 
Switzerland, Hungary and Egypt. 

The Group’s strategy aims to minimise the impact on profi t and loss of changes in exchange rates 
and requires that the risk arising from fi nancial positions in a currency other than the presentation 
currency of individual subsidiaries be hedged. These are: (i) the bond denominated in US dollars 
issued by Amplifon S.p.A. and underwritten by Amplifon USA Inc. and (ii) the intercompany loans 
denominated in pounds sterling between Amplifon S.p.A. and its UK affi liates. The risks arising from 
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the issuer of a fi nancial instrument fails to meet its obligations and causes a 
fi nancial loss to the underwriter.

Credit risk for the Amplifon Group arises from:

(i)  sales made as part of the ordinary business activity;
(ii)  the use of fi nancial instruments that require settlement of positions with the counterparty.

The risk related to point (i) is not signifi cant as the only positions with a high unit value are 
represented by receivables from Italian public bodies where the insolvency risk, if there is one, in the 
past has been almost non-existent.

Additionally, in comparison with previous years the credit risk arising from sales to customers on an 
instalment basis has increased. Due to the recent fi nancial crisis some customers may not be able 
to meet their obligation. This entails the risk that working capital may increase and that losses may 
be incurred on debtors. The Group through its corporate centre has set up a monthly debtor position 
reporting system which monitors the composition and maturity of debtors in each country, agreeing 
with local management actions to be taken to recover the credit and commercial policies. Scope for 
instalment sales or consumer fi nance has been limited to a maximum maturity of one year and where 
possible consumer loans are managed by external fi nance houses, which advance the whole amount 
of the sale to Amplifon. In any case this risk is marginal, since almost all sales to private individuals are 
for cash. 

The risk described under (ii) above, despite inevitable uncertainty as to potential sudden and 
unforeseen defaults by counterparties, is managed by diversifying among the largest investment- 
grade Italian and foreign banks. Given the modest number of transactions outstanding, there is 
inevitable concentration of risk, especially as regards exchange-rate and interest-rate hedges of the 
private placement, which were entered into with one counterparty only. 

Price risk

Price risk is represented by the risk that the value of a fi nancial asset or liability changes due to 
fl uctuations in market prices (other than those relating to currencies and interest rates), both where 
such fl uctuations arise from specifi c aspects of the fi nancial asset or liability or of the issuer of the 
fi nancial liability and where such fl uctuations are attributable to market factors. This risk is common 
to fi nancial assets that are not listed on any active market and which cannot always be converted into 
cash in a short period of time at a value close to their fair value.
 
In the Amplifon Group price risk arises from certain fi nancial investments in quoted instruments (most 
of all bonds). Given the size of the investments, such risk is not signifi cant hence it is not hedged 
against. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is represented by the risk that an entity will encounter diffi culty in raising funds to meet 
its obligations and encompasses the risk that the counterparties which granted the loans and/or credit 
lines may request their restitution.

Interest rate risk - sensitivity analysis

The Private Placement denominated in US dollars and amounting to USD 180 million is partly hedged 
against interest rate risk. In particular, as a result of the hedging transactions entered into:

(i)  approximately US dollar 143 million generate fi xed-rate interest;
(ii)  approximately US dollar 37 million generate variable-rate interest.

With respect to the amount referred as regards the amount stated in point (i) above, any change 
in exchange rates will not give rise to a signifi cant economic effect as the loan and the hedging 
derivatives are bound to generate changes of the same amount but of the opposite sign.

With respect to the amount referred to in point (ii), as well as the other variable-rate loans and 
derivative instruments not accounted for as hedge accounting instruments, the following table 
highlights the higher/lower income before tax arising from increases/decreases in interest rates.

2008
Increase/decrease in interest rates 

(in %) 
Effect on income before tax

(in € thousand)

Indebtedness in Euros 1.00% (1,388)

Indebtedness in USD 1.00% (113)

Derivatives in Euros 1.00%

Derivatives in USD 1.00%

Bank current accounts 1.00% 299

Indebtedness in Euros -1.00% 1,388

Indebtedness in USD -1.00% 113

Derivatives in Euros -1.00% 416

Derivatives in USD -1.00% -

Bank current accounts -1.00% (299)

2007
Increase/decrease in interest rates 

(in %) 
Effect on income before tax

(in € thousand)

Indebtedness in Euros 1.00% (1,417)

Indebtedness in USD 1.00% (152)

Derivatives in Euros 1.00% 451

Derivatives in USD 1.00% 33

Bank current accounts 1.00% 40

Indebtedness in Euros -1.00% 1,417

Indebtedness in USD -1.00% 152

Derivatives in Euros -1.00% -

Derivatives in USD -1.00% -

Bank current accounts -1.00% (40)

Notes:
- the amounts in USD are converted into Euros using the average exchange rate for the fi nancial year
- as regards derivatives represented by options, the sensitivity analysis assumes that market volatility remains unchanged
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(iv)  if these instruments meet the criteria for hedges of ‘a net investment in a foreign operation’, 
starting from that date any changes in the fair value of the derivative are adjusted through the 
“conversion difference”, for the effective amount of the hedge and recognized in the income 
statement for the ineffective portion.

The hedging strategy adopted by the Group is accounted for through the recording entries described 
above starting from the time that the following conditions are met:
 

•  the hedging relationship, its purpose and the overall strategy pursued are formally defi ned and 
documented; the documentation prepared includes the identifi cation of the hedging instrument, the 
hedged item, the nature of the risk which the company intends to hedge and the methods used to 
evaluate the effectiveness of the hedge;

•   hedge effectiveness may be reliably assessed and it is reasonable to believe, as can be confi rmed by 
ex-post corroboration, that the hedge will be highly effective in the period in which exposure to the 
hedged risk exists;

•  the risk of changes in cash fl ows related to a future transaction is hedged against where the future 
transaction is highly probable and its exposure to the risk of changes in cash fl ows which could 
affect the income statement.

Derivatives are recorded as assets if their fair value is positive and as liabilities if their fair value is 
negative. These balances are shown under assets or liabilities if related to derivatives which do not meet 
hedge accounting criteria, whereas in other cases they are classifi ed according to the hedged item.
In particular, if the hedged item is classifi ed as a current asset or liability, the positive or negative 
fair value of the hedging instrument is included under current assets or liabilities; if the hedged item 
is classifi ed under non-current assets or liabilities, the positive or negative fair value of the hedging 
instrument is included under non-current assets or liabilities.
 
Any intercompany derivatives are eliminated on consolidation.

 
4. Segment information

The Amplifon Group operates in one business sector in four world regions, which are structured 
according the prevailing market conditions, including current regulations and the conditions for 
obtaining health service subsidies: Continental Europe (France, Germany, Italy, The Netherlands, 
Portugal, Spain, Switzerland and Hungary); United Kingdom and Ireland; North America (US and 
Canada) and Africa (Egypt). 

In contrast to information provided on previous occasions, the following tables show United Kingdom 
data separately.

Profi t fi gures down to EBIT and individual balance-sheet items are monitored by region. Finance cost 
is not monitored since it depends on decisions taken at the corporate centre as to the funding of each 
region (i.e. using capital or borrowings) and thus tax.

Income and balance-sheet data by region are determined using the same methods and accounting 
principles as are applied when preparing the consolidated accounts.

This risk has become particularly signifi cant in the fi nancial crisis of recent months. 

The Group is therefore carefully monitoring cash fl ow and debt, maximising cash fl ow from operations 
and, within the credit market restrictions described above, maintaining relations with its lending 
banks for the purpose of securing suitable lines of credit. In December 2008 the Group obtained 
medium/long-term loans of €55 million thanks to which we believe that, at least in the short term, 
our liquidity risk is insignifi cant: liquid assets disclosed in the accounts as at 31 December 2008 are 
suffi cient – together with the committed lines of credit – to meet all our obligations through to the 
early months of 2010.

 
Hedging instruments

Hedging instruments are used by the Group exclusively to mitigate, in line with the business strategy, 
interest rate risk and currency risk and comprise exclusively derivative fi nancial instruments. In order 
to maximize the economic effectiveness of the hedge, the Group’s strategy provides that:
 

•  counterparties should be large in size and have a high credit rating in order to minimize the 
counterparty risk;

•  the instruments entered into have features that closely mirror those of the hedged item;

•  the trend of any instruments used be monitored, not least for the purpose of verifying and if 
possible improving, the adequacy of the structure of the instruments used by reference to the 
objectives of the hedge.

The derivatives used by the Group are generally represented by non-structured fi nancial instruments 
(so-called plain vanilla). In particular, the types of derivatives adopted are the following:

• cross currency swaps;

• interest rate swaps;

• interest rate collar;

• forward foreign exchange contracts.

Upon initial recognition, such instruments are measured at fair value. At the following accounting 
year-ends, the fair value of the derivatives must be measured again and:

(i)     if these instruments do not meet the requisites for hedge accounting, any fair value changes that 
originate after initial recording are recorded in the income statement;

(ii)    if these instruments meet the criteria of fair value hedges, starting from that date any changes 
in the fair value of the derivative are recognized in the income statement; at the same time, any 
fair value changes due to the hedged risk are booked as an adjustment to the value of the item 
hedged and recorded in the income statement; the amount of any ineffective hedge is recognized 
in the income statement, under a different caption from the one used to record the fair value 
changes of the hedging instrument and the hedged item;

(iii)  if these instruments meet the criteria of cash fl ow hedges, starting from that date any changes 
in the fair value of the derivative are recognized in net equity, but only to the extent of the 
effective amount of the hedge, the amount of any ineffective portion being recognized in the 
income statement; changes in the fair value of the derivative that are recognized in net equity are 
subsequently transferred to the income statement in the same period in which the transaction 
that is hedged against impacts the income statement;
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Balance Sheet at 31 December 2008

(€ thousands)

Continental 
Europe

United
 Kingdom 

and Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Consolidated

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill 164,909 12,862 62,851 - - 240,622

Intangible fi xed assets with fi nite 
useful life 38,933 12,448 14,537 - - 65,918

Tangible fi xed assets 46,432 5,269 4,156 501 - 56,358

Investments valued at equity 1,032 - - - - 1,032

Financial assets measured at fair 
value through the profi t and loss 
account 3,669 - - - - 3,669

Hedging instruments 3,285 - - - - 3,285

Other non-current fi nancial assets 32 - 431 - - 463

Deferred tax assets 47,391 3,960 9,781 - - 61,132

Receivables for disposals - - 86 - - 86

Other assets 2,313 305 11,684 - - 14,302

Total non-current assets 446,867

Current assets

Inventories 38,308 520 761 261 - 39,850

Receivables 106,856 3,153 27,438 176 (4,186) 133,437

Hedging instruments 1,722 - - - - 1,722

Other fi nancial assets 2,852

Cash and cash equivalents 92,360

Total current assets 270,221

TOTAL ASSETS 717,088

LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity 184,200

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities 88,272 - 132,293 - - 220,565

Provisions for risks and charges 15,991 - 5,154 - - 21,145

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts 7,813 - 493 - - 8,306

Hedging instruments 7,338 - - - - 7,338

Deferred tax 8,591 3,234 14,878 6 - 26,709

Payables for business acquisitions - - 661 - - 661

Other long-term debt - - 11 - - 11

Total non-current liabilities 284,735

Current liabilities

Trade payables 62,844 4,195 25,464 331 (3,932) 88,902

Payables for business acquisitions 944 - 317 - - 1,261

Other payables 59,466 3,855 5,172 101 (254) 68,340

Hedging instruments 152 - - - - 152

Tax payables 20,348 1,304 (64) 17 - 21,605

Provisions for risks and charges 640 - - - - 640

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts 792 - - - - 792

Financial payables 66,461

Total current liabilities 248,153

TOTAL LIABILITIES 717,088

Balance Sheet at 31 December 2007

(€ thousands)

Continental 
Europe

United
 Kingdom 

and Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Consolidated

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Goodwill 163,757 56,653 59,702 - - 280,112

Intangible fi xed assets with fi nite 
useful life 38,673 17,331 14,762 - - 70,766

Tangible fi xed assets 43,803 8,557 4,832 462 - 57,654

Investments valued at equity 955 - - - - 955

Financial assets measured at fair 
value through the profi t and loss 
account 4,516 - - - - 4,516

Hedging instruments 718 - - - - 718

Other non-current fi nancial assets 32 - 489 - - 521

Deferred tax assets 44,552 7,268 8,853 - - 60,673

Receivables for disposals - - 197 - - 197

Other assets 2,531 395 10,068 - - 12,994

Total non-current assets 489,106

Current assets

Inventories 34,497 1,089 1,499 357 - 37,442

Receivables 136,740 4,750 27,970 119 (5,469) 164,110

Hedging instruments 666 - - - - 666

Other fi nancial assets 2,847

Cash and cash equivalents 55,525

Total current assets 260,590

TOTAL ASSETS 749,696

LIABILITIES

Shareholders’ equity 222,250

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities 123,653 - 102,320 - - 225,973

Provisions for risks and charges 18,798 - 4,583 10 - 23,391

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts 7,826 - 466 - - 8,292

Hedging instruments 15,005 - - - - 15,005

Deferred tax 7,057 4,888 11,761 5 - 23,711

Payables for business acquisitions - - 996 - - 996

Other long-term debt - - 10 - - 10

Total non-current liabilities 297,378

Current liabilities

Trade payables 61,819 4,142 23,229 516 (5,469) 84,237

Payables for business acquisitions 686 123 605 - - 1,414

Other payables 50,898 2,099 8,898 65 - 61,960

Tax payables 18,714 4,986 122 5 - 23,827

Provisions for risks and charges 1,511 - - - - 1,511

Liabilities for employees’ benefi ts 82 - - - - 82

Financial payables 57,037

Total current liabilities 230,068

TOTAL LIABILITIES 749,696
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Income Statement – 2008

(€ thousands)

Continental 
Europe

United
 Kingdom 

and Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Consolidated

Revenues from sales and services 471,492 44,532 124,311 1,142 (38) 641,439

Raw materials, consumables and 
supplies and change in raw materials, 
consumables and supplies (96,242) (9,791) (59,738) (518) 38 (166,251)

Personnel expenses (133,774) (21,142) (26,615) (44) 276 (181,299)

External services (162,655) (22,251) (35,615) (446) (276) (221,243)

Other income and revenues 944 2,075 217 - - 3,236

Other expenses (1,152) (66) (377) - - (1,595)

Operating result 78,613 (6,643) 2,183 134 - 74,287

Amortisation, depreciation 
and impairment

Amortisation (7,496) (2,007) (3,467) - - (12,970)

Depreciation (11,688) (2,776) (1,678) (29) - (16,171)

Write-downs/Reversal 
of write-downs of non-current assets (166) (29,396) - - - (29,562)

 (19,350) (34,179) (5,145) (29) - (58,703)

Earnings before interest and tax 59,263 (40,822) (2,962) 105 - 15,584

Financial income, charges and value 
adjustments to fi nancial assets

Group's share of the result 
of associated companies valued 
at equity 73 73

Other income and charges, 
impairment and revaluations 
of fi nancial assets (934)

Interest income and expense (15,169)

Other fi nancial income and charges (1,163) 

Exchange gains and losses (3,705)

Gain (loss) on assets measured 
at fair value 3,213

(17,685)

Profi t (loss) before taxes (2,101)

Current and deferred income tax

Current income tax (10,443)

Deferred tax (1,735)

(12,178)

Net profi t (loss) (14,279)

Minority interests 257

Net profi t (loss) attributable 
to the Group (14,536)

Income Statement – 2007

(€ thousands)

Continental 
Europe

United
 Kingdom 

and Ireland

North 
America Africa Elim. Consolidated

Revenues from sales and services 443,946 71,786 151,458 765 (17) 667,938

Raw materials, consumables and 
supplies and change in raw materials, 
consumables and supplies (90,706) (12,703) (68,689) (355) 17 (172,436)

Personnel expenses (120,035) (32,882) (30,169) (24) (58) (183,168)

External services (152,719) (32,818) (35,026) (280) 58 (220,785)

Other income and revenues 598 209 1,479 - - 2,286

Other expenses (804) (1) (792) - - (1,597)

Operating result 80,280 (6,409) 18,261 106 - 92,238

Amortisation, depreciation 
and impairment

Amortisation (7,220) (23,850) (2,111) - - (33,181)

Depreciation (10,885) (3,664) (2,066) (25) - (16,640)

Write-downs/Reversal 
of write-downs of non-current assets (96) (685) - - - (781)

 (18,201) (28,199) (4,177) (25) - (50,602)

Earnings before interest and tax 62,079 (34,608) 14,084 81 - 41,636

Financial income, charges and value 
adjustments to fi nancial assets

Group's share of the result 
of associated companies valued 
at equity 56 56

Other income and charges, 
impairment and revaluations 
of fi nancial assets (268)

Interest income and expense (13,769)

Other fi nancial income and charges (2,430)

Exchange gains and losses (1,601)

Gain (loss) on assets measured 
at fair value 1,726

(16,286)

Profi t (loss) before taxes 25,350

Current and deferred income tax

Current income tax (22,475)

Deferred tax 12,790

(9,685)

Net profi t (loss) 15,665

Minority interests 125

Net profi t (loss) attributable 
to the Group 15,540
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(€ thousands) France Spain 
and Portugal

The 
Netherlands Germany USA Total

Cost of acquisitions of the year 1,398 1,530 3,123 320 94 6,465

Earn Out – Others 60 193 253

TOTAL 6,718

Assets/Liabilities acquired - 
Book value

Current assets 228 98 250 51 627

Current liabilities (121) (118) (18) (32) (289)

Net working capital 107 (20) 232 19 338

Other intangible and tangible assets 89 144 270 16 52 571

Reversal of minorities held previously 13 13

Provisions for risks and charges (18) (18)

Other non-current assets/liabilities (49) 20 (29)

Non-current assets and liabilities 40 177 270 (2) 52 537

Net invested capital 147 157 502 17 52 875

Net fi nancial position 117 (107) (22) (12)

NET EQUITY ACQUIRED - 
BOOK VALUE 264 50 480 17 52 863

DIFFERENCE TO BE ALLOCATED 1,134 1,540 2,643 496 42 5,855

ALLOCATION

Customer lists 147 202 774 91 42 1,256

Deferred tax assets 185 29 214

Deferred tax liabilities (61) (185) (29) (275)

Total allocations 147 141 774 91 42 1,195

TOTAL GOODWILL 987 1,399 1,869 405 - 4,660

All acquisitions were paid for using liquid assets or similar means. No equity instruments were issued 
as components of the cost.

The expected yearly turnover resulting from the 2008 acquisition is approximately €4,235 thousand.

The main parameters used to determine the recoverability of goodwill are given below. Goodwill 
is allocated to the cash-generating units it refers to; these units usually coincide with the assets 
acquired. Goodwill of signifi cant amounts allocated to specifi c CGUs in each country are as follows: 
Sonus Inc. (USA) €50,947 thousand, Amplifon Groupe France €18,504 thousand, Amplifon Nederland 
B.V. €22,117 thousand, Amplifon Iberica SA €16,867 thousand, Amplifon UK €12,863 thousand and 
Amplifon Deutschland €39.630 thousand.

The impairment tests used the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) method, gross of tax with fi nal perpetual 
growth of 0.5%. The value in use of the cash generating units was calculated by discounting the cash 
fl ow shown in the 2009-2011 business plan. The impairment test used internal and external indicators 
of impairment losses, including the negative difference between market capitalisation (€158.6 million 
at 31 December 2008) and net equity. 

5. Acquisitions and Goodwill

Amortisation changes and additional amounts recognised in 2008 following acquisitions are shown by 
country in the table below. 

(€ thousands)

Net carrying 
value at 

31/12/2007
Investments Disposals Impairments Other net 

changes

Net carrying 
value at 

31/12/2008

Italy 451 451

France 51,386 987 (4,139) 48,234

Spain and Portugal 22,443 1,399 (25) 23,817

Hungary 695 (37) 658

Switzerland 8,174 692 8,866

Netherlands 29,940 1,869 31,809

USA 59,702 3,148 62,850

United Kingdom and Ireland 56,653 (1,498) (29,396) (12,895) 12,864

Germany 50,668 405 51,073

Goodwill 280,112 4,660 (1,498) (29,396) (13,256) 240,622

Impairments include the impairment loss on United Kingdom goodwill, recognised following 
an impairment test in the amount of £28 million (€29,396 thousand at the 31 December 2008 
exchange rate).

Disposals amounted to €1,498 thousand and relate to the goodwill in Amplivox Ltd which was sold in 
October 2008. 

The other net changes were €13,256 thousand and were mainly due to differences on conversion of 
the functional currency of our US, Swiss, Hungarian and United Kingdom subsidiaries into the Group’s 
presentation currency and the reclassifi cation of the French droit au bail [location rights] to intangible 
fi xed assets.

The increase of €4,660 thousand was due to acquisitions made in the period and is broken down 
in the table below, which shows the carrying values and fair values of assets and liabilities acquired 
through business combinations, by country.
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6. Intangible Fixed Assets

As required by IAS 36, where there is an indicator of impairment like market capitalisation being lower 
than net equity, an impairment test of defi nite-life assets was conducted (especially customer lists, to 
which part of the purchase price of acquisitions had been allocated). The test used the same model as 
that used for purchase price allocation on acquisition, based on the number of customers, the average 
ticket per hearing-aid sale in the reference area and the average profi tability of the sector in the 
reference area. The test grouped homogeneous customer lists in contrast to the original PPA (Purchase 
Price Allocation) method, taking any mergers, store relocations or business rationalisation into account.

There were no indications that the tested customer lists had suffered any impairment. 

Changes in Intangible Fixed Assets

(€ thousands)

Historical 
cost 

31/12/2007

Accumulated 
amortisation 

and write-downs 
at 31/12/2007

Net book 
value at 

31/12/2007

Historical 
cost 

31/12/2008

Accumulated 
amortisation and 

write-downs at 
31/12/2008

Net book 
value at 

31/12/2008

Software 25,532 (16,394) 9,138 30,633 (20,422) 10,211

Licenses 6,164 (4,830) 1,334 6,501 (5,466) 1,035

Non-competition agreements 3,775 (1,927) 1,848 3,993 (2,639) 1,354

Customer lists 76,256 (18,533) 57,723 73,905 (25,539) 48,366

Trademarks and concessions 18,746 (18,698) 48 14,485 (14,460) 25

Other 2,661 (2,404) 257 7,063 (2,434) 4,629

Fixed assets in progress and advances 418 - 418 298 - 298

Total 133,552 (62,786) 70,766 136,878 (70,960) 65,918

(€ thousands)
Net book value 
at 31/12/2007 Investments Disposals Amortisation Business 

combinations
Other net 

changes
Net book value 
at 31/12/2008

Software 9,138 4,314 (49) (3,902) - 710 10,211

Licenses 1,334 464 (6) (787) (10) 40 1,035

Non-competition 
agreements 1,848 - - (568) - 74 1,354

Customer lists 57,723 - (161) (7,629) 1,256 (2,823) 48,366

Trademarks and 
concessions 48 3 (12) (44) 1 29 25

Other 257 320 - (40) - 4,092 4,629

Fixed assets in pro-
gress and advances 418 277 - - - (397) 298

Total 70,766 5,378 (228) (12,970) 1,247 1,725 65,918

The 2008 increase in intangible fi xed assets was mainly due to investment in front-offi ce and sales 
support systems (CRM – Customer Relation Management) and the continuing introduction of ERP 
software in the United States and the United Kingdom.

Other net changes includes exchange losses (€2,714 thousand) and the reclassifi cation of French droit 

au bail [location rights] previously included in goodwill (€4,139 thousand). These are intangible assets 
with indefi nitive useful life and so not amortised.

Expected cash fl ow was discounted using weighted average cost of capital as follows:

Italy Switzerland France Germany Iberian 
Peninsula Netherlands

United 
Kingdom and 

Ireland

United 
States Hungary

Growth rate 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%

Weighted 
average cost 
of capital 7.4% 6.3% 7.1% 6.9% 7.2% 7.1% 9.6% 6.8% 9.2%

Cash fl ow 
time horizon 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years 4 years 3 years 3 years

The time horizon used was three years for Europe and the United States, four years for the United 
Kingdom, being a recent acquisition – i.e. the period needed to bring the subsidiary to a level of 
profi tability in line with the Group average.

The impairment test indicated goodwill impairment in the United Kingdom, which was written 
down in the amount of £28 million (€29,396 thousand at the 31 December 2008 exchange rate) 
recognised in the item “Write-backs/write-downs of non-current assets” and shown as a non-recurrent 
transaction. 

Due to this write-down, as against revenues of £35 million (€44.5 million), net capital invested in 
the UK was £23.9 million (€25.1 million) at 31 December 2008 being mainly £11.5 million goodwill 
(€12.1 million) and customer lists worth £11 million (€11.5 million). The latter have a residual life 
of 7.5 years and are regularly amortised in the annual amount of £1.5 million. 

None of the other CGUs that were impairment-tested indicated that they could have suffered 
impairment, and a 15% lower EBITDA respect the one used in the estimation of the expected 
cash fl ow.

The Group also performed sensitivity analysis of the estimated recoverable amount of the goodwill 
assuming a 1% increase in WACC and a 15% lower EBITDA respect the one used in the estimation of 
expected cash fl ows. This changes would not result in an impairment, with the exception of United 
Kingdom goodwill. Assuming a 1% increase in WACC, the impairment amount would increase 
by €2 million, and assuming a 15% lower EBITDA the impairment would increase by €5 million. 

The following table compares Group net equity with market capitalisation before and after the United 
Kingdom goodwill write-down. Market capitalisation fell sharply in the closing months of the year (at 
31 September 2008 it was €342.8 million), then recovered somewhat in the early weeks of 2009. 
The management of the Company believes that – while it is an important indicator – it does not fairly 
refl ect the value of the Company.

(€ million) Market Capitalisation Group Net Equity Difference

30 September 2008 342.8 218.4 124.4

31 December 2008 158.6 183.8 (25.2)

28 February 2009 178.9 183.8* (4.9)

*as at 31 December 2008.
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8. Other Non-Current Assets

(€ thousands)
 Balance as at 

31/12/2008
 Balance as at 

31/12/2007 Change

Financial assets measured at fair value through profi t and loss 3,669 4,516 (847)

Financial long-term receivables 6,517 5,577 940

Guarantee deposits 5,260 4,708 552

Other non-current assets 2,525 2,709 (184)

Total 17,971 17,510 461

Financial assets measured at fair value through profi t and loss basically comprise investments in bonds 
and other listed securities made by our associate, Amplinsure RE AG which carries on insurance 
business. They are held in two portfolios managed by specialist managers. The fi nancial crisis and the 
collapse of equity markets has caused impairment of these portfolios. The interest payable on these 
securities varies between 2.5% and 5%. Financial long-term receivables include €6,213 thousand in 
long-term loans bearing effective interest of between 5% and 8%, granted by our US subsidiaries to 
franchisees in support of investment and development in the US market.

7. Tangible fi xed assets

Changes in Tangible Fixed Assets

(€ thousands)

Historical cost 
31/12/2007

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and write-downs 
at 31/12/2007

Net carrying 
value at 

31/12/2007

Historical cost 
31/12/2008

Accumulated 
depreciation and 

write-downs at 
31/12/2008

Net carrying 
value at 

31/12/2008

Land 178 - 178 178 - 178

Buildings, constructions 
and leasehold improvements 42,504 (21,158) 21,346 47,530 (24,472) 23,058

Plant and machinery 21,993 (12,914) 9,079 21,956 (14,483) 7,473

Industrial and commercial 
equipment 25,847 (19,715) 6,132 25,613 (20,069) 5,544

Motor vehicles 8,129 (4,289) 3,840 3,873 (2,232) 1,641

Computers and offi ce machinery 26,200 (19,671) 6,529 25,522 (19,600) 5,922

Furniture and fi ttings 27,664 (17,494) 10,170 32,003 (20,110) 11,893

Other tangible fi xed assets 90 (90) - 89 (89) -

Fixed assets in progress and advances 380 - 380 649 - 649

Total 152,985 (95,331) 57,654 157,413 (101,055) 56,358

(€ thousands)

Net carrying 
value at 

31/12/2007
Investments Disposals Amortisation Business 

combinations Impairment Other net 
changes

Net carrying 
value at 

31/12/2008

Land 178 - - - - - - 178

Buildings, 
constructions 
and leasehold 
improvements 21,346 7,132 (590) (4,660) 220 (390) 23,058

Plant and machinery 9,079 677 (110) (2,127) 87 (103) (30) 7,473

Industrial 
and commercial 
equipment 6,132 1,349 (199) (1,792) 92 (10) (28) 5,544

Motor vehicles 3,840 542 (704) (1,526) 9 - (520) 1,641

Computers 
and offi ce machinery 6,529 2,572 (127) (2,978) 10 (51) (34) 5,921

Furniture and fi ttings 10,170 4,782 (163) (3,085) 153 (2) 39 11,894

Other tangible 
fi xed assets - 4 - (4) - - - -

Fixed assets 
in progress 
and advances 380 798 (54) - - - (475) 649

Total 57,654 17,856 (1,947) (16,172) 571 (166) (1,438) 56,358

Capital expenditure was made under the Group strategy of increasing customer focus, viz. through 
the store renovation programme: rebranding was undertaken in both existing and new countries of 
operation, as were store renovations and relocations.

Other net changes includes exchange losses of €1,128 thousand.
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Cash Flow Hedging

Cash fl ow hedges (€ thousands)

Hedging instrument – Expiry

Fair value at 
31/12/2007

Fair value at 
31/12/2008

Hedged item Hedged risk Assets (Liabilities) Assets (Liabilities)

(i) Collar Interest Rate - 
      02/08/2013

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2013

Equivalent of 
€13,800,000 Interest rate 219 - - (466)

(ii) Collar Interest Rate -    
       02/08/2013

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2013

Equivalent of i 
€23,600,000 Interest rate 333 - - (749)

(iii) Interest Rate Swap - 
         02/08/2013

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2013

Equivalent of 
€19,722,309 Interest rate - (121) - (1,186)

(iv) Interest Rate Swap -
        02/08/2016

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2016

Equivalent of 
€55,222,468 Interest rate - (265) - (4,225)

552 (386) - (6,626)

Hedging Gains and Losses

The following tables show gains and losses arising out of outstanding derivatives and the asset/
liability values of and gains/losses on hedging instruments and hedged items for both fair value and 
cash fl ow hedges.

Fair value hedges (€ thousands)

Hedging instrument – Expiry

        Fair Value Hedge
(1/1/2007 - 31/12/2007)

    Fair Value Hedge
(1/1/2008 - 31/12/2008)

Hedging
instrument Hedged item

Hedging
instrument Hedged item

(Loss) Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Gain (Loss) Gain

Interest Rate Swap – 02/08/2011 107 (101) 231 (155)

Cross Currency Swap - 02/08/2011 (1,132) 1,270 1,063 (1,095)

Cross Currency Swap - 02/08/2013 (3,357) 3,772 4,869 (4,931)

Cross Currency Swap - 02/08/2013 (1,344) 1,441 1,996 (2,110)

Cross Currency Swap - 02/08/2016 (4,114) 4,418 8,787 (9,053)

Total (9,840) 10,800 16,946 (17,344)

Cash fl ow hedges (€ thousands)

Hedging instrument – Expiry

Cash Flow Hedge
(1/1/2008 - 31/12/2008)

Time Value Effective portion
Reclassifi ed to the 
Income Statement Closing balance

(Loss) Gain (Debit)/ Credit (Loss) Gain (Debit)/ Credit

Collar Interest Rate - 02/08/2013 (258) (409) 62 (235)

Collar Interest Rate - 02/08/2013 (177) (873) 87 (755)

Interest Rate Swap - 02/08/2013 n/a (1,106) 23 (1.235)

Interest Rate Swap - 02/08/2016 n/a (4,096) 42 (4.318)

Total 423 (6.484) 214 (6,543)

9. Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The following table shows the fair value of outstanding derivatives at the end of 2007 and at the 
balance-sheet date giving the value at the designation date of eligible hedges only.

(€ thousands)

Type

Fair value at 31/12/2007 Fair value at 31/12/2008

Assets (Liabilities) Assets (Liabilities)

Fair value hedges 166 (14,619) 3,285 (712)

Cash fl ow hedges 552 (386) - (6,626)

Total hedge accounting 718 (15,005) 3,285 (7,338)

Non-hedge accounting 666 - 1,722 (152)

Total 1,384 (15,005) 5,007 (7,490)

Total

Fair Value Hedging

The Group has entered into Cross Currency Swaps to hedge against the exposure to exchange rate 
and interest rate risk of certain loans denominated in US dollars. The change in fair value of hedging 
derivatives is recognized in the income statement.

The change in fair value of the hedged item, attributable to the hedged risk, is recorded as part of the 
book value of the hedged item and in the income statement.

With respect to the fair value hedges of items recorded using the amortized cost method, the 
adjustment to the book value is amortized in the income statement starting from the date when the 
hedged item is no longer adjusted for changes in fair value due to the hedged risk.

Fair value hedges (€ thousands)

Hedging instrument – Expiry

Fair value at 
31/12/2007

Fair value at 
31/12/2008

Hedged item Hedged risk Assets (Liabilities) Assets (Liabilities)

(i) Interest Rate Swap - 
     02/08/2011

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2011

USD 5,000,000 Interest rate 166 - 373 -

(ii) Cross Currency Swap -
       02/08/2011

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2011
USD 20,000,000

Exchange rate
Interest rate - (1,572) - (528)

(iii) Cross Currency Swap - 
         02/08/2013

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2013
USD 60,000,000

Exchange rate
Interest rate - (4,380) 434 -

(iv) Cross Currency Swap - 
        02/08/2013

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2013
USD 25,000,000

Exchange rate
Interest rate - (2,234) - (184)

(v) Cross Currency Swap - 
       02/08/2016

Private Placement 
exp. 02/08/2016
USD 70,000,000

Exchange rate
Interest rate - (6,433) 2,478 -

166 (14,619) 3,285 (712)
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Breakdown of Debtors

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Trade receivables 109,030 140,938 (31,908)

Sales returns provision (1,964) (2,195) 231

Impact of discounted revenues - (628) 628

Allowance for doubtful accounts (8,209) (7,828) (381)

Total 98,857 130,287 (31,430)

The €31,908 thousand reduction in trade receivables was mainly due to the forfaiting transactions 
undertaken in June for a face value of €27,680 thousand (most of which would have been paid by 31 
December 2008) and in December for a face value of €17,900 thousand.

Following a reduction in the debtor days for payments by the national health service, it was not 
considered necessary to indicate the fi nancial element implicit in receivable by discounting revenues, 
since the difference would be immaterial. 

All the other receivables have average debtor days of between 30 and 120 days and there is no 
signifi cant concentration of credit risk.

The current year movements in the allowances for doubtful accounts are as follows:

(€ thousands)

Net value at 31/12/2007 (7,828)

Provisions (5,479)

Reversal 1,937

Utilisation for charges 4,794

Conversion differences and other net changes (1,598)

Changes in the consolidation area (35)

Net value at 31/12/2008 (8,209)

Cash fl ow hedges (€ thousands)

Hedging instrument – Expiry

Cash Flow Hedge
(1/1/2007 - 31/12/2007)

Time Value Effective portion
Reclassifi ed to the 
Income Statement Closing balance

(Loss) Gain (Debit)/ Credit (Loss) Gain (Debit)/ Credit

Collar Interest Rate - 02/08/2013 198 46 - 236

Collar Interest Rate - 02/08/2013 225 133 (6) 205

Interest Rate Swap - 02/08/2013 n/a (121) (15) (106)

Interest Rate Swap - 02/08/2016 n/a (265) (85) (180)

Total 423 (207) (106) 155

Cash fl ow from cash fl ow hedges are taken to profi t and loss at the same maturities as those of the 
private placement (see Note 16).

10. Inventories

(€ thousands)

Balance at 31/12/2008 Balance at 31/12/2007

Cost Provisions Net Cost Provisions Net

Goods 44,390 (5,454) 38,936 42,493 (5,820) 36,673

Work-in-progress 914 - 914 769 - 769

Total 45,304 (5,454) 39,850 43,262 (5,820) 37,442

The movements in the provision for inventories in the year are as follows:

(€ thousands)

Balance at 
31/12/2007 Prov. Utilization

Conversion 
differences 

and other 
movements

Business 
combinations

Balance at 
31/12/2008

Goods 5,820 (2,618) 2,676 245 63 (5,454)

11. Receivables

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Trade receivables - Customers 98,857 130,287 (31,430)

Trade receivables -Subsidiaries 335 56 279

Trade receivables - Parent companies 37 36 1

Trade receivables - Associated companies and joint ventures 3 43 (40)

Total receivables from customers 99,232 130,422 (31,190)

Tax receivables 19,653 16,983 2,670

Other receivables 8,495 10,529 (2,034)

Non-fi nancial prepayments and accrued income 6,057 6,176 (119)

Total 133,437 164,110 (30,673)

Other receivables were €8,495 thousand and included €5,391 thousand due from Amplifi n S.p.A. (see Note 33).
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15. Net Financial Position

In accordance with the requirements of Consob communication dated 28 July 2006 and in compliance 
with the CESR Recommendation of 10 February 2005 “Recommendations for the consistent 
implementation of the European Commission’s Regulation on Prospectuses”, the Group’s net fi nancial 
position at 31 December 2008, was as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008  31/12/2007 Change

Liquid funds (92,360) (55,525) (36,835)

Available-for-sale investments (67) (81) 14

Current portion of long-term fi nancial receivables (73) (75) 2

Short-term fi nancial receivables (2,712) (2,691) (21)

Payables for business acquisitions 1,261 1,414 (153)

Financial payables 66,461 57,037 9,424

Short-term fi nancial position (27,490) 79 (27,569)

Receivables for disposals (86) (197) 111

Other non-current fi nancial assets (463) (521) 58

Long-term loans (1) 77,060 99,953 (22,893)

Private Placement (1) 143,476 125,922 17,554

Finance lease obligations (1) 29 98 (69)

Hedging derivatives (2) (2,573) 14,452 (17,025)

Medium/long-term acquisition payables 661 996 (335)

Net medium and long-term indebtedness 218,104 240,703 (22,599)

Net Financial Indebtedness 190,614 240,782 (50,168)

In order to reconcile the above items with the statutory balance sheet, attention is drawn to the 
breakdown of the following items:

(1)    long term loans, the Private Placement and fi nancial lease are shown under fi nancial liabilities for 
a total of €220,565 thousand and are described at § 16 of the notes to fi nancial statements;

(2)   derivative instruments include fair value hedge derivatives.

The other items included in the net fi nancial indebtedness table are easily traceable to the statutory 
balance sheet.

The negative net short-term fi nancial position of €79 thousand at 31 December 2007 and the 
positive position of €27,490 thousand at 31 December 2008 gives a difference of €27,569 
thousand.

Net medium/long-term fi nancial indebtedness was €240,703 thousand at 31 December 2007 and 
€218,104 thousand at 31 December 2008 – a reduction of €22,599 thousand, mainly due to:

(i)    new €70,000 thousand medium/long-term loans fi nancing the Group’s investments; 
(ii)  reclassifi cation of the €84,248 thousand current portion of bank borrowings.

12. Short-term Financial Receivables

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Short-term fi nancial receivables 2,712 2,691 21

Total 2,712 2,691 21

Short-term fi nancial receivables include loans of €2,632 thousand, bearing an effective interest rate of 
between 5% and 8%, granted to franchisees in support of investment and development in the US market.

13. Cash and cash equivalents

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Bank current accounts                         90,061                         52,624                         37,437 

Short-term bank deposits                           1,621                           2,190                             (569)

Cash on hand                              678                              711                              (33)

Total                         92,360                         55,525                         36,835 

The change from 2007 was mainly due to the forfaiting transactions undertaken in December for a 
face value of €17,900 thousand and VAT rebates of €11,215 thousand. These receipts were not used 
to pay down debt but to increase liquidity in line with Group policy to minimise liquidity risk in light 
of the recent credit squeeze.

Liquid assets were held on deposit at market rates. 

14. Share capital and net equity

Share capital at 31 December 2008, fully subscribed and paid up, consists of 198,420,000 shares with 
a par value of €0.02 each and it is unchanged respect 31 December 2007.

At 31 December 2008 Amplifon S.p.A. held 6,900,000 treasury shares equivalent to 3.478% of 
company capital. The Shareholders’ Meeting held on 29 April 2008 authorised the Board of Directors 
to purchase further treasury shares up to 12,942,000 ordinary shares with a par value of €0.02 each 
(equal to 6.52% of current company capital or 10% taking into account the 6,900,000 treasury shares 
already held) at a price no more than 5% over or under the reference market price of the previous 
trading day for each purchase.

No treasury shares were purchased in 2008.

The reason for this programme is that it may be necessary to purchase or sell treasury shares in 
contingent market situations and advisable to have a policy of supporting the liquidity of the share or 
investment policies, as well as appropriately using the treasury shares held as a means of payment in 
acquisition transactions. 
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(Amounts in € unless otherwise stated and in thousands)

Date Debtor Nominal
Average rate 

divided by 
2008 / 360 

Balance as at 
31/12/07

Exchange 
effect

New loans at 
31/12/2008

Repayments 
at 31/12/2008

Balance as at 
31/12/2008

Short term 
portion

Medium and 
long term 

portion

30/06/2003 Amplifon S.p.A. 30,000 5.72% 4,286   (4,286)    

 
Instalments at  

30/6 and 31/12 30/06/2008         

27/08/2003 Amplifon S.p.A. 25,000 5.44% 8,340   (8,340)    

 

Instalments 
at 20/1 and 

20/7 from  
20/01/2006  20/07/2008         

 Simest S.p.A. €1,769 9.25% 1,769    1,769 1,769  

 Bullet 30/06/2009         

21/07/2003 Amplifon S.p.A. 20,000 5.87% 2,183   (2,183)    

 

Instalments 
at  30/6 and 
31/12  from  
01/01/2004 30/06/2008         

30/11/2007 Amplifon S.p.A. 30,000 5.55% 30,000    30,000 6,872 23,128

 

Instalments 
at  30/6 and 
31/12 from  

30/06/2009 31/12/2012         

31/12/2007 Amplifon S.p.A. 47,500 4.94% 47,500  15,000 (25,000 ) 37,500 37,500  

 

Stand by 18 
months less 

1 day          

31/12/2008
Succursale 

France 29/06/2010 5.22%   25,000  25,000  25,000

 

Stand by 18 
months less 

1 day          

31/12/2008
Succursale 

France 31/01/2013    30,000  30,000            3,750 26,250

 

Instalments 
at  31/7 and 

31/1 from 
31/07/2009         

06/01/2005
Succursale 

France 35,000 5.70% 25,000   (25,000)    

 

Instalments 
at  31/5 and 
30/11 from  

31/05/2007 31/05/2010         

22/04/2008
Succursale 

France 15,000 4.84%   25,000 (25,000)    

 Bridge loan 31/10/2008         

22/04/2005
Succursale 

France 10,000 5.29% 10,000   (10,000)    

 Bullet 22/04/2008         

20/01/2004
Amplifon USA 

Inc. US$13,000 4.51% 2,329 46  (1,554) 821 821  

 

Instalments 
at  20/1 and 

20/7 from  
20/01/2006 20/01/2009         

11/10/2005
Amplifon USA 

Inc. US$12,000 4.45% 6,987 270  (2,331) 4,926 2,463 2,463

 

Instalments 
at 9/5 and 
9/11 from 

10/11/2007 11/10/2010         

 Other   344 (49)  (29) 266 47 219

 TOTAL   138,738 267 95,000 (103,723) 130,282 53,222 77,060

16. Long-term debt

Long-term debt breaks down as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008  31/12/2007 Change

Private Placement 143,476 125,922 17,554

Long-term loans 77,060 99,953 (22,893)

Finance lease obligations 29 98 (69)

Total long-term debt 220,565 225,973 (5,408)

Short term debt 66,461 57,037 9,424

- current portion of long-term debt 53,222 38,785 14,437

- current portion of lease obligations 1,291 114 1,177

Total short term debt 66,461 57,037 9,424

Total fi nancial debt 287,026 283,010 4,016

Private Placement

On 2 August 2006 the Amplifon Group closed a private placement of bonds with institutional 
investors totalling US$180 million, in three tranches as follows:

Issue Date Issuer Maturity Face Value 
(US$ ‘000) Coupon

02 August 2006 Amplifon U.S.A. Inc. 02 August 2011 25,000 6.25%

02 August 2006 Amplifon U.S.A. Inc. 02 August 2013 85,000 6.35%

02 August 2006 Amplifon U.S.A. Inc. 02 August 2016 70,000 6.48%

TOTAL 180,000

The bonds were originally issued by Amplifon U.S.A. Inc. and Amplifon Deutschland GmbH. 
On 15 July 2008, in order to give Amplifon Deutschland suffi cient capital to implement the 
integration of the acquisitions made in 2007, a transaction was closed whereby Amplifon USA 
received US$38 million of the private placement issued in 2006 which was held by the German 
subsidiary: the entire amount of the bonds, US$180 million, was thus lodged with the US subsidiary 
which already held US$142 million. 

At 31 December 2008 the balance outstanding of these bonds was €143,476 thousand (€125,922 
thousand al 31 December 2007); the change of €17,554 thousand was due to an increase of €7,064 
thousand due to exchange differences and of €10,490 thousand due to changes in interest rates. 
The net change was offset by €16,946 thousand being the fair value of hedges (described in the fair 
value hedges table under Note 9). Considering the effect of this hedge the private placement’s value in 
euros was €140,903 thousand (€140,375 thousand at 31 December 2007).

Long-Term Loans

The following table breaks down the debt by maturity. Since all these borrowings are variable-rate 
– except for the SIMEST loan, which is 1% of the total and on which the Group receives an interest 
subsidy of 2.16% which aligns the rate with the market – we believe that the carrying value is close 
to fair value.
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The main assumptions used for the actuarial estimate of extra customer indemnity were:

2008

Economic assumptions  

Annual discount rate 4.75%

Demographic assumptions  

Probability of employment contract termination due to company reasons 1.30%

Probability of agent’s voluntary resignation 5%

Disability percentage RG48

Mortality rate INPS tables divided by age and sex

18. Liabilities for employee benefi ts

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Defi ned-benefi t plans 7,286 7,357 (71)

Other staff provisions 1,020 935 85

Total 8,306 8,292 14

The defi ned-benefi t provisions comprises mainly the Parent’s TFR severance pay liability which rose 
from €6,463 at 31 December 2007 to €6,296 thousand at end 2008. 
 
The change in the provision for defi ned-benefi t plans is detailed below:

(€ thousands) 2008

Net present value of the liability at the beginning of the year 7,357

Financial charges 297

Actuarial (gains)/losses 314

Amounts paid (790)

Other net changes 108

Net present value of the liability at the end of the year 7,286

The following table shows the maturities of medium/long-term debt at 31 December 2008 as per the 
underlying agreements:

Repayments (€ thousands) Long -term 
debt 

Private 
Placement * Total

2010 42,454  42,575

2011 15,201 19,370 34,544

2012 15,654  15,560

2013 3,750 67,056 70,806

2014    

2015    

2016  55,222 55,222

Total 77,059 141,648 218,707

* The amounts of the private placement, with the sole exception of a small US$5 million portion, are given at the hedged rate of exchange.

17. Provisions for risks and charges

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008  31/12/2007 Change

Product warranty provision 8,727 8,755 (28)

Contractual risks 2,334 5,632 (3,298)

Agents’ leaving indemnity 10,084 8,994 1,090

Other risk provisions - 10 (10)

Total 21,145 23,391 (2,246)

(€ thousands)

Net book value 
at 31/12/2007 Provision Utilization Other net 

changes
Conversion 
differences

Change in 
consolidation 

area

Net book value 
at 31/12/2008

Product warranty 
provision 8,755 3,810 (961) (2,898) 3 18 8,727

Contractual risks 5,632 1,707 (1,036) (3,984) 15 - 2,334

Agents’ leaving 
indemnity 8,994 1,525 (716) - 281 - 10,084

Other provisions 
for risks 10 - - (10) - - -

Total 23,391 7,042 (2,713) (6,892) 299 18 21,145

The contractual risk provision refers to the cost of risks towards employees and agents, as well as those 
incurred by the provision of services. The changes in this provision in 2008 were mainly due to the 
reclassifi cation to accrued liabilities of €3,562 thousand insurance premiums in Amplinsure RE AG.
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21. Other payables

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Payables for business acquisitions 1,261 1,414 (153)

Other payables 42,853                         43,492 (639)

Accrued liabilities and deferred income 25,487                         18,468 7,019

Total 69,601 63,374 6,227

Payables for business acquisitions are the outstanding balance of the cost of businesses and 
companies bought in 2008. 

Other payables mainly comprise: (i) €5,731 thousand deposits paid by customers; (ii) €8,419 other 
payables to social security entities; (iii) €13,631 other amounts due to staff; (iv) €12,207 thousand 
commission to be paid to agents.

The increase in accrued liabilities and deferred income was due, as to €3,562 thousand, to the 
reclassifi cation of insurance premium as described under Note 17.

22. Provisions for risks and charges (current portion)

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Other provisions for risks 640                           1,511 (871)

Total 640                           1,511 (871)                         

Other provisions include €354 thousand relating to tax risk arising from an inspection of the Parent 
by the Guardia di Finanza [fi nancial police] in 2007 to check the 2005 and 2006 tax years.

23. Short-term fi nancial debt

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Bank current accounts                           1,033                           3,750                          (2,717)

Short-term bank borrowings                           6,492                           9,962                          (3,470)

Current portion of long-term debts                         53,222                         38,785                         14,437 

Current portion of fi nance lease obligations                           1,291                              114                           1,177 

Payables to banks and other fi nancing                         62,038                         52,611                           9,427 

Short-term fi nancial debt                              138                              174                              (36)

Financial accrued expenses and deferred income                           4,285                           4,252                               33 

Total                         66,461                         57,037                           9,424 

The main assumptions used in the actuarial estimate of the liability for employee benefi ts were as 
follows:

(€ thousands) 2008 2007

Economic assumptions

Annual discount rate 4.30% 4.70%

Expected annual infl ation rate 3.20% 2%

Annual rate of increase of severance indemnity 3.90% 3%

Annual rate of salary increase (including infl ation) n/a n/a

Demographic assumptions   

Mortality rate RG48
ISTAT tables 

ISTAT 2000

Disability rate
INPS tables divided 

by age and sex
INPS tables divided 

by age and sex

Retirement age

Fulfi lment of requisites 
General Compulsory Ins. 

General compulsory

Fulfi lment of requisites 
General Compulsory Ins. 

General compulsory

It should be noted that the “current cost of severance indemnity” plus “actuarial gains and losses” is 
included in the fi nancial statements as part of “personnel expenses”, while the fi nancial element is 
included in fi nancial charges for the period.

19. Other long-term liabilities

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Payables for business acquisitions 661                              996 (335)

Other long-term debt 11 10 1

Total 672 1,006 (334)

Amounts payable for acquisitions include earn-out to be paid for the acquisition of businesses and 
companies. Changes in these estimates cause equivalent changes in goodwill.

20. Trade payables

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Trade payables – Joint venture 100                               81 19

Trade payables – Related parties -                                 1 (1)

Trade payables – Third parties 88,802                         84,155 4,647

Total 88,902                         84,237 4,665

Creditors do not bear interest and are paid in 60 to 120 days.
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The change was due largely due to the following:

(i)   our German subsidiaries recognised deferred tax assets on prior-year losses of €1,852 thousand 
on the basis of suffi cient future earnings assuming that the business would perform well and 
that fi nance cost would reduce due to the July 2008 transfer of the US$38 million tranche of the 
private placement previously on the German subsidiary’s books;

(ii)  our Spanish subsidiaries recognised deferred tax assets on prior-year losses of €307 thousand, 
given good earnings prospects for future years due to good business performance and lower 
fi nance cost following the €24,000 thousand recapitalisation of 28 March 2008.

These changes were partly offset by the €2,934 thousand reduction of deferred tax assets on prior-
year losses in the United Kingdom. These tax losses have an indefi nite maturity, but the severe 
fi nancial crisis, which worsened in Q4 2008, made their use less probable in the next fi ve years. As 
prescribed by IAS 12, they were therefore written down. The amount of the write-down referred as to 
€1,180 thousand to deferred tax assets on prior-year losses at 31 December 2007 and as to €1,754 
thousand, to those recognised in the fi rst three quarters of 2008.

25. Revenues from sales and services

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change

Revenues from sales of products 610,263                        636,195 (25,932)

Revenues from services 31,157                         31,692 (535)

Other 19                               51 (32)

Total 641,439                        667,938 (26,499)

26. Staff Cost

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2007 Change

Wages and salaries                       (136,459)                       (142,450)                           5,991 

Stock options                             (403)                          (1,165)                              762 

Social contributions                        (31,131)                        (31,586)                              455 

Other personnel costs (12,154) (6,898) (5,256)

Directors’ remuneration (1,152)                          (1,069) (83)

Total (181,299)                       (183,168) 1,869

Financial accrued expense was due as to €3,396 thousand to interest payable on the bond issue.

For the current portion of fi nancial indebtedness please see Note 16.

24. Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities

The net balance of deferred tax assets and liabilities at 31 December 2008 was as follows:

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

Deferred tax assets 61,132 60,673 459

Deferred income tax liabilities (26,709) (23,711) (2,998)

Net position 34,423 36,962 (2,539)

(€ thousands)

Balance at 
31/12/2007

Recognized 
in the Income 

statement

Recognized 
in Equity

Change 
in scope of 

consolidation

     Exchange 
differences and 

other changes

Balance at 
31/12/2008

Deferred tax on severance indemnity 
and pension funds 526 194   26 746

Deferred tax on tax losses c/fwd 7,304 1,614   (76) 8,842

Deferred tax asset on inventory 2,329 96   (2) 2,423

Deferred tax on tangible fi xed assets 4,740 748   (804) 4,684

Deferred tax on trademarks and 
concessions 30,820 (1,690)    29,130

Deferred tax on intangible fi xed 
assets (16,031) (398)  (111) 535 (16,005)

Deferred tax on provisions not adju-
sting assets 3,622 (1,545)   (420) 1.657

Deferred tax on receivables 1,373 (530)   23 866

Deferred tax asset on fi nancial 
instruments 1,355 (842)   46 559

Other deferred tax 924 617   (20) 1,521

 Total 36,962 (1,736)  (111) (692) 34,423

Deferred tax assets on prior-year losses brought forward were as follows:

(€ thousands)
Balance at 

31/12/2008
 Balance at 

31/12/2007 Change

France 206 - 206

Iberian peninsula 4,804 4,497 307

Germany 3,308 1,456 1,852

United Kingdom and Ireland - 1,317 (1,317)

USA and Canada 524 34 490

Total 8,842 7,304 1,538
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28. Financial Income, Charges and Changes in value of Financial Assets

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2008 Change

Share of the results of associated companies valued at equity 73                            56 17

Other income, charges, revaluation and write-downs of fi nancial assets (934) (268) (666)

Interest income 945 684 261

Interest expense on Private Placement (8,053) (7,462) (591)

Interest payable on short and long-term loans (8,061) (6,991) (1,070)

Interest income and expense (15,169) (13,769) (1,400)

Net Investment hedges,  time value collars and other hedge accounting 
instruments (413) (2,309) 1,896

Other fi nancial income and expenses (750) (121) (629)

Other fi nancial income and expenses (1,163) (2,430) 1,267

Exchange gains 1,936 1,791 145

Exchange losses (5,641) (3,392) (2,249)

Exchange differences (3,705) (1,601) (2,104)

Gains (losses) on assets measured at fair value – non-eligible 
hedging instruments 3,213 1,726 1,487

Total (17,685) (16,286) (1,399)

Interest payable accrued on the US dollar private placement included the amount that would have 
accrued absent the hedges put in place, which was €7,762 thousand, as well as the effect of
hedges, which entailed a higher charge of €291 thousand.

Discount of revenue and separation of the implicit fi nance component, which caused an increase of 
€1,251 thousand in 2007, was not carried out in 2008 following a reduction of average debtor days 
in the Italian market.

Other fi nance income and cost included €1,014 thousand being the cost of forfaiting two tranches of 
public-sector debt in Italy.

29. Income taxes

(€ thousands) FY  2008 FY  2007 Change

Current income tax (10,443)                        (22,475) 12,032

Deferred income tax (1,735)                         12,790 (14,525)

Total (12,178)                          (9,685) (2,493)

The following table reconciles tax recognised in the consolidated accounts to theoretical tax arrived 
at on the basis of Italy’s current tax rates.
The write down of United Kingdom goodwill in the amount of €29,396 thousand had no tax effect.

 

Staff Headcount by Region

Headcount

31/12/2008 31/12/2007

Number Average Number Average

Italy 476 485 545 531

France 634 637 639 612

Switzerland 207 202 192 186

Hungary 48 48 47 47

Germany 583 578 585 518

Iberian Peninsula 286 273 252 241

The Netherlands 688 685 614 612

United Kingdom and Ireland 518 562 701 733

Total Europe 3,440 3,470 3,576 3,480

Total North America 554 570 621 569

Total Group 3,994 4,040 4,196 4,049

27. Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses

(€ thousands) FY 2008 FY 2008 Change

Depreciation                        (12,970)                        (33,181)                         20,211 

Amortisation                        (16,171)                        (16,640)                              469 

Depreciation                        (29,141)                        (49,821)                         20,680 

Impairment losses                        (29,562)                        (781)                        (28,781)

Total (58,703)                        (50,602) (8,101)

Impairment losses were €29,562 thousand and include the goodwill write-down in the United Kingdom 
amounting to £28 million (€29,396 thousand at the 31 December 2008 exchange rate) described under 
Note 5.

2007 intangible assets included accelerated amortisation of €16,904 thousand made in the United Kingdom 
on Ultravox brands in order to terminate their useful life at 31 December 2007, in line with the new business 
strategy to focus on the Amplifon brand.
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30. Stock Options

A) General characteristics of stock option plans

•  The purpose of the issue and therefore of the assignment of the option rights, is to offer the 
Benefi ciaries, those who hold particularly important positions within the Group, the possibility to 
participate in Amplifon’s share capital in order to align their interests with those of the Shareholders 
and to obtain their loyalty, given the signifi cant strategic objectives to be attained. 

•  The assignment of the option rights is unconditional.

•  The price of the shares includes the information related to the company’s performance.

•  The regulation of the stock option plan does not provide for loans or other special terms to 
subscribe for the shares pursuant to § 2358 ¶ 3 Italian Civil Code.

•   The plan resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of Amplifon S.p.A. on 19 February 2001 is based on 
the increase of the share capital of Amplifon S.p.A. by 750,000 shares of €0.20 nominal value each, 
that is €0.020 following the share split resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on 27 April 2006; as 
well as servicing the stock option plan, treasury shares may be used as resolved by the Shareholders’ 
Meeting of 27 April 2006.

•   The shares issued for the purposes of the stock option plan are ordinary shares, in accordance with 
article 2441, paragraphs 5 and 8, of the Italian Civil Code.

•  The exercise of the rights shall be in compliance with the Regulations fi led with Borsa Italiana S.p.A. 
and Consob.

•  The Board of Directors is entitled to draft regulations, choose the benefi ciaries and determine the 
quantity and values for the execution of the Stock Option Plans.

•  Amplifon S.p.A reserves the indisputable right to modify the Plan and the Regulations when deemed 
necessary or merely opportune, following any modifi cation to the provisions of the laws in force at 
the time of the award, or for any other objective reason that might justify such modifi cation.

B) First assignment of stock options

 
 On 28 March 2001 the Board of Directors resolved the fi rst assignment of stock options.
 

•  The plan is for the employees identifi ed by Amplifon S.p.A.’s Board of Directors who, as of 2 April 
2001 were not in a notice period following resignation, termination of employment or other similar 
situation and from 2 April 2001 up to the time of subscription of the shares, had been employed 
without interruption by one of the Group companies.

•   One-third of the option rights assigned mature one year after the assignment date and one-third 
two years after the assignment date, the balance after three years.

•  For each assigned option right, the exercise and therefore the subsequent related subscription of 
Amplifon ordinary shares must take place within seven years, starting from the date of maturity.

•  Non-exercised rights shall automatically be lost after such term.

•  The price per share which the benefi ciary shall pay to Amplifon S.p.A. for the subscription following 
the exercise of the option rights is equal to the allocation price of €20.00, that is €2.00 following 
the share split resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 27 April 2006.

•  The exercise of the matured option rights shall take place in one or several tranches, as long as the 
minimum quantity for each tranche is equal to 1,000 (one thousand) rights.

The reconciliation of the tax rate given below does not take this amount into account since it would 
be distortive.

FY  2008 FY  2007

Pre-tax profi t (loss) (2,101)

United Kingdom goodwill write-down (29,396)

Pre-tax profi t for tax rate reconciliation purposes 27,295 25,350

Tax for the year (12,178) (9,685)

Tax rate 44.62% 38.2%

Corporate tax rate 27.5% 33%

Effect of different rates:  

Companies not taxed in Italy -13.03% -8.6%

Tax consolidation of Amplifon S.p.A. – Amplimedical S.p.A. -0.26% -2.8%

Non-deductible expense net of exempt income and dividend and non deductible equity interest 
write-downs 4.90% 4.6%

Deferred tax: effect of rate change, recognition of prior-year assets and liabilities 9.12% 4.30%

United Kingdom: write-down of deferred tax assets on prior-year losses and non-recognition of 
deferred assets on losses for the year 13.46%

Other net differences -4.12% 1.1%

Actual tax rate, net of IRAP 37.54% 31.60%

IRAP [regional tax on productive activity] 7.05% 6.60%

Effective tax rate 44.62% 38.20%

For better understanding of the reconciliation of the recognised tax charge to the theoretical tax 
charge, IRAP is not included since it is based on a different income measure and would have a 
distorting effect from one year to the next. Theoretical tax was therefore determined applying only 
the current corporate tax rate in Italy (IRES was 33% in 2007 and 27.5% in 2008) to pre-tax profi t. 

In 2008 the Group’s effective tax rate (excluding IRAP) was 37.54%, the difference from the 
theoretical rate of 27.5% being due also to:

•  to the effect of non-recognition and write-down of deferred tax assets on prior-year losses in the 
United Kingdom which is put at 13.46%. These tax losses have an indefi nite maturity, but the severe 
fi nancial crisis, which worsened in Q4 2008, made their use less probable for the next fi ve years. 
As prescribed by IAS 12, tax assets recognised at 30 September 2008 were written down and no tax 
assets were set aside on the Q4 losses;

•  as to 13.03%, the effect of different tax rates outside Italy;

•  as to 4.9%, the combined effect of the non-deductible cost and write-down of equity interests net 
of exempt income and dividends;

•  as to 9.2%, the effect of changes in rates and other deferred tax. 

At 31 December 2008 the following prior-year losses had not given rise to deferred tax assets:

(€ thousands)

Prior-Year Tax 
Losses Rate

Deferred tax assets 
not recognised in 

the accounts

United Kingdom 14,818 28.0% 4,149

Hungary 616 15.9% 98

Amplimedical 1,691 27.5% 465

Total 17,125 4,712
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D) Third assignment of stock options

 
On 30 September 2005 the Board of Directors resolved the third assignment of stock options.
 

•  The objective of the plan is to offer option rights to benefi ciaries covering key positions within the 
Group.

•  One-third of the assigned rights mature one year following the assignment date, one-third two 
years after the assignment date and the remaining portion three years after the same date, with the 
exception of the employees of companies with headquarters in France and Spain for whom the options 
mature for two-thirds two years following the assignment date and for the remaining portion after 
three years.

•  For each assigned option right, the exercise and therefore the subsequent related subscription of 
Amplifon ordinary shares must take place within seven years, starting from the date of maturity, with 
the exception of the employees of companies having their headquarters in Switzerland for whom the 
exercise period lasts 10 years.

•  Only for employee benefi ciaries on the payroll at 1 October 2005 of the companies with registered offi ce 
in Italy which accepted the new regulation, approved by the Remuneration Committee on 12 September 
2007, 100% of the option rights awarded to them may be exercised before three years have lapsed from 
the assignment date, meaning that the Benefi ciary may be able to subscribe Amplifon’s ordinary shares 
at the terms and conditions indicated here below only after three years have lapsed from the assignment 
date. The deadline for subscribing to the shares is 7 years from the maturity date.

•  Non-exercised rights shall be automatically lost after such term.

•  The price per share which the benefi ciary shall pay to Amplifon S.p.A. for the subscription following the 
exercise of the option rights is defi ned as equal to the price per share corresponding to the average of the 
prices reported in the last month before the assignment date, that is €56.97 or €5.697 following the share 
split approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 27 April 2006.

•   Only for employee benefi ciaries on the payroll at 1 October 2005 of the companies with registered offi ce 
in Italy who have undersigned the new Regulation approved by the Remuneration Committee on 12 
September 2007, the price per share is fi xed at €5.713 (fi ve euros/seven hundred and thirteen cents).

•   The exercise of the matured option rights shall take place in one or several tranches, as long as the 
minimum quantity for each tranche is equal to 1,000 (one thousand) rights.

Assignment of 30 September 2005 – general rules

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 1,470,333 5.697 3.467 1,681,000 5.697 6.495

(Option rights granted 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - 5,000 5.697 6.850

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) 166.333 5.697 - 205,667 5.697 -

Option rights at 31 December 1,304,000 5.697 0.828 1,470,333 5.697 3.472

of which exercisable at 31 December 1,304,000  987,319

Stock Option Plan of 28 March 2001

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 30,000 2.00 3.467 510,000 2.00 6.495

(Option rights granted 
in the period)

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - 480,000 2.00 6.443

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights lost 
in the period) - - - - - -

Option rights at 31 December 30,000 2.00 0.828 30,000 2.00 3.472

of which exercisable at 31 December 30,000 30,000

C) Second assignment of stock options

On 14 March 2005 the Board of Directors resolved the second assignment of stock options.
 

•  The objective of the plan is to offer option rights to the Group’s Chief Executive Offi cer.

•   One-third of the option rights assigned mature one year following the assignment date, one-third two 
years after the assignment date and the remaining portion after three years.

•  For each assigned option right, the exercise and therefore the subsequent related subscription of 
Amplifon ordinary shares must take place within seven years, starting from the date of maturity; the 
rights not exercised within this term will be automatically lost.

•  The price per share which the benefi ciary shall pay to Amplifon S.p.A. for the subscription following the 
exercise of the option rights is equal to the price per share corresponding to the average of the prices 
reported in the last month before the assignment date, that is €39.80 or €3.98 after the share split.

•  The exercise of the matured option rights shall take place in one or several tranches, as long as the 
minimum quantity for each tranche is equal to 1,000 (one thousand) rights, as set forth in the new 
regulation approved by the Remuneration Committee on 23 January 2006 and subsequently on 
27 April 2006.

Assignment of 14 March 2005

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 402,000 3.980 3.467 402,000 3.980 6.495

(Option rights granted 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) - - - - - -

Option rights at 31 December 402,000 3.980 0.828 402,000 3.980 3.472

of which exercisable at 31 December 402,000 268,000   
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Assignment of 23 January 2006

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 131,000 5.731 3.467 163,000 5.731 6.495

(Option rights granted 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) 16,000 5.731 - 32,000 5.731 -

Option rights at 31 December 115,000 5.731 0.828 131,000 5.731 3.472

of which exercisable at 31 December 76,666  49,333

Assignment of 23 January 2006

Italian benefi ciaries who have subscribed to the regulation approved on 12 September 2007

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 20,000 5.749 3.467 20,000 5.749 6.495

(Option rights granted 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) - - - - - -

Option rights at 31 December 20,000 5.749 0.828 20,000 5.749 3.472

of which exercisable at 31 December 13,333   6,666   

F) Fifth assignment of stock options

On 15 March 2007, the Board of Directors resolved an assignment of stock options under the 
following terms and conditions:
 

•  The objective of the plan is to offer option rights to benefi ciaries covering key positions within the 
Group.

•  The rights assigned to employees who are resident in Italy mature three years after the assignment 
date; of the other rights one-third mature one year after the assignment date, one-third two years 
after the assignment date and the remaining portion three years after the same date, with the 
exception of the employees of companies with headquarters in France for whom two-thirds of the 
options mature after two years of the assignment date and the remaining portion after three years.

•  For each assigned option right, the exercise and therefore the subsequent related subscription of 
Amplifon ordinary shares must take place within seven years, starting from the date of maturity.

Assignment of 30 September 2005

Italian benefi ciaries who have subscribed to the regulation approved on 12 September 2007

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 781,333 5.713 3.467 801,000 5.713 6.495

(Option rights granted 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) 52,333 5.713 - 19,667 5.713 - 

Option rights at 31 December 729,000 5.713 0.828 781,333 5.713 3.472

of which exercisable at 31 December 729,000   529,996   

E) Fourth assignment of stock options

 
On 23 January 2006 the Board of Directors resolved the fourth assignment of stock options. 
 

•  The objective of the plan is to offer option rights to benefi ciaries covering key positions within the 
Group.

•  One-third of the assigned rights mature one year following the assignment date, one-third two 
years after the assignment date and the remaining portion three years after the same date, with the 
exception of the employees of companies with headquarters in Spain for whom the options mature for 
two-thirds two years following the assignment date and for the remaining portion after three years.

•  For each assigned option right, the exercise and therefore the subsequent related subscription of 
Amplifon ordinary shares must take place within seven years, starting from the date of maturity. 

•  Only for employee benefi ciaries on the payroll of companies with registered offi ce in Italy which 
accepted the new regulation, approved by the Remuneration Committee on 12 September 2007, 
100% of the option rights assigned to them may be exercised before three years have lapsed from the 
assignment date, meaning that the Benefi ciary may be able to subscribe Amplifon’s ordinary shares at 
the terms and conditions indicated here below only after three years have lapsed from the assignment 
date. The deadline for subscribing to the shares is 7 years from the maturity date.

•  Non-exercised rights shall be automatically lost after such term.

•  The price per share which the benefi ciary shall pay to Amplifon S.p.A. for the subscription following the 
exercise of the option rights is equal to the price per share corresponding to the average of the prices 
reported in the last month before the assignment date, that is €57.31 or €5.731 after the share split.

•  Only for employee benefi ciaries on the payroll at 12 September 2007 of the companies with registered 
offi ce in Italy who have undersigned the new Regulation approved by the Remuneration Committee 
on 12 September 2007, the price per share is fi xed at €5.749 (fi ve euros/seven hundred and 
forty-nine cents).

•  The exercise of the matured option rights shall take place in one or several tranches, as long as the 
minimum quantity for each tranche is equal to 1,000 (one thousand) rights.
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 Stock Option Plan of 18 December 2008

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January - - - - n.a. -

(Option rights granted 
in the period) 5,720,000 0.735 0.828 - - -

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) - - - - - -

Option rights at 31 December 5,720,000 0.735 0.828 - - -

of which exercisable at 31 December  -

H) Residual life of assigned stock options

Options assigned to 31 December 2008

Residual Life Residual Life per Contract

Strike Price Assigned on < 1 year 1-5 years 5-10 years Total No. of shares Average 
expiring date

2 28-mar-01 30,000  - - 30,000 30,000 3 years

3.98 14-mar-05     - - 402,000 402,000 402,000 6 years

5.697 30-sep-05 135,000 612,657 556,343 1,304,000 1,304,000 8 years

5.713  150,000 385,997 193,003 729,000 729,000 6 years

5.731 23-jan-06 - - 115,000 115,000 76,666 6 years

5.749  - - 20,000 20,000 13,333 6 years

6.914 15-mar-07 - - 220,000 220,000 21,666 7 years

0.735 18-dic-08 - - 5,720,000 5,720,000  - 7 years

Total  315,000 998,654 7,226,346 8,540,000 2,576,665  

I) Determination of the stock option fair value

The weighted average fair value of the stock options assigned during the period amounts to €0.28. 
The assumptions adopted in the determination of the fair value are as follows:

Model used Binomial 

Strike price 0.735

Current price Price on assignment date: €0.735

Expected volatility Historic volatility at one year: 35%

Duration of the option 5 years 

Expected dividend 1% p.a.

No-risk interest rate Euroswap – Applying Bootstrap Tecnic

Advanced year Not considered

The implicit cost of stock options in the period amounts to €422 thousand.

•  Non-exercised rights shall be automatically lost after such term.

•   The price per share which the benefi ciary shall pay to Amplifon S.p.A. for the subscription following 
the exercise of the option rights shall be equal to the price per share corresponding to the average 
of the prices reported in the last month before the assignment date, that is €6.914.

•  The exercise of the matured option rights shall take place in one or several tranches, as long as the 
minimum quantity for each tranche is equal to 1,000 (one thousand) rights.

Stock Option Plan of 15 March 2007

FY 2008 FY 2007

 No. of 
shares

 Strike 
price (€)

 Market  
price (€)

No. of 
shares

Strike 
price (€)

Market  
price (€)

Option rights at 1 January 250,000 6.914 3.467 - n.a. -

(Option rights granted 
in the period) - - - 380,000 6.914 6.750

(Option rights exercised 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights cancelled 
in the period) - - - - - -

(Option rights expired 
in the period) 30,000 - 130,000   6.914 -

Option rights at 31 December 220,000 6.914 0.828 250,000 6.914 6.170

of which exercisable at 31 December 21,666  -

G) Sixth assignment of stock options

 
On 18 December 2008, the Board of Directors resolved an assignment of stock options under the 
following terms and conditions:

•  The objective of the plan is to offer 5,720,000 option rights to benefi ciaries covering key positions 
within the Group.

•  The options rights granted to each benefi ciary mature and therefore give right to the subsequent 
related subscription of Amplifon ordinary shares, for an amount of 50% after two years and one 
day from the assignment date and the remaining portion after three years and one day from the 
assignment date.

•  For each assigned option right, the exercise and therefore the subsequent related subscription of 
Amplifon ordinary shares must take place within fi ve years, starting from the date of maturity.

•  Non-exercised rights shall be automatically lost after such term.

•  The price per share which the benefi ciary shall pay to Amplifon S.p.A. for the subscription following 
the exercise of the option rights shall be equal to the price per share corresponding to the average 
of the prices reported in the last month before the assignment date, that is €0.735.

•  The exercise of the matured option rights shall take place in one or several tranches, as long as the 
minimum quantity for each tranche is equal to 1,000 (one thousand) rights.

Consolidated Financial Statements 2008



200 201
Amplifon

Annual Report 2008

32. Earnings per share

Basic EPS

Basic earnings per share is obtained by dividing the net income for the year pertaining to the ordinary 
shareholders of the Parent company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding in the 
year, considering purchases and disposals of own shares as cancellations and issues of shares. Earnings 
per share from operating activities, discontinued operations and total for the period were determined 
as follows:

Earnings per share from operating activities FY  2008 FY  2007

Net income (loss)  pertaining to ordinary shareholders (€ thousand) (14,536) 15,540

Average number of shares outstanding in the period 192,823,000 194,695,427

Average earnings per share (€ per share) (0.075385) 0.07982

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is obtained by dividing the net income for the year pertaining to ordinary 
shareholders of the Parent company by the weighted-average number of shares outstanding during 
the year adjusted by the diluting effects of contingent shares. In the calculation of outstanding shares, 
purchases and sales of own shares are considered respectively as cancellations and issues of shares.

The company has only one category of contingent ordinary shares, which are those deriving from the 
potential conversion of stock options assigned to Group employees. The computation of the number 
of outstanding contingent shares is based on the average fair value of shares for the period; stock 
options are excluded from the calculation since they have anti-diluting effects.

Weighted average diluted number of shares outstanding FY  2008 FY  2007

Average number of shares outstanding in the year 192,823,000 194,695,427

Weighted average of contingent and diluting ordinary shares 126,605 353,655

Weighted average of shares potentially subject to options in the period 192,949,605 195,049,082

The diluted earnings per share was determined as follows:

Diluted earnings per share FY  2008 FY  2007

Net profi t pertaining to ordinary shareholders (€ thousand) (14,536) 15,540

Average number of shares outstanding in the period 192,949,605 195,049,082

Average diluted earnings per share (€ per share) (0.075336) 0.07967

31. Investments in jointly-controlled companies

The following table shows the Group’s share of the non-current assets, current assets, non-current 
liabilities, current liabilities, revenues and costs of jointly-controlled companies.

(€ thousands)  31/12/2008  31/12/2007 

Non-current assets 732 559

Current assets 594 494

Non-current liabilities - -

Current liabilities 306 186

Net profi t for the year 352 234

The following table shows the main profi t and balance-sheet data of associates accounted for using 
the net equity method.

(€ thousands)  31/12/2008  31/12/2007 

Non-current assets 606 343

Current assets 1,080 946

Non-current liabilities 279 72

Current liabilities 669 611

Revenues 3,018 2,563

Net profi t for the year 215 205

Please see Annexe 1 for a list of associates accounted for using the net equity method, where our 
interest is between 20% and 49% of capital.
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Other related parties

The total remuneration of Group Directors, Board of Auditors and key managers for the period 
amounted to €8,844 thousand is made up as follows:

Directors and Board of Auditors:

Name Offi ce and duration Fees
Non-

monetary 
benefi ts

Salary
Social 

Security 
Contributions

Stock-
options

Termination 
indemnity

Severance 
indemnity

Other 
multi-year 

benefi ts
Total

Anna Maria 
Formiggini

Chairperson
24/04/2007

to  approval of 2009 Accounts 200 15 -  - - - - - 215

Susan Carol 
Holland

Deputy Chairperson
24/04/2007

to 2009 approval of Accounts 180 17 - 15 - - - - 212

Franco 
Moscetti 

CEO
24/04/2007

to 2009 approval of Accounts - 19 887 257  55 - 41 -  1,259

Giampio 
Bracchi

 Independent Director
24/04/2007

to  approval of 2009 Accounts 85  - - 5 - - - - 90

Maurizio 
Costa

 Independent Director
24/04/2007

to  approval of 2009 Accounts 80  -  - 9 - - - - 89

Vanni 
Emanuele 
Treves

Director
24/04/2007

to  approval of 2009 Accounts 55 - - 9 - - - - 64

Umberto 
Rosa

Independent Director
24/04/2007

to  approval of 2009 Accounts 120 - - - - - - - 120

Gian Paolo 
Giannini

Chairman of Board of 
Auditors

27/04/2006
29/08/2008 30 -  - 1 - - - - 31

Giuseppe 
Levi

Chairman of Board of 
Auditors

27/04/2006
to  approval of 2008 Accounts 35 -  - 1 - - - - 36

Cristina
Seregni

Standing Auditor
27/04/2006

to  approval of 2008 Accounts 30 -  - 1 - - - - 31

Alessandra
Cislaghi

Standing
Auditor

29/09/2008
to  approval of 2008 Accounts 10 -  - - - - - - 10

Total  825 51 887 298 55 - 41 - 2,157

33. Transactions with parent companies and related parties

Amplifon S.p.A. is directly controlled by Ampliter N.V. and indirectly by The Holland Trust, whose 
registered offi ce is in Douglas (Isle of Man - UK). Transactions by Amplifon S.p.A. and its subsidiaries 
with related parties substantially relate to the provision of services.

All transactions are part of ordinary operations and are at market conditions and no untypical or 
unusual operations are to be reported. The following tables summarise the amounts of transactions 
with related parties.

Parent Company

(€ thousands)

31/12/2008 FY 2008

Trade 
receivables

Other 
receivables Revenues Cost/recharges 

of services
Other income 

and charges

Amplifi n S.p.A. 37 5,391 (1,979) 249

Total 37 5,391 (1,979) 249

Balance sheet item total 99,232 14,552 (221,243) (1,163)

% of balance sheet item total 0.04% 37.05% 0.89% -21.41%

Receivables with the controlling entity Amplifi n S.p.A. referred:
•  as to €5,142 thousand, to a transfer in 2006 of VAT credits and as to €249 thousand, to the 

interest accrued thereon under § 73 presidential decree 633/72 and ministerial decree 1312/79, 
which permitted transfer to the controlling entity of VAT credits and liabilities and consequently 
presentation of a joint Group VAT return. Since 2007 Amplifon S.p.A. has not taken part in the Group 
VAT scheme. This amount has been cashed beginning of March 2009.

•  as to €37 thousand, to recovery of maintenance and building service charges due from Amplifi n 
S.p.A..

Expenses charged to Amplifon S.p.A. under existing agreements with Amplifi n S.p.A. include: 
•  rental under a tenancy agreement for the Via Ripamonti 133, Milan premises, which are the 

registered offi ce and main offi ce of Amplifon S.p.A., amounting to €1,499 thousand; Amplifon S.p.A. 
has charged back €43 thousand to Amplifi n S.p.A. being its share of building service charges for the 
space occupied by the controlling entity in the same building. Supply of ancillary services including 
building maintenance, canteen, offi ce cleaning, porters and security is regulated  under a separate 
agreement between the parties.

•  rental under certain tenancy agreements concerning store premises used in the business totalling 
€523 thousand.

FY 2008

(€ thousands) Revenues Cost/recharges 
of services

A. Charles Holland Foundation - (180)

Total - (180)

Balance sheet item total (221,243)

% of balance sheet item total - 0.08%
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34. Guarantees granted, commitments and contingent liabilities

Guarantees Given

At 31 December 2008 these broke down as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2008  

Guarantees given:

Guarantees in favour of third parties 106,404

Total 106,404

The principal guarantees given were:

•  a guarantee issued to the subscribers of the private placement issued by Amplifon USA and Amplifon 
Deutschland in the amount of US$90,955 thousand (equivalent to €65,355 thousand at the 
31/12/2008 exchange rate) to cover interest payments (the guarantee of principal is not included, 
since the debt is already recognised in the accounts);

•  a guarantee issued to Nanogen in the amount of €2,500 thousand, relating to the sale of 
Diagnostica by Amplimedical to Nanogen;

•  an undertaking in the amount of €1,915 thousand, to buy back from Simest its 3.81% stake in 
Amplifon USA;

•  guarantees of long-term loans, in the interest of Amplifon USA for US$17,002 thousand equivalent 
to €12,217 thousand at the 31/12/2008 exchange rate (this is the amount of the guarantees 
outstanding at 31 December 2008 which exceeds the residual debt recognised in the accounts);

•  guarantees totalling €1,308 thousand issued to third parties under tenders and tenancy agreements;

•  various guarantees totalling €23,109 thousand, which include letters of patronage issued to third 
parties in the interest of subsidiaries.

Covenants:

Most of the Amplifon Group’s debt requires observance of certain undertakings and covenants. The 
following covenants apply to the private placement of US$180 million (€141 million including the 
fair value of the derivatives capping the €/US$ exchange rate at 1.2676 on a notional amount of 
US$175 million):

• the ratio of Group net debt to net equity must not exceed 1.5 times;

• the ratio of net debt to the EBITDA of the last four quarters must not exceed 3.5 times.

The following covenants apply to a €30 million loan made to the French branch:

• the ratio of Group net debt to net equity must not exceed 1.5 times;

• the ratio of net debt to the EBITDA of the last four quarters must not exceed 3.5 times.

At 31 December 2008 these ratios were respectively 1.04 and 2.56.

The terms of the private placement require the issuers and Amplifon S.p.A. as guarantor to comply 
with other covenants limiting the amount of guarantees that may be issued, the sale of certain 
investments and entering into sale and lease back transactions or extraordinary transactions. 

Key Managers 

Name Fees
Non-

monetary 
benefi ts

Salary
Social 

Security 
Contributions

Stock-
options

Termination 
indemnity

Severance 
indemnity

Other 
multi-year 

benefi ts
Total

A. Chiono

E. Gambardella

U. Giorcelli

H. Terzioglu

E. Bortesi

G. Ferraroli

H. Ruch

A. Baroni 382 3,262 869 253 1,514 207 200 6,687

R. Darmon

B. Wabler

C. Van Ditshuizen

P. Peters

C. Rutishauser

P. Boffano

R. Leitl

Total 382 3,262 869 253 1,514 207 200 6,687

The stock options assigned to the members of the board of directors, general managers and key 
managers are detailed below:

Offi ce

Options held at beginning 
of the period

Options assigned 
during the year

Options exercised 
during the year

Options 
expired

Options held 
at end of the period

No. of 
options

Average 
strike 

price

Average 
expiry

No. of 
options

Average 
strike 

price

Average 
expiry

No. of 
options

Average 
strike 

price

Average 
market price 

of the year

No. of 
options

No. of 
options

Average 
strike 

price

Average 
expiry

Assignment of 14 march 2005

CEO 402,000 3.98 5 years - - - - - - - 402,000 3.98 6 years

Assignment of 30 september 2005

Key 
Managers 455,000 5.697 5 years - - - - - - 100,000 355,000 5.697 8 years

Key 
Managers 350,000 5.713 5 years - - - - - - - 350,000 5.713 6 years

CEO 200,000 5.713 5 years - - - - - - - 200,000 5.713 6 years

Assignment of 23 january 2006

Key 
managers 100,000 5.731 6 years - - - - - - - 100,000 5.731 6 years

Assignment of 15 march 2007

Key 
Managers 100,000 6.914 7 years - - - - - - - 100,000 6.914 6 years

Assignment of 18 december 2008

Key 
Managers - - - 2,700,000 0.735 5 years - - - - 2,700,000 0.735 7 years 

CEO - - - 700,000 0.735 5 years - - - - 700,000 0.735 7 years 
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37. Post-balance sheet events

The following signifi cant events occurred after the balance sheet date:

VAT Credit Rebate

At the beginning of March 2009, Amplifon has received the payment of VAT receivables for €6,081 
thousand, of which €5,142 thousand through the controlling entity Amplifi n, as part of the Group VAT 
position.

Sale of the Service Division in Italy

At the beginning of March 2009 Amplifon signed a framework agreement with the Siemens Group 
under which its Service Division is to be outsourced to the latter.  The division is engaged in the 
personalisation, maintenance and servicing of hearing aids sold in Italy.

This decision was based on the need to have products and services of the highest quality in order to 
maintain our leadership in the Italian market.

By outsourcing ‘Service’ we will be able to concentrate on Amplifon’s core business, viz. the 
distribution and sale of hearing solutions, while relying on a leading hearing-aid producer to further 
develop the quality of the Service Division, with which a long-term partnership has been established 
and that will ensure that ‘Service’ would receive all necessary investment, technology and training to 
continue to improve the quality of its service and thus achieve ever-increasing competitiveness. 
 
This strategy is consistent with our Group’s orientation. The same solution had been adopted outside 
Italy with good results. The transaction should be completed in the second quarter of 2009 for  a 
consideration of €2.4 million and should give rise to a capital gain of €2 million. It should involve the 
transfer of 65 / 70 people to Siemens.

Milan, 11 March 2009             

for the Board of Directors
The Chief Executive Offi cer

Franco Moscetti

There are no covenants on the remaining €142 million of debt.

These undertakings and covenants are normal international practice.

Contingent Liabilities – Tax 

During a regular tax inspection of our Dutch subsidiary, the local tax authority has requested certain 
information which the company has promptly provided. The outcome is not currently foreseeable.  

Our US subsidiary Miracle Ear has been asked to provide information to the New York State Attorney 
General relating to an investigation of advertising by franchisees. Our subsidiary promptly provided all 
the requested information and documentation. 

35. Transactions arising from untypical/unusual operations

Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 2006, it should be noted that during 2008 the Group 
has not carried out any atypical/unusual transactions, as defi ned by the Communication.

36. Conversion of foreign companies’ fi nancial statements
 
The exchange rates used to convert foreign companies’ fi nancial statements are as follows:

(€ thousands)

31/12/2008 31/12/2007

Average 
exchange rate

Year-end 
exchange rate

Average 
exchange rate

Year-end 
exchange rate

Canadian dollar 1.559 1.700 1.468 1.528

US dollar 1.471 1.392 1.370 1.317

Hungarian forint 251.512 266.700 251.352 251.770

Swiss franc 1.587 1.485 1.643 1.607

Egyptian pound 7.995 7.676 7.734 7.524

British pound 0.796 0.952 0.684 0.672
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Company name Head 
offi ce

Direct/Indirect 
ownership Currency Share

Capital
% ownership

31/12/2008

Amplifon Distribution SLU Madrid (España) I EUR 3,010 100.0%

Electrónica Jan. Española de Audiología Madrid (España) I EUR 3,006 100.0%

Amplifon Magyarország Kft Budapest (Hungary) D HUF 3,500,000 100.0%

Amplifon AG Baar (Schweiz) D CHF 1,000,000 100.0%

Amplibus AG Baar (Schweiz) I CHF 50,000 100.0%

Optima Hörberatung AG Bern (Schweiz) I CHF 250,000 100.0%

L'aide Auditive SA Vevey (Schweiz) I CHF 100,000 100.0%

Amplinsure RE AG Baar (Schweiz) I EUR 1,748,873 100.0%

Hearing Supplies SA Lugano (Switzerland) I CHF 100,000 100.0%

Amplifon Nederland BV Doesburg (Nederlands) D EUR 2,287,052 100.0%

Auditech BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 22,500 100.0%

Amplifon Participaties BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 31,765 100.0%

Electro Medical Instruments BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 16,650 100.0%

Amplifon Beheer BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 54,454 100.0%

Beter Horen BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 18,000 100.0%

Horen Nederland Beheer BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 1,345,461 100.0%

Horen Deventer BV Deventer (Nederlands) I EUR 18,151 100.0%

Amplifon Deutschland GmbH Hamburg (Deutschland) D EUR 6,026,000 100.0%

Amplifon Ost GmbH Cottbus (Deutschland) I EUR 25,565 100.0%

Der Hörbus GmbH Hamburg (Deutschland) I EUR 25,000 100.0%

Amplifon München GmbH München (Deutschland) I EUR 1,245,000 100.0%

Amplifon Bayern GmbH München (Deutschland) I EUR 102,600 100.0%

Amplifon Vertriebs GmbH Hamburg (Deutschland) I EUR 25,000 100.0%

Ampli UK LLP Manchester (England) D GBP 41,517 100.0%

Amplifon UK Ltd Manchester (England) D GBP 59,000,000 100.0%

Ultratone Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 700 100.0%

Amplifon Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 1,800,000 100.0%

Hearing Health Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 100 100.0%

BHHC Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 200 100.0%

Ultra Finance Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 75 100.0%

Ultravox Asset Management Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 1 100.0%

Ultravox Holdings Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 8,594 100.0%

Amplivox Holdings Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 250,000 100.0%

Hearing & Electrical Appliances Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 1,354 100.0%

Sietech Hearing Ltd Manchester (England) I GBP 1 100.0%

Amplifon Ireland Ltd Ardcavan (Ireland) I EUR 1,000 75.0%

Miracle Ear Inc. St. Paul – MN (USA) I USD 5 100.0%

Sonus USA Inc. Tumwater – WA (USA) I USD 10 100.0%

Sonus Canada LTD Vancouver (Canada) I CAD 200 100.0%

National Hearing Inc. Dover – DE (USA) I USD 10 100.0%

Amplifon USA Inc. ** Dover – DE (USA) D USD 52,500,010 100.0%

Miracle-Ear of Texas, Inc. ** St. Paul – MN (USA) I USD 10 100.0%

Sonus-Texas, Inc. ** St. Paul – MN (USA) I USD 10 100.0%

Hear PO, Inc. ** St. Paul – MN (USA) I USD 10 100.0%

National Hearing Centers of Texas INC. ** Dover – DE (USA) I USD 10 100.0%

Beckwith Consultants, Inc. ** Tallhassee – FL (USA) I USD 7,500 100.0%

Amplifon Hearing Middle East Cairo (Egypt) D EGP 3,000,000 51.0%

*     The interest in Instituto Gallego de Audiología SL is 51.2%, but contractual clauses provide for a call /put option to consolidate at 100%.
**  The equity interest in Amplifon USA Inc. (and thus in its subsidiaries) is 96.19%, but contractual clauses provide for the purchase of the remaining 

3.81% by 30 June 2009 so it is consolidated at 100%.

Annex I

Consolidation Area

As required by §§ 38 and 39 Law 127/91 and § 126 Consob resolution 11971 dated 14 May 1999, as 
amended by resolution 12475 dated 6 April 2000, the following is the list of companies included in 
the consolidation area of Amplifon S.p.A. at 31 December 2008.

Parent Company

Company name Head offi ce Currency Share capital

Amplifon S.p.A Milan (Italy) EUR 3,968,400

Subsidiaries consolidated using the line-by-line method

Company name Head 
offi ce

Direct/Indirect 
ownership Currency Share

Capital
% ownership

31/12/2008

Amplimedical S.p.A. – in liquidation Milano (Italia) D EUR 3,111,967 100.0%

Amplifon Groupe France SA Paris (France) D EUR 48,550,898 100.0%

Amplifon Paris SAS Paris (France) I EUR 312,521 100.0%

Amplifon IDF SAS Paris (France) I EUR 175,317 100.0%

Lyon Surditè SAS Lyon (France) I EUR 40,000 100.0%

SCI Eliot Leslie Lyon (France) I EUR 610 100.0%

Espace de l'Audition SAS Limoges (France) I EUR 80,000 100.0%

Amplifon Cote d'Azur SAS St Raphael (France) I EUR 37,000 100.0%

Amplifon Méditerranée SAS Langlade (France) I EUR 111,136 100.0%

O.T.A.A. SAS Lyon (France) I EUR 40,960 100.0%

Amplifon Provence SAS Marseille (France) I EUR 38,875 100.0%

Amplifon Sud Ouest SAS Toulouse (France) I EUR 38,112 100.0%

SCAM SAS Mulhouse (France) I EUR 40,000 100.0%

CCA Auvergne SAS Clermont Ferrand (France) I EUR 37,500 100.0%

Drome Audition SA Romans (France) I EUR 37,000 100.0%

Espace Conseil de l'Audition SARL Mont de Marsan (France) I EUR 34,650 100.0%

Amplifon Audison SAS Grenoble (France) I EUR 37,054 100.0%

Laboratoire d'Audition des Arceaux Montpellier (France) I EUR 40,000 100.0%

Jacques Martin SARL Marmande (France) I EUR 7,622 100.0%

SAS Amplifon Surdité Strasbourg (France) I EUR 37,000 100.0%

Amplifon Iberica SA Barcelona (España) D EUR 29,160,159 100.0%

Amplaid Iberica SL Barcelona (España) I EUR 42,071 99.9%

Bioacustica Instituto de Audiología Lisboa (Portugal) I EUR 204,850 100.0%

G.A. Zamorano SL Zamora (España) I EUR 36,060 51.0%

Audiogestion 2001 SL Sevilla (España) I EUR 72,000 83.0%

Bizkaia 99 SL Bilbao (España) I EUR 55,000 100.0%

G.A. Jerez SL Jerez (España) I EUR 18,000 100.0%

Bio Mieres SL Madrid (España) I EUR 3,200 100.0%

BIO Terrassa SL Terrassa (España) I EUR 40,000 50.0%

Bio Benidorm SL Benidorm (España) I EUR 3,025 52.0%

Instituto Gallego de Audiología SL* Vigo (España) I EUR 3,005 100.0%

Ampli Lleida SLU Barcelona (España) I EUR 5,016 60.0%

Fundación Amplifon Iberica Madrid (España) I EUR 30,000 100.0%

Consolidated Financial Statements 2008



210 211
Amplifon

Annual Report 2008

Attestation in respect of the Consolidated Financial Statements under Article 
154-bis of Legislative Decree 58/98

The undersigned Franco Moscetti, Chief Executive Offi cer and Ugo Giorcelli, Executive Responsible for 
Corporate Accounting Information for Amplifon S.p.A., taking into account the provisions of § 154-bis, 
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Law 58/98, certify: 

•  the adequacy, by reference to the characteristics of the business and
•  the effective application,

of the administrative and accounting procedures for the preparation of the consolidated fi nancial 
statements during the 2008 fi nancial year.

And also certify that the consolidated fi nancial statements at 31 December 2008:

•  agree with the underlying accounting entries and records; and
•  have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards endorsed by 

the European Union as well as the provisions issued to implement § 9 Law 38/2005 and provide a 
true and fair view of the fi nancial, economic and net assets of the issuer and of all of the companies 
included in the consolidation.

The report on operations includes a reliable operating and fi nancial review of the Company as well as 
a description of the main risks and uncertainties to which it is exposed.

11 March 2009

The Chief Executive Offi cer Executive Responsible  
Franco Moscetti for Corporate Accounting Information 
 Ugo Giorcelli

Jointly-controlled subsidiaries consolidated using the proportional method

Company name Head 
offi ce

Direct/Indirect 
ownership Currency Share

Capital
% ownership

31/12/2008

Acousoft Informatisering BV Doesburg (Nederlands) I EUR 18,197 50.1%

Comfoor BV Doetinchem (Nederlands) I EUR 18,000 50.0%

The Amplifon Group holds the absolute majority of the voting rights which can be exercised in the 
ordinary meeting of Acousoft Informatisering BV, but does not have control of the company as a 
shareholders’ agreement prevents any operating and fi nancial decision being taken without the prior 
approval of the other joint-venture partner.

Companies valued using the equity method

Company name Head 
offi ce

Direct/Indirect 
ownership Currency Share

Capital
% ownership

31/12/2008

Audiosalud SL Murcia (España) I EUR 148,385 39.8%

Audiogram Audifonos SL Palma de Mallorca (España) I EUR 3,006 49.0%

Bio Cáceres SL Madrid (España) I EUR 3,010 20.0%

Micro-Electric Hörgeräte R. Wüthrich AG Chur (Schweiz) I CHF 160,000 25.0%

Annex II

Information pursuant to § 149-duodecies of Consob Issuers’ Regulations
 
The following table, prepared pursuant to §149-duodecies Consob Issuers’ Regulations, shows the fees 
for both audit and non-audit services provided by the auditing company and entities that are part of 
its network in relation to the 2008 fi nancial year.

 Subject that provided the service Recipient 2008 fees (€)

Audit Reconta Ernst & Young Parent company- Amplifon Spa 310,960

 Ernst & Young Subsidiaries 1,093,580

 Others Subsidiaries 95,528

    

Other services * Ernst & Young Parent company- Amplifon S.p.A. and its subsidiaries 173,861

Total   €1,673,929

*  Non – audit services include due diligence reviews, studies and analyses relating to the treatment of signifi cant transactions, tax compliance and 
advisory and other services.
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